
Drguodo

County of Inyo
Board of Supervisors

Board of Supervisors Room

County Administrative Cenler
224 North Edwards

lndependence, California

All rnemben of he public are encounaged to pariicipate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda. Anyone wishing t0 speaK please obtain a card from the Board Clerk and

indicate each item you would like t0 discuss, Retum the completed card to the Board Cle* before he Board considers the item (s) upon which you wish to speak You will be

allowed t0 speak about each item before lhe Board takes action on it.

Any member of the public may also make comments during the scheduled "Public Commenf period on this agenda conceming any subject related to the Board of Supervison or
County Govemment. No card needs to be submitted in order to speak during the 

-Public 
Commenf pedod.

Act, you need special assistance to participate in th meeting please contact lhe the Board at

enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable altemative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2). (2) lf a writing, that is a public record relating to an

inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Govemment Code $ 54957.5(bX1 )

lJote; Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board's convenience,

Februarv 12. 2019

8:30 a.m. 1. PUBLIC COMMENT

ctosED sEssro^,

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSET - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION - Significant exposure to potential
litigation pursuant to (2) of subdivision (d) of Government Code $54956.9 (one case).

3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY'S LABOR NEGOTIATORS [Pursuant to Government Code $54957.6] -
Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff's Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant
Association (EOAA); lnyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); lnyo County Employees
Association (ICEA); lnyo County Probation Peace Officers Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law
Enforcement Administrators' Association (LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated
representatives - Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, Assistant County Administrator Rick Benson, Deputy
Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, and Assistant County Counsel John
Vallejo.

4. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT [Pursuant to Government Code 554957] - Title. Public Works Director

i OPEMESSTOTV (Wth the exeeption of timed items, allopen-session items may be considered at ariy time and in any order':
1 duing the mee.-ting in tbe Boald's disqletlpti l

1O:OO a.m. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESS'OA/

6. PUBLIC COMMENT

7. COUNTY DEPARTMENI REPORIS fieports limited to two minutes)

8. INTRODUCI/OwS - The following new employees will be introduced to the Board: Sue Park,
IHSS Registered Nurse, Health & Human Services; and Jaclyn Sharer, Legal Secretary l,
Probation.

Board of Supervisors AGENDA Febtuaty 12,2019



9. HEALTH & HUMAN SERVTCES - Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging/lC-GOLD - Request Board find
that, consistentwith the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding forone (1)
Office Technician lll exists in a non-General Fund budget, as certified by the HHS Director and concurred
with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the
qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an
open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; C) approve the hiring of one (1)
Office Technician lll, Range 63 ($3,867 - $4,705); and D) if an internal candidate is hired into the position,
authorize HHS to backfillthe resulting vacancy.

10. HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES - Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging/lC-GOLD - Request Board find
that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of ESAAA, Social
Services, and IC-GOLD funding forone (1) A-PAR Program Services Assistant (PSA) l-ll exists, as certified
by the HHS Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where due to
the parttime nature of the position it is unlikely that it could be filled by an internal candidate, an open
recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified candidates apply; and C) approve the hiring of one (1) A-
PAR PSA, either at Level l, Range 39PT ($11.93 - $14.48/hr.) or Level ll, Range 42PT ($12.75 - $15.52lhr.),
depending upon qualifications.

11. HEALTH & HUMAN SERV/CES - Behavioral Health - Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted
Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for one (1) HHS Specialist lV exists in the
Behavioral Health budget (no County General Funds), as certified by the HHS Director and concurred with by
the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for
the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is
more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of one (1) fulltime HHS
Specialist lV, Range 60 ($3,612 - $4,387).

12. HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES - Socra/ Services - Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted
Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of funding for one (1) Office Clerk ll exists in a non-
General Fund budget, as certified by the HHS Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and
Auditor-Controller; B) where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy
could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure
qualified applicants apply; and C) approve the hiring of one (1) Office Clerk ll, Range 50 ($2,860 - $3,478).

13. HEALTH & HUMAN SERVTCES- Request Board:
A) Establish a Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Coordinator classification and approve the proposed

job description for the MHSA Coordinator at three levels: MHSA Coordinator I at Range 76 ($5,264 -
$6,400), MHSA Coordinator ll at Range 78 ($S,Ste - $6,705) and Licensed MHSA Coordinator at
Range 82 ($6,076 - $7,378);

B) Delete one (1) Human Services Supervisor for the Behavioral Health Division at Range 70; and
C) Find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy:

1. The availability of funding for the requested position exists in the Mental Health budget (no
County General Funds), as certified by the HHS Director and concurred with by the County
Administrator and Auditor-Controller; and

2. Where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could
possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more
appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply for the specialized position; and

3. Approve the hiring of one (1) full{ime MHSA Coordinator at a Level l, Range 76 ($5,264 -
$6,400), Level ll, Range 78 ($S,Stg - $6,705) or Licensed MHSA Coordinator, Range 82
($6,076 - $7,378), depending upon qualifications.

14. HEALTH & HUMAN SERVTCES - Eastern Sierra Area Agency on AgingllC-GOLD - Request Board:
A) Approve an Assistant Human Services Supervisor position on a pilot basis, beginning January 1,

2018 through June 30,2021 and beyond, contingent upon funding, and:
B) Approve the Assistant Human Services Supervisor job description;
C) Change the authorized strength in the Health & Human Services ESAAA/IC-GOLD programs by:

1. Deleting one (1) B-PAR PSA ll at Range 42PT ($12.75 - $15.52lhr.)
2. Adding one (1) B-PAR Assistant Human Services Supervisor at Range 65PT ($21.72 -

$26.41lhr.); and
D) Find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy:

1. The availability of funding for the requested position exists, as certified by the HHS
Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller;

Board of Supervisors AGENDA 2 Feb(uary 12,2019



2. Where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could
possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more
appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and

3. Approve the hiring of one (1) B-PAR Assistant Human Services Supervisor, Range 65PT
($21.72 - $26.41lhr.).

15. HEALTH & HUMAN SERVTCES - Socia/ Services - Request Board:
A) Change the authorized strength in the HHS Aging and Social Services Division by:

1. Deleting one (1) Human Services Supervisor at Range 70 ($+,S09 - $5,557)
2. Deleting one (1) lntegrated Case Worker I at Range 60 ($g,OtZ - $4,387)
3. Adding one (1) Program Manager at Range 74 ($5,021- $6,103); and

B) Find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy:
1. The availability of funding for one (1) Program Manager exists, as certified by the HHS

Director and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller;
2. Where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could

possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more
appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply;

3. Approve the hiring of one (1) Program Manager at Range 74 ($5,021- $6,103); and
4. lf an internal candidate is hired into the Program Manager position, authorize HHS to backfill

the resulting vacancy.

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

16. Request Board approve the "lnyo County, CA 2019 Legislative Platform and Priorities"
document.

17. lnformation Seryices - Pursuant to the Technology Refresh lnitiative, request Board
authorize the purchase of 10 Dell desktop computers with associated peripherals from CDW-G
for $8,789 and 40 HP laptop computers with associated peripherals from Southern Computer
Warehouse for $41,857, for a combined total of $50,646.

PROBATION

18. Request Board: A) declare American Security Group a sole-source provider of security system
maintenance; B) approve the contract between the County of lnyo and American Security
Group in an amount not to exceed $23,490 for the period of July 1,2019 to June 30, 2020, with
an option to renew a second and third year, contingent upon the adoption of future fiscal year
budgets; and C) authorize the Chairperson to sign.

PUBLIC WORKS

19. Request Board approve the plans and specifications for the lndependence Library Flooring
Project, and authorize the Public Works Director to advertise and bid the project.

SHERIFF

20. Request Board approve Resolution No.2019-06 titled, "A Resolution of the Board of
Supervisors of the County of lnyo, State of California, Authorizing the Submittal of the State of
California, Department of Parks and Recreation, Off-Highway Vehicle Grant Application."

21. CLERK OF THE BOARD - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meetings
of December 4,2018, December 11,2018, December 18,2018, January 8,2019, and January 15,2019.

lrl'iii , :i.rl jiirlr.l:ir .:.;i..lr,l1i l, i irrt tl',1i.)trl, . rlirilli,,,,i r;l;::trl ;:r j,ai,j,

Board of Supervisors AGENDA Febtuary 12,2019



22. AG COMMISSIONER - Request Board: A) conduct a public hearing on the consideration of a
County commercial cannabis license for the microbusiness classification in Zone 5C; and B)
conditionally approve the application that exceeded the 80% minimum threshold as set forth in
lnyo County code section 5.40.090(H) and authorize issuance of the license contingent on the
applicant paying the fees established, and applicant obtaining all applicable permits and
licenses required by the County and the State of California including payment of all required
fees and taxes.

PLANNING - Request Board: A) conduct a public hearing on a proposed ordinance titled, "An
Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors of the County of lnyo, State of California, Approving
Zone Reclassification No. 2018-1O/Jellison and Amending the Zoning Map of the County of lnyo
by Rezoning a 0.35-Acre Parcel Located a:t2476 &2478 Dixon Lane (APN 010-081-40) in the
Unincorporated Community of Bishop from Multiple Residential (R-2) to Single Residence or
Mobilehome Combined (RMH);" B) certify that the provisions of the California Environmental
Quality Act have been met and make certain findings with respect to and approving Zone
Reclassification No. 2l1$-l0lJellison; and C) waive the first reading of and enact the above-
referenced ordinance.

11 a.m

11a.m. 23

ir ,;;r,::rL,y ii,r:: r..i.r;

.,r,, i ...r .t, 1..,. ..

Note: The agenda items listed below may be considered by the Board at any time during the meeting in the
Board's discretion, including before scheduled timed items.

24. PUBLIC COMMENT

'11.:,;:,l;1,1;,r .L,r'i:illiiir li\iri'rr')i l,ii r, r';,r'llrf::):rt r:l|1.:r ::li,,i::l,l.J litri?:(j]:r. rilo) litlitliiijl

4Board of Superuisors AGENDA Febtuary 12,2019



llconsent XDepartmentat

! s"n"out"d rime for

Correspondence Action ! ernti" Hearing

Closed Session l-l tnformationat

AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NAMBER

AGENDA NUMBER

q

FROM: HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES _ ESAAA/IC-GOLD

FORTHE BOARD MEETING OF: February L2t2OL9

SUBJECT: Request to hire an Office Technician III in the Aging and Social Services division.

Request your Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review policy:
A) The availability of funding for the requested position exists in a non-General Fund budget, as certified

by the Health and Human Services Director and concurred with by the County Administrator, and
Auditor-Controller; and

B) Where internal candidates meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled
through an internal recruitment; however, an external recruitment would be more appiopriate to ensure
qualified applicants apply; and

C) Approve the hiring of one Office Technician III at Range 63 ($3,867 - $4,705); and
D) If an intemal candidate is hired into the Office Technician III position, authorize HHS to backfill the

resulting vacancy.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

The Office Technician III in the HHS Aging and Social Services Division recently became vacant as the
employee accepted a promotional position within HHS Administration. The Office Technician III position
provides direct support to the HHS Deputy Director, Social Services and Aging Programs, who manages the
Adult and Children's Social Services programs, the Employment and Eligibility progrims, the FIRST piogru.
and the Aging Services programs, including Adult Protective Services, In Home Supportive Services (ICSS;,
Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA) and Inyo County's Growing Older, living with Dignity (LC.
GOLD). The position monitors the multiple task deadlines of the Deputy Director's position, tracks mandated
training requirements, coordinates purchasing and work order issues for the various siies, and assists with other
administrative duties as needed. The Office Technician III position also provides supervisory support to the
Employment and Eligibility office in both the Bishop and Lone Pine Social Services ofii..r as well as
managing the daily operations of both offices. The position also provides basic support to supervisors of the
Division programs in addressing administrative details as assigned by the HHS Deputy Director.

The Department is respectfully requesting authorization to recruit and hire an Office Technician III in the HHS
Aging and Social Services Division. In addition, should the vacancy be filled by an internal candidate, resulting
in a vacancy within the Department, the Department respectfully requests authorization to recruit and hire to fill
any resulting vacancies.



ALTERNATIVES:
Your Board could choose not to authorize the hiring of the Office Technician III position. This would severely
impact the oversight of the busy front offrce of Employment and Eligibility, which may impact consumer
service, data entry, and timely response to building issues. Additionally, these duties, which would be absorbed
by existing staff and the HHS Deputy Director, may result in a failure to meet multiple deadlines and with the
Deputy Director being left with insufficient support to address the wide-range of administrative details.

OTH ER AGENCY INVOLVEM ENT:
Juvenile Court, Juvenile and Adult Probation, Toiyabe Family Services, local Indian tribes, Behavioral Health,
Public Works, Fiscal, Sheriffls Office, District Attorney, Bishop Police Department and Wild Iris.

FINANCIIIG: State, Federal, and Social Services Realignment funds. This position is currently budgeted
100% in the Social Services Budget (055300) in the Salary and Benefits object category. No County General
Funds.

APPROVALS

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received) Date:

Jrl n

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the Auditor/Controtter prior to
subml.sslon to the Board Clerk.)

PE NEL DIREGTOR: ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the Director of Personnel Services prior to

"J
Approved t
submr.sslon to the Board
PER'oNNEL ANo *=ako



llconsent XDepartmentat

f] s"n"out"d rime for

Correspondence Action

Closed Session

AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

For Clerk's Use Only
AGENDANAMBER

l0
Public Hearing

lnformational

FRoM: HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES - ESAAA/IC-GoId

FORTHE BOARD MEETING OF: February t2,20tg

SUBJECT: Request to hire one A-PAR Program Services Assistants (PSA) I, or II in the ESAAA/IC-Go1d
program.

D E PA RTM E N TA L R ECO M M E N DATIO N :
Request your Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review policy:

A) The availability of ESAAA, Social Services and ICGOLD funding for one position of an A-par
Program Services Assistant (PSA) I, or II exists, as certified by the Health and Human Services Director
and concurred with by the County Administrator, and Auditor-Controller; and

B) Where due to the part-time nature of these positions it is unlikely that the positions could be filled by
intemal candidates meeting the qualifications for the positions, utt ope.t recruitment would be
appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; and

C) Approve the hiring of one A-Par PSA, either aI at Range 39 PT ($11.93-$1 4.481hr.), or a II at Range
42PT ($12.75 to $15.52lhr.) depending upon qualifications.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
An A-PAR Program Services Assistant position became vacant when the employee accepted a full time cook
position. The part-time, up to l9 hours per week, position perform support services including, but not limited to:
assisting the cook with preparing meals, meal delivery to home Uouna seniors and assisted transportation to
medical appointments. The PSA is also available to provide support in other program functions luring staff
absences.

We are respectfully requesting permission to fill this vacancy at either an A-Par PSA I, or II level in order to
ensure the provision of services.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board could choose not to allow HSS to hire the PSA I, or II position, which would impact the ability of
the Senior Programs'Lone Pine site, to ensure adequate couerugJof meal delivery routes and other support
services, especially during periods of staff absences. This may lead to higher costs for the ESAAA program if
absences are covered by higher paid staff andlor staff who have to travel from one site to the other in order to
provide coverage.

OTHER AGENCY IflVOLVEMENT:
None



FINANCING:
State and Federal funding and County General Fund. These positions are budgeted,60% in ESAAA (683000);
and 40% in IC GOLD (056100) in the salaries and benefits object codes.

D EPA RTM ET! T H EA D SIG NATU RE :
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received) Date

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS fMusf be reviewed and approved by the Auditor/Controtter pilor to
subnisslon to the Board Cle*.)

EL DIRECTOR

\

PERSoNNEL AN o *aKau rEMs fMusf be
sub/rlssrbn to the Boatd Clerk.) 

|
Approved:- -/ 3

reviewed and approved by the Director of Personnel Services prior to



For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

ll

EConsent I oepartmental E Correspondence Action E puntic Hearing

E Scneduled Time for E Ctoseo Session E lnformational

FROM: HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES - Behavioral Health Division

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: February tZ, ZOL9

SUBJECT: Request for authorization to hire one full time Health and Human Services (HHS) Specialist IV in the
Behavioral Health Division.

DEPA RTM ENTA L R ECOM M E N DATIO TT :
Request the Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy,

A. the availability of funding for the requested positions exists in the Behavioral Health budget (no County
General Funds), as certified by the Health and Human Services Director and concurred with by the County
Administrator, and the Auditor-Controller; and

B. Where internal candidates meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled
through an internal recruitment, however an open recruitment would be appropriate to ensure qualified
applicants apply for this position; and

C. Approve the hiring of one full time HHS Specialist IV Range 60 ($3,612-$4,387).

CAO

AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

TION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

An HHS Specialist IV (HHSS IV) position in the Behavioral Health Division has become vacant as an employee is
moving on to other employment within the community. This vacant position is one of the two HHS Specialist IV
positions authorized for the Behavioral Health Child and Family team. The Specialist works primarily with school-
age youth and spends the majority of time providing school, community and home-based services. The intensive
caseload for this position is l5-20 youth and involves working with youth to provide developmentally-informed
services and support to increase resiliency, address trauma issues, improve functioning in the classroom and
community, and improve family and peer relationships. The HHS Specialist IV works with youth individually as
well as providing group activities to aid the individual in building healthy relationship and peer skills. In addition,
the HHS Specialist IV assists the family by coaching and assisting in identifuing natural supports. The Specialist
works not only as a part of the Behavioral Health Child and Family team; but also also in partnership with the
broader team of staff in prevention, mentoring, schools, child welfare, substance abuse services and juvenile justice.

The HHSS IV provides case management and support for a complex caseload and is able to maximize the billing of
Medi-Cal services. Under the direction and supervision of a Licensed Practitioner of the Healing Arts from within
our Medi-Cal certified clinic, this position can bill for certain documented mental health services and interventions
provided within a treatment plan. This position also assists in the ooback-up" capacity with the after-hours on-call
response. The Department is respectfully requesting authorization to recruit and hire an HHSS IV in our Behavioral



Health Division.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board could choose to not to allow Behavioral Health to hire this position. This would negatively impact the
ability of the team to provide these important direct services to youth and families.

OTH ER AGENCY INVOLVEM ENT:
Behavioral Health is a division of Health and Human Services and works in partnership with multiple agencies
such as probation, primary health, and law enforcement, in addition to most other HHS divisions. The
Adult/Older Adult team works most closely with the primary healthcare providers, social security, landlords,
and adult social services.

FINANCING:
Medi-Cal reimbursement, including EPSDT, as allowed, and Mental Health Realignment funds. This position is budgeted
100% in Mental Health (045200) in the salaries and benefits object codes. No County General Funds.

APPROVALS

DEPARTM ENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received)

AUDI LLER:

EL DIRECTOR: PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Musfbe
subrrlsslon to the Board Cletk.)

oa,e: J [*l tr
and approved by the Director of Personnel Sevices prior to

Approved:



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NAMBER

.1I'ttr'

Consent X Departmental

Scheduled Time for

Correspondence Action f, erOli" Hearing

Closed Session lnformational

FROM: HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES - Social Services

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OFr February 12,20tg

SUBJECT: Request to hire one full time Office Clerk II in the HHS Social Services Employment and Eligibility
division.

D EPA RTM ENTAL RECOM M E N DATIO N :
Request your Board find that consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy:

A) The availability of funding for the requested position exists in a non-General Fund budget, as certified
by the Health and Human Services Director and concurred with by the County Administrator, and
Auditor-Controller; and

B) Where internal candidates meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled
through an internal recruitment; however, an external recruitment would be more appropriate to ensure
qualified applicants apply; and

C) Approve the hiring of one Office Clerk II at Range 50 ($2,860 - $3,478).

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
An Office Clerk II in our Employment and Eligibility Division recently accepted an Integrated Case Worker
position within the same division, resulting in a vacancy. The Office Clerk II position remains critical to the
functioning of this division. The position ensures smooth operation in an office that regularly has a heavy
volume of telephone and in person client contact. This position is the primary, first point of contact in person or
by telephone to individuals applying for a wide range of social services programs. This division has one of the
highest volumes of lobby traffic and the Office Clerk II position is vital in ensuring that clients are greeted
warmly and directed to the correct staff member for assistance.

In addition to handling the telephone and lobby traffic, the Office Clerk manages client schedules and office
assignments for the Employment and Eligibility Office. The position also provides support to the Integrated
Case Workers in all areas of the offrce as well as managing all of the regular clerical assignments.

This division provides a wide range of services including, but not limited to MediCal benefits, Cal Fresh
benefits, cash assistance through CalWORKs, County Medical Services Program (CMSP) and General Relief.
Maintaining our cunent staffing level helps ensure high quality customer services, as well as ensuring timely
and accurate documentation of client records.

The Department is respectfully requesting authorization to hire an Office Clerk II in the HHS Social Services
Employment and Eligibility division.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board could choose to not allow HHS to fill this vacancy, which would impact our ability to ensure
coverage of reception duties in the Bishop office. It would also result in the reception duties being performed by



hi gher-paid professional staff.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None

FINANCING:
Federal, State and Social Services Realignment. This position is budgeted 100% in Social Services (055300) in
the Salaries and Benefits object codes. No County General funds.

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

Approved: 7

RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the Auditor/Controltet prior toACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND
submission to the Board Clerk.)

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and
submlssrbn to the Board Cletk.)

."'""'"'" 

rYf61i;:"
PE

Approved:

DEPARTM ETYT H EAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received) Date

.r



For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

tb

EConsent I oepartmental E Correspondence Action E puntic Hearing

E scheduted rime for E CtoseO Session lnformational

FROM: HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES (HHS)

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: February L2,2Ot9

SUBJECT: Request permission to change the authorized strength by deleting one Human Services Supervisor at
Range 70 and establish a Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Coordinator series at a level I (Range 76), level II
(Range 78) and a Licensed MHSA Coordinator (Range 82) classification and to hire one full time position at the
MHSA Coordinator I, II or Licensed MHSA Coordinator, contingent upon qualifications for the HHS Behavioral
Health Division.

DEPA RTM ENTA L RECO M M EN DA TIO N :
Request the Board:

1) Establish a MHSA Coordinator classification and applove the proposed job description for the MHSA
Coordinator at three levels: MHSA Coordinator I at Range 76 ($3,264-$6,400), MHSA Coordinator II at
Range 78 ($5,518-$6,705) and Licensed MHSA Coordinator at range 82 ($6,076-$7,378).

2) Delete one Human Services Supervisor for the Behavioral Health Division at Range 70.

3) Find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy,
a) the availability of funding for the requested position exists in the Mental Health budget (no County

General Funds), as certified by the Health and Human Services Director and concurred with by the
County Administrator, and the Auditor-Controller; and

b) where internal candidates meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be
filled through an internal recruitment, however an open recruitment would be appropriate to
ensure qualified applicants apply for that specialized position; and

c) approve the hiring of one full time MHSA Coordinator at a level I at Range 16 ($5,264-$6,400),
level II at Range 78 ($5,518-$6,705) or Licensed MHSA Coordinator at Range 82 ($6,076-$7,378).;
contingent upon qualifi cations.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
We are requesting this position due to a vacancy resulting from the retirement of the long term Human Services
Supervisor leading our Wellness Center sites. The Human Services Supervisor at the Wellness Center sites has been
in the position since the inception of the wellness center strategies under MHSA funds and has been instrumental in
providing excellent outreach and engagement, transformational consumer-driven services and advocacy for persons

with behavioral health conditions that place them at risk for homelessness, incarceration, or hospitalization. We
have used this vacancy as an opportunity to evaluate the position and our current overall program, staffing, and fiscal
sustainability needs. We are requesting that the position be filled by a person at the level of a master's degree in the
healing arts who is also firmly anchored in a recovery, strengths-based principles. Hiring at master's level will result
in an on-site supervisor who is able to provide clinical assessment, diagnosis and documentation oversight to

AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COI.INTY OF INYO



increase potential Medi-Cal billing for allowable services provided inthis setting and out into the community. While
services will not be driven by Medi-Cal billing, there is the potential to bill Medi-Cal especially for rehabilitation or
case management services that have not historically been billed due to difficulty in accomplishing the admission
process' In addition, we will look for a candidate who is rooted in the recovery and strength-based services and is
able to convene stakeholders and partners to write and implement the MHSA and other related grants. We have
additionally looked at the skill sets needed to further spread the strengths model in our division and department. In
this vein, we are proposing that this position provides training, supervision, mentoring and coaching of staff at
Progress House, as well as at the wellness center sites. In turn, the current Progress House Administrator will
continue operational oversight of Progress House and will assume operational orr.rright of the wellness center sites.
Finally, this position would act in the role ofthe Progress House Administrator as back up to the Administrator and
obtain certification to fulfill this role. At the MHSA Coordinator I level, the person *orld be eligible to obtain the
certification within 18 months, at MHSA Coordinator II, they would meet the requirements for Certification at hire,
and the Licensed MHSA Coordinator level they would meet requirements wittrin t S months. We respectfully ask to
advertise at all three levels in order to increase our applicant pool. We also request that employees be able to
advance to the next level of the position with successful completion of qualifications and performance standards.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board could choose to not to allow HHS to hire this position at the new classification. This would limit the
department from a potential growth opportunity both fiscally and programmatically.

OTH E R AG ENCY I NVOLVE M ETIT:
Health and Human Services works in partnership with multiple agencies such as Probation, Court, Schools,
primary health facilities, and law enforcement.

FINAIIICING:
MHSA, MHBG, Medi-Cal and Behavioral Health Realignment. This position is budgeted 100%in MH (0a5200) in
the salaries and benefits object codes. No county General Funds.

APPROVALS

D E PA RTM ENT H EA D SIG NATIIRE :

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

o
RELATED lrEMs (Must be reviewed and approved by the Auditor/controlter prior to

Approved:

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND
submlsslon to the Board Clerk.)

PERSONNEL 6INECTON:

(

ITEMS (Must be reviewed

Approved:

and approved by the prior toAND RELATED
Clerk.)

BUDGET OFFIGER: BUDGET AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the Budget Officer priorto submission to the
Board Clerk.)

Approved: Date:

(Not to be signed until all approvals are received) Date
e,)drl



MENTAT HEATTH SERVICES ACT (MHSA) COORDINATOR I and ll

DEFINITIONI Underthegeneral directionoftheBehavioral HealthDirector,orherdesignee,will coordinateand

provide program services and oversightforthe MHSA Plan as part of the Behavioral Health Division of the Health

and Human Services (HHS) Department.

ESSENTIAI JOB DUTIES: As part of the division leadership team, provides frontline program planning , oversight,

clinical direction, training, and evaluation for the MHSA and the Mental Health Block Grant (MHBG) programs.

Assists in the development of the MHSA and MHBG plans including a robust Stakeholder process and involvement.

provides Progress House administrative back up commensurate with certification. lmplements MHSA Community

Services and Supports plans. This currently includes MHSA outreach, engagement and treatment services offered

though the wellness center sites, Progress House, and out into the community and First Episode Psychosis program

offerings. provides case assignment for case management services and training, coaching, and field mentoring of

staff. Provides clinical assessment and treatment planning to result in admissions as appropriate. Provides

documentation training and oversight to meet Medi-Cal standards for unlicensed staff. Ensures privacy and scope

of practice standards for assigned programs. Assists with the expansion of the strengths model principles in the

HHS Department and community. Works in partnership and coordination both within the Behavioral Health

division and HHS Department, as well as with other community agencies to address issues such as Supported

Employment, homelessness, crisis, and criminaljustice involvement. Participates in crisis response and

intervention as part ofthe Behavioral Health on-call rotation. Functions as a part ofthe Behavioral Health Team

and Health and Human Services Department to plan integrated culturally competent and effective programs;

participates to ensure quality assurance and compliance with State and Federal Program regulations; provides

other duties as assigned.

EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS:

Ed u cation / Exp e rie nce :

MHSA Coordinotor li Must possess a Master's degree or Doctorate in social work, counseling or related field AND

must be eligible to be registered with the State of California as an intern to practice psychotherapy while pursuing

one of the following licenses:

Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW), Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist (LMFT), Licensed Practical Clinical

Counselor (LPCC), or Psychologist.

AND at least 5 years of progressively responsible clinical experience working in a behavioral health setting,

including experience working with persons with severe mental illness. Supervisory experience also preferred'

AND with the ability to achieve an Adult Residential Facility Administrator certification within 18 months of

employment.

MHSA Coordinqtor !l: The education and experience as listed under MHSA Coordinator I with the addition of at

least one year of experience in a residential treatment facility resulting in the ability to achieve an Adult Residential

Facility Administrator Certification within 6 months of employment.

Knowledae of:

MHSA Coordinotor l: Best practice recovery practices in stigma reduction and in the outreach, engagement and

consumer-driven services with persons with severe mental illness (SMl) as well as co-occurring disorders in a



system of care in the public sector; laws pertaining to confidentiality and care of persons with severe mental illness

including involuntary treatmenU billing and documentation standards; basic principles and practices of

supervision, peer mentoring and strengths leadership'

MHSA coordinotor ll:All of the above and best practices as related to Adult Residential Facilities and related

regulations.

Abilitv to:

MHSA Coordinator I: Effectively involve stakeholders and partners in the planning for MHSA; provide and direct

outreach and engagement of persons with severe mental illness and persons with co-occurring mental illness and

substance use disorders; implement effective strength-based, consumer-driven strategies as well as crisis

intervention; work cooperatively as part of a multidisciplinary and leadership team; provide training, coaching and

mentoring of staff; participate in staff performance evaluation and program outcomes and reporting;

communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing; model effective, professional conduct within one's

scope of practice and be proactive in identifying conflict of interest and other potential boundary issues;

participate and benefit from supervision and opportunities for growth and development; produce documentation

using an electronic health record; stand, walk, twist, and lift and carry 25 pounds; climb and descend stairs, use a

phone, drive a motor vehicle during any time of day/evening'

MHSA Coordinotor Il:All above and the ability to provide administrative oversight in compliance with the laws and

regulations for an Adult Residential Treatment facility'

Special requirements: Will be required to submit to yearly tuberculosis test. Must possess or obtain within six

months of employment a valid First Aid and CPR certification and maintain during term of employment' Must

possess a valid operator's license issued by the State Department of Motor Vehicles'



TICENSED MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES ACT (MHSA) COORDINATOR

DEFINITION: Under the general direction of the Behavioral Health Director, or her designee, will coordinate and
provide program services and oversight for the MHSA Plan as part of the Behavioral Health Division of the Health
and Human Services (HHS) Department.

ESSENTIAL JoB DUTIES: As part of the division leadership team, provides frontline program planning , oversight,
clinical direction, training, and evaluation for the MHSA and the Mental Health Block Grant (MHBG) programs.
Assists in the development of the MHSA and MHBG plans including a robust Stakeholder process and involvement.
Provides Progress House administrative back up commensurate with certification. lmplements MHSA Community
Services and Supports plans. This currently includes MHSA outreach, engagement and treatment services offered
though the wellness center sites, Progress House, and out into the community and First Episode psychosis program
offerings' Provides case assignment for case management services and includes training, coaching, and field
mentoring of staff. Provides clinical assessment and treatment planning to result in admissions as appropriate.
Provides documentation training and oversight to meet Medi-Cal standards for unlicensed staff. Ensures privacy
and scope of practice standards for assigned programs. Assists with the expansion of the strengths model
principles in the HHS Department and community. Works in partnership and coordination both within the
Behavioral Health division and HHS Department, as well as with other community agencies to address issues such
as Supported Employment, homelessness, crisis, and criminaljustice involvement. Participates in crisis response
and intervention as part of the Behavioral Health on-call rotation. Functions as a part of the Behavioral Health
Team and Health and Human Services Department to plan integrated culturally competent and effective programs;
participates to ensure quality assurance and compllance with State and Federal program regulations; provides
other duties as assigned.

EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS:

Education/Experience: Must possess a valid California license to practice psychotherapy*

*Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW), Licensed Marriage and FamilyTherapist (LMFT), Licensed practical Clinical
Counselor (LPCC), or Psychologist.

AND at least 5 years of progressively responsible clinical experience working in a behavioral health setting,
including experience with persons with a serious mental health condition. Supervisory experience also preferred.

AND the ability to achieve an Adult Residential Facility Administrator certification within 1g months of
employment.

Knowledqe of: Best practice recovery practices in stigma reduction and in the outreach, engagement and
consumer-driven services with persons with severe mental illness (SMl)as well as co-occurring disorders in a
system of care in the public sector; laws pertaining to confidentiality and care of persons with severe mental illness
including involuntary treatment; billing and documentation standards; basic principles and practices of
supervision, peer mentoring and strengths leadership.

Abilitv to: Effectively involve stakeholders and partners in the planning for MHSA; provide and direct outreach and
engagement of persons with severe mental illness and persons with co-occurring mental illness and substance use
disorders; implement effective strength-based, consumer-driven strategies as well as crisis intervention; work
cooperativelyaspartofamultidisciplinaryandleadership team;providetraining,coachingandmentoringofstaff;
participate in staff performance evaluation and program outcomes and reporting; communicate clearly and



concisely, both orally and in writing; model effective, professional conduct within one's scope of practice and be

proactive in identifying conflict of interest and other potential boundary issues; participate and benefit from

supervision and opportunities for growth and development; produce documentation using an electronic health

record; stand, walk, twist, and lift and carry 25 pounds; climb and descend stairs, use a phone, drive a motor

vehicle during any time of day/evening,

Special requirements: Will be required to submit to yearly tuberculosis test. Must possess or obtain within six

months of employment a valid First Aid and CPR certification and maintain during term of employment. Must

possess a valid operator's license issued by the State Department of Motor Vehicles.



AGENDA REQUEST F'ORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

AGENDA NUMBER

/'l
llconsent [l oepartmentat I Correspondence Action ! ernti" Hearing

fl s"n"ort"d Time for ! ctoseo Session -n tnformationat

FRoM: HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES - ESAAA/IC-GOLD

FORTHE BOARD MEETING OF: February 12,2OL9

SUBJECT: Request to change HHS authorized strength by deleting a B-Par Program Services Assistant (PSA) II
and adding a B-Par Assistant Human Services Supervisor pilot position, approve the Assistant Human Services
Supervisor job description and authorize the hiring of one B-Par Assistant Human Services Supervisor position
in the ESAAA/IC-GOLD programs.

DEPARTM E NTA L RECO M M EN DATION :

Request to approve an Assistant Human Services Supervisor position on a pilot basis, beginning January 1, 2018
through June 30, 2021 andbeyond, contingent upon funding, and including:

A) Approve the Assistant Human Services supervisor job description; and,
B) Change the Authorized Strength in the Health and Human Services ESAAA/IC-GOLD programs by:

1. Deleting one B-Par PSA II at Range 42pT ($12.75 - $15.52lh)
2. Adding one B-Par Assistant Human Services Supervisor at Range 65PT ($21.72 - $26.alhr);

C) Find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy:
1. The availability of funding for the requested position exists, as certified by the Health and Human

Services Director and concurred with by the County Administrator, and Auditor-Controller; and
2' Where internal candidates meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be

filled through an internal recruitment; however, an external recruitment would be more appropriate
to ensure qualified applicants apply; and

3. Approve the hiring of one B-Par Assistant Human Services Supervisor at Range 65PT ($2I.72 -
$26.41|hr.)

CAO RECOMMENDATION;

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
Existing law, as part of the Mello-Granlund Older Californians Act, established the Offrce of the State Long-Term
Care Ombudsman, under the direction of the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman, in the California Department of
Aging (CDA). The Long Term Care Ombudsman Program (LTCOP) assists elderly persons in long-term health care
facilities and residential care facilities by, among other things, investigating and seeking to resolve complaints
against these facilities. The LTCOP is funded through the CDA, which allocates federal and state funds according to
a specified distribution formula. The funding formulary previously ensured a base funding of $35,000 for the
LTCOP in Inyo and Mono counties.

Effective June 27,2018, Welfare and Institutions Code 9719.5 was amended as follows (changing the base



allocation from $35,000 to $100,000):
97 19 '5 .(a) ( 1 ) The department shall allocate all federal and state funds for local ombudsman programs according to
the following distribution, but shall not allocate less than one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) per fiscal year.
(2) After the base allocation, remaining funds shall be distributed in accordance with subdivision (b).
(b) (l) Fifty percent of the funds shall be allocated to each local program based on the number of facilities served by
the program in proportion to the total number of facilities in the state.
(2) Forty percent of the funds shall be allocated based on the number of beds within the local program's area of
service in proportion to the total number of beds in the state.
(3) Ten percent of the funds shall be allocated based on the total square miles within each local program's area of
service in proportion to the total number of square miles in the state.

The Long-Term Care Ombudsman Program (LTCOP) works to resolve problems related to the health, safety,
welfare, and rights of individuals who live in Long-Term Care (LTC) facilities (i.e. nursing homes, board and care,
assisted living, and other residential care communities). LTC Ombudsman regularly advocate for improvements in
resident care and work to improve their quality of life.

With the increase in LTCOP base allocation funding, the Department has the opportunity to look at ways to support
and improve the existing local LTCOP as well as combining funding sources to further support our senior services
program. Our LTC Ombudsman works out of our Bishop Senior Center where the position also provides oversight
to the facility as the Site Coordinator. Currently the Bishop Senior Center has a vacant part-time Program Services
Assistant (PSA) position that we are proposing to eliminate and replace with a newly authorized Assistant Human
Services Supervisor position.

The deletion ofthe PSA position and the establishment and hiring ofthe Assistant Human Services Supervisor will
allow the Department to better serve the needs of both the Ombudsman program and the senior center by
establishing a position that can provide needed administrative and program relief to the Human Services Supervisor
overseeing the LTCOP. The proposed position will be able to assist in meeting all ofthe investigative and advocacy
duties of the program, including required site visits in Lone Pine and Bishop, as well as the associated data and
statistical reporting that is required. The proposed Assistant Human Services Supervisor will also provide support to
the daily operations of the Senior Center site by providing offrce coverage, assisting with special activities and
coverage during staff shortages.

The Department is respectfully requesting authorization to move forward with the Assistant Human Services
Supervisor pilot position and request your approval to change the authorized strength by deleting one B-Par PSA II
and adding one B-Par Assistant Human Services Supervisor in the HHS ESAAA/IC-GOLD programs. The
Department also respectfully requests your Board approve the proposed job description and authorize the department
to recruit and hire an Assistant Human Services Supervisor.

ALTERNATIVES:
The Board could choose not to hire the Assistant Human Services Supervisor position which would not allow
the Department to take advantage of additional Long-Term Care Ombudsman funding and would impact the
Bishop Senior Programs' ability to ensure adequate coverage of the Bishop Senior Site as well as administrative
support and services provided through the Long-Term Care Ombudsman program, especially during periods of
staff absences. This may lead to higher costs for the ESAAA/IC-GOLD programs if absences are covered by
higher paid staff andlor staff who have to travel from one site to the other in order to provide coverage as well as
a possible delay in responding to investigative and data entry needs.

OTH ER AGENCY INVOLVEM ENT:
None



FIITAITCING;
State and Federal funds. This position will be paid 100%in the ESAJM Budget (683000) inthe Salary and Benefits
object category. No County General Funds.

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS' CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Musfbe
reviewed and approved by Coun| Counsel prior to submission to the Board Cterk.)

Approved: _ Date:

AUDITO R: RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the Auditor/Controtter pfiot to

Approved Date:

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND
submlssrbn to the Board Clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

Approved:

priot toTED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the Director of Personnel SerylcesPERSONNEL
submission to

BUDGET OFFICER:
\

RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the Budget Officer prior to submission to the

Date:Approved:

v
BUDGETAND
Board Clerk.)

DEPA RTM ENT H EA D SIG NATU RE :
(Not to be signed until all approvals are received) Date n

jtu1



INYo CoUNTY
PnnsoNNrr, SERvrcEs
P. O. Box 249
INnrpnnrrncE, CA 93526

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
(WOMEN, MINORITIES, AND DISABLED ARE ENCOURAGED TO APPLY)

ANNOLINCES AN OPEN COUNTY FOR:

ASSISTANT HUMAN SERVICES SUPERVISOR _ PART TIME
(ESAAA/I.C.-GOLD & LTC Ombudsman program)

(760) 878-0377
FAX (760) 872-2712

DEPARTMENT:
LOCATION:
SALARY:

Health and Human Services
Countywide
Range PT65 $21 .72 - $26.41lhour*

*BENEFITS: Will receive benefits provided by ICEA-represented BPAR-category employees as documented in the Memorandum of
Understanding.

DEFINITION:
Under supervision, assists in the coordination and direction of aging programs for residents of Long-
Term Care Facilities, as well as for services provided at Senior Centers to aging participants. programs
include nutrition, outreach, escort, information and referral, community, in-home, and LTC
Ombudsman advocacy. Provides leadership in the absence of the Human Services Supervisor
overseeing Senior Centers andlor the LTC Ombudsman.

ESSENTIAL JOB DUTIES:

Incumbents in the Assistant Human Services Supervisor classification receive direct supervision
from a Human Services Supervisor, or higher-level supervisor or manager. The Assistant
Human Services Supervisor provides general office support including fielding phone calls,
greeting members of the public, and answering questions appropriately; maintains records and
logs; signs in meal guests daily and prepares meal counts. Assists the Human Services
Supervisor who acts as the Site Coordinator in maintaining various statistical reports and
individual case files; counts and deposits all program income for the Nutrition Program and
other services at the designated arca/site; maintains appropriate receipts/documentation of all
transactions; organizes social activities; coordinates and helps to develop plans to stimulate
community interest and involvement in the senior program; and identifies and supports
volunteers. Duties also include participation in meetings and trainings as directed; following
applicable federal, state and local regulations; maintaining compliance with LTC Ombudsman
certification requirements; performing LTC Ombudsman program functions, and other duties
as assigned. LTC Ombudsman functions include administrative and office duties such as
ordering supplies, filing, data entry, and report preparation; acting in the capacity of an LTC
Ombudsman, promoting and protecting the rights, dignity, safety, and quality of life of residents
in long- term care facilities; assisting residents to address and resolve issues to their satisfaction;
promoting communication between parties who may disagree; supporting both resident rights as
well as the sincere effort of providers who wish to deliver high quality care in their facilities;



visiting with residents, identifiiing complaints and concerns; Educating residents about their
rights, community services available to them, laws, regulations and standards goveming LTC
facilities; and receiving and responding to reports of suspected elder/dependent adult abuse as
directed by the LTC Ombudsman.

EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS
Education/Experience :

EITHER:

Pattern 1: Graduation from an accredited four year college or university;

OR

Pattern 2: Successful completion of thirty (30) college semester units from an accredited college or
university, including fifteen (15) semester or twenty-two (22) quarter units in social *eif*",
social/human services, psychology, sociology, or other social or behavioral science or related field

and;

One (1) year of full-time experience performing duties comparable to the Human Services Specialist
IV classification.

OR

Pattern 3: Equivalent to completion of two years of college, including fifteen (15) semester or twenty-
two (22) quarter units in social welfare, sociallhuman services, psychology, sociology, or other social
or behavioral science or related field

and;

Two (2) years of full-time experience performing paraprofessional* duties comparable to a Human
Services Specialist III classification OR Two (2) years of full-time experience in a public or private
Health and Human Services agency providing services to disadvantaged adults and/or children

*Paraprofessional is defined as a person trained to assist a professional (including but not limited to social workers, therapists, doctors,
teachers, and lawyers), but is not licensed to independently practice in the profession.

Knowledse of:

o The social, medical, economic and recreational needs and concerns regarding the senior
population

. Types of activities suited to the senior population
o Health and social care systems, cofilmunity agencies and organizations that provide services to

the senior population
o Evaluation and assessment methods
o The principles of Federal and State regulations governing programs for the aged
o Computer applications such as spreadsheets, word processing, e-mail, and database software



Office procedures, filing techniques, business methods, operation of office equipment,
including telephone, copier, agency computer programs, and the internet
Effective communication skills both orally and in writing

Abilitv to

o Successfully complete the 36-hour State Certified Long Term Care Ombudsman
Training and post training mentored facility visits within 6 months of employment.

o Complete 12 hours of additional training annually to retain certification.
o Be sensitivity to the human situation as related to the aging process
o Be objective and impartial when documenting discussing and reporting complaints and

concerns
o And willingness to follow complaints to conclusion
o Maintain client confidentiality in investigation and casework
o Receive and respond to inquiries and complaints made by or on behalf of residents in

long-term care facilities
o Develop professional relationship with personnel in long-term care facilities through

regular visits to assigned facilities
o Maintain documentation and submit required reports in a timely manner.
. Apply effective interpersonal skills
o Develop and maintain effective working relationships with agency staff, clients, and outside

organizations
o Maintain confidentiality in accordance with legal standards andlor county regulations
o Use computers and related software
o Encourage self -advocacy and interaction between residents, staff and community

including resident councils and family support groups
o Be flexible and adjust work schedule and daily duties to meet the needs of the program

Tvpical Phvsical Requirements: While performing the essential functions of this job class, the
employee is regularly required to: use hands and fingers to operate a vehicle and a va-riety of office
equipment; possess flexibility and endurance to sit, stand, walk, bend, squat, climb, kneel, twist, and
reach; talk and hear clearly and concisely to communicate with general public, clients, supervisors,
and fellow employees on a continuous basis; regularly lift andior carry and/or move objects weighing
up to 10 pounds, and occasionally lift andlor carry andlor move objects up to 50 lbs.

Tvoical Working Conditions:
Assigned work is performed in an office, in client homes, in Long-Term Care Facilities and
occasionally in the outdoor environment. The successful applicant will have continuous contact with
clients, County staff, management, general public and outside organizations/agencies.

SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS: Must be able to travel, either alone or with clients, within Inyo
County routinely in the course of work, and occasionally travel outside Inyo County in the course of
work; will be required to work flexible hours including evenings on some occasions; must possess a
valid California driver's license; must successfully complete pre-employment ba-kground
investigation and submit and successfully complete a Live Scan fingerprinting background check.
Within 6 months of employment, successful completion of the 36-hour State Certified Long Term
Care Ombudsman Training and post training mentored facility visits. Consistent attendance is an
essential function of the position.

a

a



Note: Ombudsman staff and volunteers are by law, prohibited from employment in a long term care facility in the past 12 month or from
having any financial interest in a long term care facility during the time they are acting in an ombudsman capacity. 

-

SELECTION: Selection procedures will be determined by the number and qualifications of
applicants, and may include a qualification screening, written examination, and oral examination.

APPLICATION: Applications must be received in the
249,lndependence, CA 93526, no later than 5:00 p.m. on
Must apply on Inyo County application form. Applications
application with original signature must be received also.

Inyo County Personnel Office, P.O. Box
not accepted).

may be faxed to meet deadline-original

THIS RECRUITMENT WILL ESTABLISH AN ELIGIBILITY LIST THAT MAY BE USED FOR ONE YEAR IN
FILLING COUNTYWIDE VACANCIES THAT MAY OCCUR IN THIS JOB CLASSIF'ICATION AND SALARY
RANGE.

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH QUALIFYING DISABILITIES: Reasonable
efforts will be made in the examination process on a case-by-case basis to accommodate persons with disabilities. If you
have special needs, please contact (760) 878-0377 prior to the examination process.

CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS: Inyo County employs only U.S. citizens and lawfully authorized non-
citizens in accordance with the Immigration Reform and control Act of 19g6.

The County of Inyo has work sites located throughout the Owens Valley (Independence, Bishop, Lone pine, Big pine, and
Olancha) and the Death Valley area (Death Valley, Tecopa, and Shoshone). Additionally, thi County of Inyo has work
sites located in Mono County. Positions are assigned to a work site based upon the needs of the County. posiiions may be
temporarily or permanently reassigned to another work site as deemed necessary by the Department Head.



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NAMBER

t5
Tconsent XDepartmental
! s"n"ort"d rime for

Correspondence Action

Closed Session

Public Hearing

lnformational

FROM: HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES - Social Services

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: February tzt 2OI9

SUBJECT: Request to change the HHS authorized strength by deleting one Human Services Supervisor (Range
70) position and one Integrated Case Worker I (Range 60) position and adding one Program Manager (Range
74) position; and authorize the hiring of one Program Manager position in the Aging and Social Services
Division.

D E PA RTM E N TA L RECO M M E N DATIO N :

Request your Board:
A) Change the Authorized Strength in the Health and Human Services, Aging and Social Services Division by:

1. Deleting one Human Services Supervisor at Range 70 ($4,569 - $5,557)
2. Deleting one Integrated Case Worker I at Range 60 ($3,612 - $4,387)
3. Adding one Program Manager at Range 74 ($5,02I - $6,103); and

B) Find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy:
1. The availability of funding for the requested position exists, as certified by the Health and Human

Services Director and concurred with by the County Administrator, and Auditor-Controller; and
2. Where internal candidates meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be

filled through an internal recruitment; however, an external recruitment would be more appropriate
to ensure qualified applicants apply; and

3. Approve the hiring of one Program Manager at Range 74 (55,021- $6,103); and
4. If an internal candidate is hired into the Program Manager position, authorize HHS to backfill the

resulting vacancy.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
The Department brings forth this request as a result of the need to provide the Employment and Eligibility Program
with direct managerial level support and oversight. Managerial oversight to the Employrnent and Eligibility
Program was historically provided by a Deputy Director level employee until approximately 2008. At that time the
management position providing oversight was eliminated and the program placed under the oversight ofthe Deputy
Director of Adult and Children's Social Services. This was one of the Department's earlier efforts towards "seryice
redesign" and resulted in the Deputy Director providing oversight to this program, as well as IHSS, Adult Protective
Services and Child Protective Services. However, shortly after making this change, your Board took action to move
the Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA), formerly Inyo Mono Area Agency on Aging (IMAAA), under
the umbrella of Health and Human Services. This resulted in a significant increase in administrative and
management responsibilities for the Deputy Director of Aging and Social Services, who now oversees the largest
portion of our Department's workforce, which have increased over the last few years with the implementation of the
Continuum of Care (COC) in child welfare and changes in programs such as IHSS and APS. During the next year,



the state will be implernenting an outcomes and Accountability Rcview program (CaloARS) as part of a system
imptovement assessment and planning process for our Employnent and niligibility program*, Thi* wiu furthsr
increase the adrninistrative burden for the Deputy Direotor of tfris Division, whici doe* not currently have any
program lnanager level sr"rpport pr:sitions.

The proposed Program Manager would be able to provide much needsd administrative support for our Employment
& Eligibility Program and would allow the Department to bettermeet the wide range of teohnical requiremc'ts and
changes in this program. Ihe Program Manager will serve a leaciership role in setting stanclards for technical, legal,
and regulatory compliance as well as identiffing the strengths and weaknesses of the program and'make
recommendations on policies, proiedures, staffing and organizational changes. The Program Manager will also take
the lead on special projects, including the assessment ancl plan developmeni for system improvements, and serve as
an internal technical expert regarding proglam matters byproviding consultation an<l guidancc to staffl suborciinatc
supervisors, managers, executive managemen| or the Director.

'fhe Department is respectfully requesting your Board's approval to change the authorized strength by deleting a
vacant lluman Services Supervisor position and a vacant Integratecl Case 'iy'orker I position anrl adding a program
Manager position' The Departntent is also respectfully requesting that your Board upproo* the progra}r tvfarioger
job description and authoriz.e thc Department to hire one Prograru Manager position in the Aging and Sociat
Services Division' In addition, should the Program Manager positinn Uc nfett by an internui ,i,rdid*t*, th"
Department respectfully requests authorization to recruit and hire to fill the resultingvacancy^

ALrEnNATrIVElifl;
Your Board could choose not to authorize HSS to hire the Program Manager position. This would result in the
Department continuing with its cuffent staffing stiucture and a continued neecl fbr additjonal leadership for the
ever changing regulatory and technical requirements of the division, which could lead to increased Error rates
and audit exceptions.

Qr#Ffr 4:6F"1{€,Y INrt'QIw" If" Nr;
None

EINANCI{vGt
State, Fcderal, and Social Services Realignment funds. This position will be paid 100% i1 the S6cial Services
Budget (055800) in the Salary and Ilenefits object categories. No County General Funds.

T'EPA R TM ETY T fl EA D STGNA{I,I* E;

A9COUNTINGTFINAI{CE AND RELAIc O tTeMS (Must ba rcvie'ilad and apryoved by the
subm,ssrbn to lhe Baafi Cleft.) ^'5"/',f'[),'),

Date:Approved:

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

\

AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewer) and lhs Okector of persoorsl Ssryices pfibr lo
to the

1Approved. a
BUDGET OFFICER; BU0GET AND RELATED ITElilS lMust be reviewed and apToved by lhe Eudge{ Officet priot to srrn!:ssrur to ,re

Board Clar4.)

Approved: Date:

(ilot to be signed until all aFprovals are received) fuhL-"- o^r.*h(t? -



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

XConsent !Departmental lCorrespondenceAction

n Scheduled Time for n Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

llo
! Public Hearing

n lnformational

FRoMr Clint G. Quilter, County Administrator
BY: Darcy Ellis, Assistant Clerk of the Board

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: f,ebruary 12,2019

SUBJECT: Approvalof Legislative Platform and Priorities

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATION: Request Board approve the "lnyo County, CA 2019 Legislative
Platform and Priorities" document.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION: ln June 2018, your Board contracted with The Ferguson Group, LLC for the provision of
Federal Advocacy Services on behalf of the County. As part of this service, The Ferguson Group has developed for lnyo
County a document outlining its federal legislative priorities and platform for 2019. The Legislative Platform portion of the
document was produced by County staff and department heads following a comprehensive in-house review of the
existing platform in fall of 2018, as well as subsequent, additional changes and updates directed by your Board. The
Legislative Priorities were identified by Kristi More of The Ferguson Group through a series of meetings Ms. More held
with department heads and members of the Board in October, and further refined and distilled into four main categories in
follow-up discussions with the CAO.

Ms. More presented the priorities and platform as a combined, draft document for your review on February 5,2019, at
which time your Board directed one addition: language to the cannabis item under the "Land Management" priority
category which recognizes support for banking in the cannabis industry. The change was added, as instructed, and now
your Board is asked to approve the "lnyo County, CA 2019 Legislative Platform and Priorities."

ALTERNATIWS: Your Board could decide not to approve the Legislative Platform and Priorities, or delay a vote, but
neither option is recommended as the document will become an important tool in The Ferguson Group's arsenal as it
advocates on behalf of lnyo County this Federal Fiscal Year.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT: NI 

^
FINANCING: NIA

DEPARTMENT H EAD SIG N ATU RE: ANxi

COUNTY COUNSEL:

N/A

AGREEMENTS, CONTMCTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to subrnlssrbn to the board clerk.)

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller prior to
submr.ssion to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to
submrsslon to the board clerk.)

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are )n-n



, -.:,i::'i:i c+' :' ;:::. ' :' I

'f.r.

,i+]j,

lnyo County, CA 2019
Federal Legislative Platform and
Priorities
Approved by Board of Supervisors on XXX



County of lnyo

Board of Supervisors

Dan Totheroh

First District

Jeff Griffiths

Second District

Rick Pucci

Third District

MarkTillemans

Fourth District

Matt Kingsley

Fifth District

Cou nty Adm in istrative Center
224 North Edwards

lndependence, CA 93526



County of lnyo, CA

20L9 Federa l Priorities

tc !F'rF

Rural Communites

Economic Development
I

i:

a:

il

Land Management

lnf rastructu re



Rural Communities

lsolated
Comm unities

Seek funding and support programs that provide services to isolated communities
including construction of community facilities.

Connectivity Seek funding and support programs to provide communication infrastructure,
including broadband and cellular services to remote rural communities.

Health and
Well Being

Seek funding and support programs to improve access to health services including
mental health, emergency services, community health clinics, and hospitals.

Emergency
Response

Support and seek funding for projects and programs that support emergency and
d isaster preapa rendess, response a nd management.

Public Safety Support funding and programs for public safety initatives including search and rescue
activities, law enforcment communications, and public safety equipment.

Fife PfOtegtiOn Seek funding and support programs for fire protection enhancements including
ensuring community access to fire stations and fire fighting services.

Community
Facilities

Support funding and programs for the construction and programming of projects
for community museums and libraries.

DRAFT



Economic Development

Opportunity
Zones

Support development of plan and strategy to encourage private investement in
public infrastructure projects through programs such as the Opportunity Zone
private tax incentives.

U.S. Census Monitor U.S. Census development process in particular to definitions and impacts to
rural communities.

Digital 395 Support development, expansion, and implementation of Digital 395 broadband
deployment project to businesses and end users.

Bishop Airport Support development and expansion of Bishop Airport to increase services of
commercial and general aviation uses that support and spur regional economic
development.

Housing Advocate and support initiatives and programs that provide additional housing and
encourages diversity in housing avaiability in the county.

Tourism Support programs and activities that enhance and protect tourism in the region

DRAFT



La nd Ma nagement

PILT Funding Support legislation and budget efforts that continue to maximize the Payment in Lieu

of Taxes (PILT) and Secure Rural Schools (SRS) programs.

Fuels
Management

Support programs that enhance fuel management activities on federal lands.

Federal Lands
Management

Support funding for federal lands management agencies and programs

Wildfire
Preparedness

Support programs that help prevent, mitigate, and respond to wildfires

Recreation Seek funding and support programs that protect and enhance recreational activities
on public lands.

lnyo National
Forest Plan

Support efforts that foster partnerships and enhance relationships with local
agencies and the lnyo National Forest.

Mining
lndustry

Seek support of changes to mining claims forms that allow for efficient and timely
filing of mining claims.

Support administrative and regulatory procedures, including banking, related to
the cannabis industry that protect local authority and protect the public.

Cannabis

DRAFT



lnfrastructure

Drinking
Water

Seek funding and support programs that delivery reliable and clean drinking water
through resilient infrastructure.

Wastewater
lnfrastructure

Seek funding and support programs that provide wastewater treatment
infrastructure and services to communities in a cost efficient matter,

Local
Transportation
Projects

Seek funding and suppport programs for local transportation projects throughout
the County.

Environmental
Review and
Project
Delivery

Support changes to federal law that encourage a more efficient and streamlined
environmental review and project delivery process and allow public infrastruture
projects to be constructed more efficiently and effectively.

DRAFT



County of lnyo, California
2019 Legislative Platform

AG RICU LTU RE/WEIGHTS & M EASU RES

1. Suppodfull cost recovery for new agricultural programs.

2. Support continued funding of weed management programs.

3. Support authority for USDA to set up cooperative agreements with states for pest exclusion programs.

+ Support control and mitigation for the spread of invasive species to protect, conserve and restore pub-

lic and private lands.

5. Support efforts to provide and protect local authority for device registration fees.

6. Oppose efforts by State agencies to usurp Agricultural Commissioner's permitting authority for the
spraying of pesticides on irrigated lands.

7. Oppose efforts to ban the use of rodenticide for agricultural and public health purposes in California.

CANNABIS

1. Oppose legislation that would diminish local authority over commercial cannabis regulation.

2. Support legislation that provides the state's tribes a mechanism for entering California's legal cannabis
marketplace without sacrificing their sovereign status, while also preserving local governments' right to
protect against or require mitigation for associated impacts to their jurisdictions from any commercial
cannabis activity on adjacent lands, including Tribal land.

3. Support a statewide regulatory scheme for medical cannabis and/or adult use cannabis that ensures
counties have the ability to set regulatory standards based on local needs and priorities, and seek to
ensure the County is adequately resourced as regulations and state laws are implemented.

4. Support efforts to study the impacts of cannabis use and legalization on the public's health, particularly
on the impacts on youth brain development.

DRAFT



5. Support legislation to increase cannabis surveillance, education, youth prevention, responsible adult
use, and drugged driving prevention.

6. Support efforts to mitigate community level harms from commercial cannabis operations, such as over-
concentration as well as clustering with alcohol and tobacco retailers.

7. Support continued Federal and State funding to aid localjurisdictions in the eradication of illegal, envi-
ronmentally destructive marijuana grow operations on public and/or private land.

8. Monitor legislation establishing policy programming requirements for education and environmental pre-

vention efforts for Cannabis.

9. Oppose policy programming requirements for education and environmental prevention efforts for Can-
nabis Tobacco Control funding that mirror those established for Tobacco Control funding.

CHILD SUPPORT

1 . Support legislation that would protect existing State and Federal funding for local child support pro-

grams.

2. Support policies, funding and services for non-custodial parents that promote self-sufficiency and abil-
ity to care for their child(ren).

3. Oppose any recommendations that would reduce Federalfinancial participation in child support pro-

grams.

COUNTY OPERATIONS

1. Suppod full funding of the Public Library Fund in future State budgets.

2. Support legislation to provide opt-in as opposed to opt-out for receiving electronic sample ballots.

3. Support legislation that requires counties to be reimbursed for the cost of special elections called by

the Governor or Legislature.

4. Support efforts to reinstate language directing the state to provide reimbursement to counties that hold

a special election to replace a member of Congress or a member of the state Legislature to fill a va-
cancy, as well as for the cost of special elections called for other reasons.

5. Support legislation that would authorize Federal and State Governments to assist counties in the pur-

chase of voting equipment and technology.

6. Suppor{the continued exemption of rural counties from Organics Recycling Mandates.

7. Support legislation that provides additional State park funding to rural counties.

DRAFT



8. Support legislation that requires the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery to consider the
impacts on jurisdictions and their waste diversion programs caused by China's restrictions on imported
recyclables and the resulting market loss.

9. Support legislation, such as the California Beverage Container Recycling and Litter Reduction Act of
2018, to stabilize the recycling marketplace, provide immediate, temporary relief to California's retailers
and grocers affected by the 2016 recycling center closures, and ensure consumers have local redemp-
tion opportunities.

10. Support legislation that provides the option for rural counties to conduct elections via "Vote by Mail."

11. Support legislation that expands the ability of counties to conduct all of their elections via all-mail baL
loting.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

1 . Support legislation that realigns governmental services in such a manner as to improve the delivery of
services and make government more accountable to the people of lnyo County.

2. Support legislation that raises standards of required training for elected and appointed department
heads in areas such as finance, personnel and management.

3. Support collective bargaining legislation that:

o Recognizes the responsibility of local elected officials to govern and manage the organization and
to implement public policy; and

. Minimizes conflict over procedural matters.

4. Support legislation that recognizes the inherent disadvantage ruralcounties have as it applies to using

a population-based criteria (per capita) for allocating State and Federalfunds and minimizes and/or
eliminates the reliance on this funding criteria.

5. Oppose legislation that minimizes, restricts and/or eliminates local Boards of Supervisors control over
collective bargaining and employer-employee relations.

6. Oppose legislation that minimizes, restricts andior eliminates local Boards of Supervisors control over
the allocation of funds through the budget process.

7. Oppose legislation that would require counties to share State expenses and liability on projects outside
local jurisdiction.

8. Support legislation that reduces State and Federal regulations that impede, or increase the cost of the
delivery of services by local governments and special districts.

9. Monitor closely any legislative efforts/initiatives regarding reform of the State Budget process.

10. Oppose legislation that is unduly burdensome to private industry.

11. Support protection of funding discretion and use bond funds.

DRAFT



12. Oppose efforts by Federal and State government to adversely impact the ability of Volunteer Fire De-
partments to provide critical first response and ambulance services in rural communities, including but
not limited to recruiting and retaining qualified EMTs.

13. Support broadband expansion, broadband adoption, telecommunications improvements, technology
infrastructure projects, and other technology advancements.

14. Support full funding of disaster relief for all eligible counties, and a return to State assistance for the
large portion of the costs of state or federally declared disasters.

15. Oppose any changes to, or limitations upon, the eligibility for receipt of disaster costs, especially tying

county land use processes and decision-making to disaster relief funding.

16. Support State tax relief for those individuals and businesses who have losses due to disaster.

17 . Support legislation that would allow "a contracting agency and the exclusive representative of employees
of that agency to agree through collective bargaining that the employer contribution for employee and an-
nuitant health benefits coverage for employees first hired on or after the effective date of a memorandum
of understanding may differ from the employer contribution provided to existing employees and annuitants
pursuant to Sections 22890 and 22892" and any other legislation that will permit the County to take ad-
vantage of a multi-tier benefit package through Public Employees Retirement System (PERS).

18. Oppose legislation that would hinder, as a result of mandated redactions or any other alterations of
recorded documents, a private citizen's ability to establish ownership of real property or conduct private

or commercial business operations.

19. Oppose legislation that eliminates, diminishes, limits, or interferes with the nonprofit organizations that
the County has membership in, i.e., the California State Association of Counties (CSAC), Rural County
Representatives of California (RCRC), State Sheriffs Association, Chief Probation Officers Association,
State Welfare Directors Association, etc., in actively participating in the legislative and ballot measure
processes. (Added by Board Order 8-20-13)

20. Oppose legislation that increases the County's exposure to litigation.

21 . Oppose legislation that removes local governments' discretion over wireless structures or restricts such
discretion to the point that it could negatively impact rural communities' aesthetics, public safety, the
environment, and property values, and/or prevent local governments from negotiating either rates or
improved broadband services as a condition of a "small cell" permit.

22. Support legislation and regulations that preserve - and do not impair - the ability of counties to provide

public health, safety, welfare or environmental services by local government.

23. Support expanded permission to use private contracts to provide local services in justifiable areas as a
means of achieving efficiency and economy.

DRAFT



H EALTH AN D H U MAN SERVICES

1 . Monitor State and Federal health care reform proposals with fiscal impacts to the County and private

employers and citizens, and that limit, reduce or discontinue health care coverage for lnyo County resi-
dents.

2. Monitor the California Children's Services program and seek protections against increased county pro-
gram costs.

3. Monitor legislation that funds pilot efforts in MediCal payment reform to result in whole person care
and fully integrated behavioral health and health services.

4. Monitor legislation to address opioid addiction, including the expansion of Medication Assisted Treat
ment and allows for Medicaid reimbursement in the jail setting.

5. Monitor legislation to change the definition of "gravely disabled" and to clarify Welfare and lnstitutions
code 5150.

6. Monitor State and Federal health care proposals with fiscal impacts to the County and private employ-
ers

7. Monitorlhe County Medical Services Program (CMSP) program and Suppod efforts to protect fund-
ing, minimize the participation fee paid by counties, and sustain reasonable reimbursement rates to
providers in an effort to retain them in small counties. (Ensure CMSP infrastructure is maintained in

event unknown health care policy changes occur at Federal level.)

8. Monitor legislation that further mandates increased benefitsisalaries for the local ln-Home Support Ser-
vices Program (IHSS) that are not covered by the State.

9. Monitor policy and legislative initiatives involving managed Medi-Calto ensure rural, isolated counties
medical caregiver capacity issues are not negatively impacted.

10. Monitor the implementation of simplifying Medi-Cal and enrollment for participants and providers.

11. Support blended funding across human service programs, i.e. non-categorical.

12. Support legislation that allows maximum local flexibility to design human services programs, based on
the needs of the communities served.

13. Support increased allocation of subsidized childcare funding.

14. Support legislation and local, State, and Federal programs that employ evidence-based best practice

strategies to reduce the number of people experiencing homelessness by: preventing homelessness for
those at risk; expanding affordable permanent housing; and promoting self-empowerment through
counseling, job training, and other supportive services.

15. Support funding of affordable short-term, transitional and permanent housing capacity.

16. Support legislation that supports parity of funding for behavioral health issues, ensuring that both men-

tal health and substance use disorder treatment are funded on par with physical health treatment
needs.

DRAFT



17. Support legislation that provides or increases a minimum base allocation (MBA) to small counties to
sustain treatment for alcohol and drug addiction.

18. Support legislation that addresses behavioral health workforce needs, as statewide agencies are chal-
lenged in meeting treatment capacity in both Mental Health and Substance Use Disorder treatment pro-

viders. This would include legislation such as Peer (someone with lived experience) Certification (SB

906); Mental Health workforce planning (A82108), which expands the persons eligible for educational
loan repayment program; and Substance Use workforce expansion (A82804), which creates one-year
and five-year plans to expand the SUD treatment workforce with incentives like stipends and loan re-
payment programs for counselors, peers and licensed professionals.

19. Support legislation that reduces administrative burden for small counties and allows for flexibility such
as regionalization of administrative tasks.

20. Support legislation that increases use of telehealth for Drug Medi-Calservices.

21. Support the Stepping Up lnitiative and legislation that diverts persons with mental illness from the crim-
inaljustice system.

22. Support legislation that increases the transparency and consistency of financial reporting for the Men-
tal Health Services Act.

23. Support legislation to fund suicide prevention efforts, including those targeted at youth, LGBTQ and
Veterans.

24. Support legislation to build on Continuum of Care Reform to address foster youth crisis response.

25. Support legislation that promotes service integration, such as development of automated, central sta-
tistical case records for all human service programs and information sharing across human service pro-
grams.

26. Support legislation that allows for funding allocations to have increased local control and flexibility to
design human services programs based on the needs of the communities served.

27. Support and advocate for any "new" funding to have a base allocation formula for the Twenty Small
Counties.

28. Support and advocate for State to fully fund the administrative costs associated with all state man-
dated programs (e.9., Child Welfare, Medi-Cal, Public Assistance).

29. Support legislation that fully funds the requirements of the Continuum of Care Reform (CCR) including

Resource Family Approval, Level of Care Assessments, Child and Family Team Meetings and other
services that protect the physical, emotional and mental health of children and youth; promote their ed-
ucational development, and ensure the availability of support services for juveniles.

30. Suppod legislation and budget initiatives that recognize the growth of needs in our aging population,

including increased funding to support Adult Protective Services and other aging services programs.

31. Support legislation that revamps ln Home Supportive Services in a manner that reduces fiscal and ad-
ministrative impact on counties and reduces risk of fraud/abuse.

32. Support legislation that consolidates State offices providing administrative oversight, or othenruise

streamlines and/or reduces the administrative costs of Health and Human Services programs.

DRAFT



33. Supporf and protect funding for public health mandates, and advocate for maintaining sufficient health
realignment funding to ensure that lnyo County has the resources to meet its obligation to fulfill its stat-
utory public health and indigent health care mandates.

34. Support measures that enhance the communities' ability to deliver services through their hospitals and
clinics; favor proposals that would provide for the continued expansion of community Federally Quali-
fied Health Clinics (FQHCS).

35. Support efforts to make and retain State or Federal financial participation available in the funding of
medical facilities and medical care for inmates in county correctional facilities that were realigned to
counties on October 1,2011.

36. Support increased and flexible State and Federalfunding and resources directed at building the capac-
ity of local public health departments to combat and control communicable diseases.

37 . Support proposals to expand access to dental health services for low-income Californians, including
efforts to increase Denti-Cal reimbursement levels to encourage qualified dentists to participate in

providing care to low-income children.

38. Supporf strategies to streamline funding and program complexities of the California Children's Ser-
vices (CCS) program in order to meet the demands of the complex medical care and treatment needs
for children with certain physically disabling conditions.

39. Suppott opportunities to "realign" county share of cost for the California Children's Services (CCS) pro-
gram back to the State.

40. Support and advocate for changes to laws and regulations governing prehospital emergency medical
services, including ambulance services, that would increase the ability of volunteer EMS services to
attract and retain qualified EMS staff.

41. Support fair and equitable funding to local health departments for public health emergency prepared-

ness (PHEP), ensuring there is a base level available for rural counties, and Oppose any funding re-
ductions for PHEP at the federal level, as well as any efforts to shift program costs to local health de-
partments.

42. Support efforts to prevent or reduce the use of tobacco and its accompanying health and economic
impacts on the state and its residents.

43. Oppose any efforts to require counties to provide funding for the California Children's Services pro-
gram beyond their Maintenance of Effort (MOE).

44. Oppose any efforts to reduce funding to lnyo First 5 on the assumption that the First 5 commission will
fill the revenue gap created by the withdrawal of State fundS (i.e., supplantation).

45. Oppose further Medicaid/Medi-Cal reductions at either the Federal or State levelwithout data-driven
analysis and advocate for sufficient resources provided to localjurisdictions to respond to changes in

the health care landscape at the federal and state levels.

46. Opposeproposals from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), Congress, or the Leg-
islature to deny, reduce, cap, or eliminate Medi-CalAdministrative Activitiesffargeted Case Manage-
ment reimbursement or to make claiming more reimbursements administratively burdensome.

DRAFT



47 . Oppose legislation that further mandates increased employee benefits/salaries for the local ln-Home
Support Services Program (IHSS) that are not covered by the State.

48. Opposes legislative "fixes" to the Maintenance of Effort costs for ln-Home Support Services Program
that cause negative budget impacts to other Health and Human Services programming (Social Ser-
vices, Health and Behavioral Health) does not experience negative budget impacts.

49. Oppose efforts that create disincentives to Medi-Cal enrollment and utilization, such as co-payments
and premiums, seek ways to expand access to dental services, maximize Federalfinancial participation

and increase provider rates.

50. Oppose any legislative efforts/initiatives to reopen the realignment legislation or legislation that nega-
tively affects lnyo County's health and human services realignment funds.

TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC WORKS

1. Support transportation funding legislation that

Provides revenues without affecting funding sources of other county projects;a

. Continues Federal funding efforts for local transportation projects;

. Reaffirms and continues State responsibility for highway financing;

. Bolsters the multiple transportation funding sources that provide for improved transportation sys-
tems and multimodal networks, including SB 1 as enacted, and delivery of projects that rehabilitate
and improve local roads;

. Supports and encourages the use and development of transit facilities and infrastructure.

2. Support any legislation efforts that assist the County in mitigating for the transportation of transuranic
waste to the Nevada Test Site, Yucca Mountain, or other selected sites through California on routes
located in or transecting lnyo County. Specifically, funding and assistance is needed in several areas
including road and infrastructure improvements, first respondertraining, radiological detection instru-
ments and training and emergency medical and hospitaltraining.

3. Support State legislators' efforts to address identified State highway safety needs in our communi-
ties.

4. Support State and Federal legislation efforts that benefit our local airports.

5. Oppose legislation that changes public contracting laws in a manner in which it negatively impacts the

County's contract authority and/or increases costs to the County and/or unduly lengthens the time it
takes for the County to enter into a Public Works Contract.

6. Support legislation that enhances counties' ability to designate appropriate uses of county roads.

7. Oppose the effort to repeal SB 1, which would result in the loss of new transportation funds and make
it more difficult to raise State and localtransportation funds in the future.

DRAFT



8. Support legislation that provides funding opportunities to coordinate Transportation Plans with the
County's General Plan.

9. Support legislation that provides funding to sustain and expand the region's public transit system.

10. Support legislation that supports interregional and intercity bus lines that connect with the County's
transit system.

1 1. Support reauthorization and implementation of federal aviation policy at the State level to ensure that
California continues to receive and dedicate investments to support commercial and general aviation
airports.

RESOURCES AN D ENVIRON M ENT

1 . Support legislation to provide funding to local governments to create programs to protect river park-

ways and to reclaim damaged river habitat.

2. Monitor legislation that protects and enhances rural counties' natural and developed resources that
contribute to the economic and environmentalwell-being of lnyo County.

3. Support legislation for the development of programs and strategies that will accomplish the non-land
acquisition of reinvestment dollars for watershed management, groundwater basins, fisheries and wa-
tenruays.

4. Support Federal funding proposals that enhance County ability to acquire Federal and State funding
for the purpose of managing watersheds et al.

5. Support legislation that clarifies and/or preserves local authority to protect public roads.

6. Support legislation to provide adequate funding for meeting all of the requirements of the California
GlobalWarming Solutions Act of 2006 and the Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection Act of
2008.

7. Oppose activities of the Federal and State government to acquire and transfer private lands to public

ownership without continued mitigation for loss of local property tax revenue.

8. Oppose Federal or State activities limiting public access to public lands.

9. Support legislation which promotes and/or provides monetary aid to local jurisdictions for land use co-
ordination with State and Federal agencies.

10. Oppose any legislation which eliminates or diminishes the requirement for Federal and State land use
agencies to coordinate with local government on decisions affecting the plans and policies of localjuris-
dictions.

11. Support legislation which identifies the impacts of catastrophic wildfires and provides that wildfire miti-
gation and prevention are goals that meet the requirements of the California Global Warming Solutions
Act.

DRAFT



12. Support legislation which maintains lnyo County's ability to protect and enhance its land use authority
to determine the use of its natural resources, including but not limited to mining, water storage, renewa-
ble energy, and agricultural resources.

13. Monitor efforts to create additional or expand existing wilderness designations in the County.

14. Monitor efforts by Federal and State government to increase fees for and reduce and/or eliminate fire
protection services on public lands.

15. Support legislation that protects those localjurisdictions that operate and deliver and store water that
recognize and address mussel infestation early on from liability as a result of mussel infestation.

16. Oppose any legislation that could negatively impact outdoor recreation. (Added by Board Order 8-21-
2012).

17. Support State's Renewable Energy Portfolio Standard being re-calculated to include rooftop solar.

18. Oppose legislation that makes CEQA/NEPA requirements more burdensome and provides for less
public notification in the county where the projects are located.

19. Suppott legislation that reforms wildfire suppression funding, prevents "fire transfers" within firefighting
budgets, and gives agencies in charge of fire suppression more budget flexibility.

20. Support legislation that recognizes, funds and protects the ecological resources of the Sierra Nevada
as part of the effort to reach California's Climate Change goals.

21. Support increased funding for public land management agencies to address deferred maintenance of
infrastructure in forests, national parks, and reserves that rural counties depend on for tourism and rec-
reation-based economies.

22. Support realistic federal policy and regulatory reforms that balance environmental protection with the
preservation of life and property and that lead to better mitigation of wildfires on federal, State, and pri-

vate lands.

23. Support legislation to remove State tax exemplions for solar energy development facilities.

24. Support and encourage efforts that streamline the process for obtaining permits from State, Federal
and local land management agencies for activities such as livestock grazing, commercialfilming, guid-
ing and outfitting, packing, and special events.

PLAN N ING AN D LAN D USE

Support legislation and budget efforts that continue to maximize the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT)
revenue from the Federal and State government to counties and continues full funding of PILT without
restrictions beyond the current authorization.

2. Oppose legislation that minimizes and/or eliminates local control over land use decisions.

DRAFT



3. Support legislative efforts to enable localgovernments, utilities, energy developers, California Native
American tribal governments, affected landowners and members of the public to actively participate in

the renewable energy and utility corridor planning processes.

4. Support legislation which reduces and/or eliminates State requirements regarding the General Plan

and its updates.

5. Oppose legislation which limits or reduces the authority of counties under the State Mining and Recla-
mation Act (SMARA).

6. Support legislation which promotes and/or provides monetary aid to localjurisdictions for land use co-
ordination with State and Federal agencies.

7. Oppose any legislation which eliminates or diminishes the requirement for Federal and State land use
agencies to coordinate with local government on decisions affecting the plans and policies of localjuris-
dictions.

8. Support legislation, which maintains lnyo County's ability to protect and enhance its land use authority
to determine the highest and best use of its natural resources.

9. Support legislation that protects and/or reinstates the payment of geothermal royalties to local jurisdic-

tions.

10. Support legislation that provides funding opportunities to localjurisdictions to implement State General
Plan requirements.

LAW, JUSTICE & PUBLIC SAFETY

1 . Support legislation that maximizes county discretion in developing programs for juveniles.

2. Support legislation that eliminates the requirement that counties pay for court reporter transcripts.

3. Support Federal and State funding to combat the impacts of controlled substance production, distribu-
tion, and use, including the ongoing opioid addiction crisis.

4. Support legislation that would allow counties to enact an ordinance to allow up to a $10 penalty as-
sessment for every $100 fine for criminal offense, including traffic fines, for the maintenance and pur-

chase of Law Enforcement facilities and vehicles.

5. Oppose any changes in the State criminal justice system that increases costs to counties for jail opera-
tions, including but not limited to early releases of prisoners, commutation of sentences and/or commu-
tation of variable sentencing options (i.e., wobblers), without a corresponding dedicated longterm relia-
ble revenue stream and the ability to administer it locally.

6. Watch proposed changes to State and Federal water law.

7. Support legislation that will complete the work initiated through the Trial Court Unification Act by mak-
ing justice system costs that are controlled or imposed by the judiciary but inadvertently remain the re-
sponsibilities of the counties the clear responsibility of the State of California and the California Superior
Court to fund.

DRAFT



8. Support efforts to increase and/or preserve funding allocations to support criminaljustice realignment
costs including inmate healthcare and jail expense costs.

9. Support Federal and State funding and programs to provide comprehensive, effective mental health

and substance abuse treatment programs for criminal defendants, thereby reducing recidivism and pro-

tecting the public.

10. Watch proposed bail system reform efforls in California to ensure full state funding of any new pre{rial
release and supervision requirements.

11. Support legislation and policies to improve re-entry options for adult and juvenile probationers, includ-
ing housing.

12. Support legislation and policies to expand and enhance Evidence-Based Programs available to clients.

13. Support legislation and policies that will allow for continued investment in community corrections train-
ing.

14. Support legislation to bolster flexible policies and resources for drug treatment and mental health ser-
vices for probationers.

15. Suppod legislation and policies to protect resources that support foster youth in Continuum of Care
Reform.

16. Support legislation and policies that ensure resources for supervision, rehabilitative programming, and

re-entry services for adult and juvenile offenders.

17. Support legislation and policies to preserve and provide resources at the Federal, State, and local level

for effective community supervision practices.

18. Support legislation that enhances educational programs for adult and juvenile offenders.

19. Support legislation which will provide funding for probation services provided to drug offenders, and
mentally ill incarcerated offenders.

20. Support legislation to authorize local probation departments to collect outstanding victim restitution

through the civil process.

TRIBE AND INTERGOVERN MENTAL RELATIONS

1. Support the following goals for county{ribal intergovernmental relations:

. facilitate intergovernmental agreements

. develop mechanisms to mitigate for the off-reservation impacts of tribal developments on local gov-

ernment services and the environment

. promote best practices and models of successful tribal-county relationships.

2. Support the promotion and development of positive working relationships between the County and lo-

cal tribes to the mutual benefit of both parties and the communities they respectively serve.

DRAFT



3. Support legislation or policy that provides for or recognizes enforceable agreements between tribes
and local governments concerning the mitigation of off-reservation impacts of development on tribal
land.

4. Oppose any federal or state limitation on the ability of tribes, counties and other local governments to
reach mutually acceptable and enforceable agreements, including any federal prohibitions on deed re-
strictions mutually agreed to by tribal and local governments.

VETERANS' SERVICES

1 . Support legislation and efforts that ensure access to the services and benefits to which veterans are

entitled, including housing, healthcare, employment, education and training, and community reintegra-
tion assistance.

2. Support legislation that provides funding for veterans housing programs, such as the Veterans and Af-
fordable Housing Bond Act of 2018.

3. Support the development of specific strategies for intervention and service delivery to veterans through
cooperation between federal, state, and local governments, as well as community and private organiza-
tions serving veterans.

4. Support coordination of services for veterans among all entities that serve this population, especially in

housing, treatment, and employment training.

DRAFT



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

XConsent nDepartmental lCorrespondenceAction

E ScheOuteC Time for ! Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

l-l
E Puutic Hearing

I lnformational

FROM: County Administrator - lnformation Services

FOR THE BOARD MEETING: February 12,2019

SUBJEGT: Authorization to purchase Tech Refresh Computers in an amount not to exceed $50646.

D E PARTM ENTAL RE C O MME NDATI O N :
Pursuant to the Technology Refresh lnitiative, request your Board authorize the purchase of 10 Dell desktop
computers with associated peripherals from CDW-G, for $8789 and 40 HP laptop computers with associated
peripherals from Southern Computer Warehouse for $41857 for a combined total of $50646.

SAMMARY DISCUSSION:
The FY2013-2014 adopted budget established the Tech Refresh program that planned for the annual replacement of
approximately 25o/o of the technology equipment at the County. This program helps to stabilize the annual computer
replacement costs, streamlining the budget planning process and simplifying the upgrade-related processes.

lnformation Services identified 50 end-user computers that are 4 years old or older, and we intend to replace those
computers as part of this Tech Refresh project. The desktop and laptop models are consistent with those bought in the
FY2017-2018 Tech Refresh purchase. Prices were evaluated from 3 different vendors and it was determined that Dell
desktops from CDW-G and HP laptops from Southern ComputerWarehouse were the most reasonably priced.

The Dell desktops purchased from CDW-G will be purchased through the National IPA Technology contract 2018011-
01and the HP laptops purchased from Southern Computer Warehouse will be purchased through the HP NASPO
Valuepoint contract MNNVP-I33 in compliance with section E.lll.B.5 of the Inyo County Purchasing and Contracting
Policy an Procedures Manual.

ALTERNATIWS: Your Board could choose to not approve the request, to modify the quantities requested, or to
direct staff to determine alternate solutions. Not approving this request or modifying the quantities requested, however,
would be contrary to the initiative proposed as part of the 2013-14 budget adoption and is not recommended. Directing
staff to find alternate solutions would not result in a significantly different recommendation, as lnformation Services
conducted a lengthy, comprehensive and iterative analysis of the system specifications, capabilities during FY2017-2018.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT: The Technology Refresh program affects all General Fund departments and
some participating Non-General Fund departments, though not equally each year.

FINANCING: Funding for the purchase of the computers is available in the Board approved FY2018-2019 Computer
Upgrade budget 011808, Object Code 5232 (Office and Other Equipment <$5,000).



/tgenda Request
Page 2

DEPARTM ENT H EAD SIGNATURE:
to be signed until all approvals are
Original plus 14 copies of this document are required)

(Not
(The

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be

reviewed and approved by coun$ counsel pior to submission to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date-

COUNTY COUNSEL:

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND REI-ATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller pior to

t7
submr'ssrbn to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel seruices pior to

submission to the board clerk.)

Approved:_Date-

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

BUDGET RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the budget officer pior to submission to the board

clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

BUDGET OFFICER:

APPITOVALS



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

fi Consent fl Departmental ECorrespondence Action

E Scheduled Time for E Ctosed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDANUMBER

rB

E PuOtic Hearing

E lnformational

FROM: Probation Department (Juvenile lnstitutions)

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OFr Febru ary 12,2019

SUBJECT: Approval of contract with American Security Group for the maintenance of the security
system at the Juvenile Detention Center

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATION: Request Board to:
1) declare American Security Group as a sole source provider;
2) approve the contract between the County of Inyo and American Security Group for the

maintenance of the security system between County of lnyo and American Security Group for
the period of July 1,2019 to June 30,2020 in an amount not to exceed $23,490.00 with an
option to renew a second and third year, contingent on the adoption of future fiscal year
budgets and;

3) authorize the Chairperson to sign the contract.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMIWRY DISCUSSION:

American Security Group (ASG) provides proprietary software and server products that comprise the
security and surveillance system at the juvenile detention center. As the system is proprietary, only
ASG can provide the maintenance and technical support needed to operate the system.

ln January 2013, your Board approved a contract with ASG to install a state of the art security
system, which included the installation of sixteen (16) cameras; a V46 recording system
[approximately six (6) months of recording]; network appliances and equipment; two (2) 32" monitors;
and, an integrated card access control system to identiff persons entering/exiting the facility.

ln December 2013, your Board approved an additional four (4) digital cameras; expansion of the
(door) access control system on two (2) doors within the Center; and, two (2) additionalworkstations
to be added to the system.

A renewal contract with ASG for service and support maintenance of the security system was
approved by your Board for fiscal year 2016-2017, with an option to extend for an additional two (2)
years, contingent upon the Board's adoption of future budgets. Said contract extensions have been
exercised and the current extension is due to expire on June 30, 2019.

ALTERNATIVET& The Board could choose not to approve sole sourcing this contract to American
Service Group and direct Staff to seek other alternatives.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT:



Agenda Request
Page 2

FINANCING: This contract would be expended out of the Juvenile lnstitutions Budget
023100, Professional Services Object Code 5265 and funded from YOBG grant monies and if
approved.

DEPARTMENT HEAD S'G,VA
76(Not to be signed until all approvals are

Attachment County of Inyo Contract #116

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
rcviewed and approved by county counsel priorto submlssrbn fo fhe board clerk.)

l{\q.---*,2---.--. AppfOved

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FIMNCE AND REIATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor+ontrcller prior to

1

boadcletu.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: AND RETATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of

J 3ol tq
seruices prior to

I)
the board cleft.)

AI'I)ROVAI,S



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND AMERICAN SECURITY GROUP
FOR THE PROVISION OF SECURITY SYSTEM MAINTENANCE SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for
the securitv system maintenance services of American Security Group of Vista, California (hereinafter
referred to as "Contractor''), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions
hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Contractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by Mark Olsen or his de , whose title is:
Deou0lChief of Juvenile lnstitutions . Requests to the Contractor for work or services to be performed under
this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or
warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the
Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

A. lnitial Term. The term of the Agreement shall be from July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020, unless
sooner terminated as provided below.

B. Extension of Term. ln addition to the initial term, there will be two (2) options for the County or
Contractor to extend the Agreement as follows:

(a) From July 1,2020 through June 30,2021.
(b) From July 1, 2021 through June 30,2022.

The options to extend may be exercised by either party, in the manner and on the terms and
conditions hereinafter provided. The initial term and successive options to extend, if any, shall not exceed
an aggregate total of more than thirty-six (36) months.

C. Exercising Options to Extend. The option to extend the term of the Agreement for the period
identified above may be exercised by the County or Contractor in the manner and on the terms and
conditions below:

1. Terms and Conditions:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - American Security Group
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 1 Modified Contract 116
01 152019



(a) Neither Contractor nor County has terminated or cancelled the Agreement for any
reason

(b) Neither Contractor nor County is in default on any term or condition of this Agreement.

2. Manner in Which Options Can Be Exercised

(a) County or Contractor may exercise the option to extend not earlier than three (3)
months before expiration of the initial term of this agreement or any extension thereof.

(b) The County or Contractor must notify the other party in writing of its intent to exercise
an option at least thirty (30) days before expiration of the contract, or an extension thereof.

(c) The option to extend shall be upon the same terms and conditions as stated in this
Contract.

3. CONSIDERATION

A. Compensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per

diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.
C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor

shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit uoon amount payable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed Twentv Three
Four Hundred Ninety Dollars and 00/100 ($23,490.00) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County
expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Conkactor for services or
work performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billino and pavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request. This
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement to be
submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day. Upon timely
receipt of the statement by the fifth (sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the
last day of the month.

F. Federaland State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal
or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,4ee.oo).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California

County of lnyo Standard Contract - American Security Group
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 2 Modified Contract 116
01 152019



State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contracto/s obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will
be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUTRED L|CENSES, CERT|F|CATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses,
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide County,
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at http://www.sam.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Aftachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incuned by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7. GOUNTY PROPERW.

A. Personal Propertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Contracto/s possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contracto/s services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of

County of lnyo Standard Contract - American Security Group
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 3 Modified Contract 116
01 152019



this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the Agreement,
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

Contractor shall provide Statutory California Worke/s Compensation coverage and Employer's
Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees engaged in services or
operations under this Agreement. The County of lnyo, its agents, officers and employees shall be named as
additional insured or a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

{0. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct
of the County.

12. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of
this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which

County of lnyo Standard Contract - American Security Group
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 4 Modified Contract 116
01 1 5201 I



County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlaMully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Gode section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

14. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days wriften notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

15. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of County.

16. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days wriften
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty{hree (23) below.

18. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such

County of lnyo Standard Contract - American Security Group
(lndependent Contractor)

Pase 5 Modified."$itrliS



confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the CounV. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's wriften
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,

Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,

and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

r9. coNFLtcTs.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

20. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

21 SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

22. FUNDING LIMITATION

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification of
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-three
(23) (Amendment).

23. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and aftached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity,

County of lnyo Standard Contract - American Security Group
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 6 Modified Contract 116
01 15201S



24. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
pRoBATTON -.il Department
P.O. Box 306 201 Mazourka Canvon Road Street
lnrlenandenca CA City and State

Contractor:
AMERICAN SECURITY GROUP Name
P O Flnv dR

ILE CENTER

\/icta ea qrnAS-Ondg
Street
City and State

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilil ilil

County of lnyo Standard Contract - American Security Group
(lndependent Contractor)

PageT Modified Contract 116
01 152019



AOREEMENT BETWEEN COUNW OF INYO

AND AMERICAN SECURTTV GROUP

FORTHE pROVtStOit OF SECURITY SYSTEM CE SERV|CEg

IN WTNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR TIANDS AND SEALS
TH|S 

-_ 
DAY OF _* _, +

couNw oF |NYO CONTRACTOR

Slgnature

Pdnt orType Name

By.By:

I /Dat6d:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALI'TY:

County Couneel

\-**.t,.u---

AsTO ACCOUNTING FORMr

Auditor

AS,TO REQUIREMENTS:

Servlces

TO

Rlsk

Daled:

Counly of lnyo Standsrd Coniraot - No. 1 18
(lnd6prnd6nl Contracior)

pegeE o7n7t201B



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND AMERICAN SECURITY GROUP

FORTHE PROVISION OF SECURITY SYSTEM MAINTENANCE SERVICE$

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS
TH|S -- DAY OF , #

qouNw oF rNYo coNTRACTOR

Signature re

Print or Type Name

Dated: Dated: I 2o /

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALffY:

County Counsel

\^-,.^-a

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

REQUIREMENTS:

Services

ASTOI

Risk

County of lnyo Standard Conlracl - No. 1'16
(l ndependenl Contraclor)

Page E 07t27t2018



ATTACHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND AMERICAN SECURITY GROUP

FORTHE PROVISION OF SECURITY SYSTEM MAINTENANCE SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: 0710112019 TO: @Q
SCOPE OF WORK:

See attached maintenance Proposal#1012232 dated December 11,2018.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - American Security Group
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 9 Modified Contract 116
01 152019



ProposalcaN
GROUP

Ths syo ol lhe eagle 12t11t2018 1012232

Proposal #Date

lnyo County Probation Dept.
Jeffrey L Thomson
918 N. Main St
Bishop, CA, 93514

Customer

lnyo County Probation Dept.
Jeffrey L Thomson
918 N. Main St
Bishop, CA 93514

Ship To

250.00

500.00
500.00
500.00
250.00

50.00
30.00

499.00
s9.00

125.00
250.00

9s.00
50.00
30.00

250.00

500.00
500.00
500.00

1,750.00
1,200.00

30.00

499.00
1 ,416.00

125.00
250.00
380.00
400.00

30.00

Service and Support

lP Video System Service Plan (Base)

lP Video Server Maintenance & Support

lP Video Storage Device Maintenance & Support

lP Video Network Equipment Maintenance & Support

lP Video Camera Maintenance & Support

System Battery Testing, Service & Replacement

Software Mainlenance and Upgrade Plan

One (1) Year CURRENT Plan for Ocularis CS

One (1) Year CURRENT Plan for One ('l) Ocularis CS Camere/Channel License

Service and Support

Access Control System Service Plan (Base)

Access Control Server Service and Support

Access Control Quarterly lnspections & Training (per quarter)

Access Control Systems Technical Support

System Battery Testing, Service & Replacement

Service and Support Agreement

Fiscal Year 201 I / 2020

lP Video System

Access Control System

Software Maintenance and Upgrade Plan

Additional 1 year sofiware maintenance

1.00
1.00
1.00
7.00

24.00
1.00

1.00
24.00

1.00
1.00
4.00
8.00
1.00

1.00

Subtotal $7,830.00

Tax (8.0%) $0.00

Total $7,830.00

I hereby authorize performance of this proposal and agree to the following payment terms: Net 30

PO Box 48 Vista CA, 92085 vMw.amsecgroup.com
Voice 760-727-4020 Fax 760-727-4027

cA Ltc 6656s8 ACO LIC 4234

ACCEPTED BY: DATE:

Description Rate TotalQtv



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND AMERICAN SECURTTY GROUP

FORTHE pROVtStON OF sEcuRlTY SYSTEM MAINTENANCE

TERM:

FROM:07t01t2019 TO
06t30t2020

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

Not to exceed $7,830.00 annually. To be billed at the beginning of each contract year

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 9

SERVICES

07t27t2018



FORTHE pROVtStON OF sEcuRlTY SYSTEM MAINTENANCE

TERM:

FROM .07t01t2019

ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND AMERTCAN SECURTTY GROUP

06t30t2020

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 10

SERVICES

07t27t2018



Specifications 1

Insurance Requirements for Most Contracts
(Not for Professional Services or Construction Contracts)

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance
against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise
from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder and the results
of that work by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or
subcontractors.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office (lSO) Form
CG 00 01 12 07 covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including products-
completed operations, personal & advertising injury, with limits no less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general aggregate limit applies, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1),
or if Contractor has no owned autos, hired, (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code
9), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage.

3. Workers' Gompensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory
Limits, and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000
per accident for bodily injury or disease.

If the contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity requires and
shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the contractor.

Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following
provisions:

Add itional lnsured Sfafus

The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials,
parts, or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.
General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the
Contractor's insurance at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 1011 85 or if not
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10 and CG 20 37 it a later edition is
used).



Primary Coverage

For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall
be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Entity, its officers,
officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance
and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation

Each insurance policy required above shall provide that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to the Entity.

Waiver of Subrogation

Contractor hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said
Contractor may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such
insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to effect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Deductible s and S elf-Insured Retentions

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the Entity. The Entity may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a
lower deductible or retention or provide proof of ability to pay losses and related
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention.

Acceptability of lnsurers
lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating ol no less
than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity.

Verification of Coverage

Contractor shallfurnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete,
certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
required by these specifications, at any time.

Special Bisks or Circumstances
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

X Consent E Departmental ECorrespondence Action

E Scheduled Time for E Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

lq
E Pubtic Hearing

E lnformational

FROM: Public Works

r.OR THE BOARD MEETING oF: TTO 1 2 zols

SUBJECT: Approval of Plans and Specifications for the lndependence Library Flooring Project.

D E PART M E N TAL RE C O MM E N DA TI ON :

Request that the Board:
1) Approve the plans and specifications for the Independence Library Flooring Project;
2) Authorizs the Public Works Director to advertise and bid the Project.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

As part of the 2018-19 Approved Deferred Maintenance Budget, $15,000 was budgeted to replace the floors
in the three rooms occupied by Independence Library in the Courthouse building (located at 168 N. Edwards
Street, Independence, California).

The library currently has a carpet floor that was installed directly on top of the old linoleum flooring. The
library is cunently facing a termite problem and the termites are eating burlap present in the old linoleum. In
order to get rid of the termite problem, County forces will remove the old linoleum flooring and spray a
chemical called Bora-Care that prevents termite infestation. Under this project, new linoleum sheet floors
will be installed in all three rooms occupied by the Independence Library. This project will also provide a
five year manufacturer's warranty for any defects in the linoleum sheets.

ALTERNATIWS:

The Board could choose not to approve the plans, specifications, and advertisement of the project. This is not
recommended as the library has a termite infestation and is in need of new floors.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT :

The Public Works Department for the development of the plans and specifications.
County Counsel for review of the bid package, contracts and this agenda item.
Auditor for the payment of all invoices.

FINANCING:

This project is funded by the Defened Maintenance Budget 011501, object code 5191 Maintenance of
Structures.



COUNTY COUNSEL:

(tL
AGREEMENTS, CONTMCTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel pior to subrnissrbn to the board clerk.)

Approved:

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND REIATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller pior to

(Approved

to the board clerk.)

APPROVALS

DEP ARTM ENT H EAD SIG N ATU RE :
(Not to be signed until all approvals are l /tl



BID PACKAGEANI)
SPECIAL PROVISIONS

FOR CONSTRUCTION OF

CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT

Project No. ZP-l8-075

FOR USE IN CONNECTION WITH INYO COUNTY
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, DATED OCTOBER 2015,

GENERAL PREVAILING WAGE RATES IN EFFECT
ON THE DATE THE WORK IS ACCOMPLISHED

2019

Prepared By: Inyo County Public Works



TABLE OF CONTENTS

NOTICE INVITING BIDS

BID PROPOSAL FORMS

Bid Proposal Form
Bid Bond
Cashier's or Certified Check Form
Designation of Subcontractors
Government Code Section 12900: Certification Regarding Equal Employment Opportunity
Labor Code Section 3700 Contractor's Certification
Labor Code Secti on 17 25 .5 : Contractor and Subcontractor Registration
Public Contract Code Section 7106 Non-CollusionAffidavit
Public Contract Code Section 10162 Questionnaire
Public Contract Code Section10232 Statement
Inyo County Ordinance No. 1156 (Contracting Preference)
Small Business Enterprise Commitment (Construction Contracts)
Small Business Enterprise Final Report of Utilization of Small Business Enterprise

CONTRACTAND BONDS

Contract
Faithfu I Performance Bond
Labor and Materials Bond

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

PLANS



COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

NOTICE INVITING BIDS

The Inyo County Public Works Department is soliciting bids for:

CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT

Bid Packages, which include the Notice Inviting Bids, Bid Proposal Forms, Contract and Bond
Forms, Special Provisions, and Plans, may only be obtained from the Inyo County (County)
Public Works Department (Department) at 168 North Edwards, P. O. Drawer Q, Independence,
CA93526, telephone (760) 878-0201. Anon-refundable price of $15.00 will be charged for each
set of Bid Packages requested. The Bid Packages are available for inspection at the Department
during regular business hours. Checks are to be made out to "Inyo County Public Works
Department." The Bid Package is also available at no charge at the County of Inyo website at
www.inyocounty.us. Bidders who obtain Bid Packages over the internet are responsible for
noti$ing Inyo County Public Works Department that they are plan holders. Bidders who fail to
notify the Department that they are plan holders may not be notified should any Addenda be
issued. If the Department issues any Addenda to the Bid Package that is not acknowledged, the
Bid Proposal may be rejected. This project is subject to the State of California Department of
Industrial Relations (DIR) prevailing wage labor rates.

Bids must be submitted in a sealed envelope clearly marked with the bidder's name and
address, the word "BID", and the Project Title:

CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT

To be considered, bids must be received by the Inyo County Cterk of the Board of
Supervisorsr224 North Edwards Street (mailing address: P.O. Box N), Independence,
California 93526 at or before 3:30 P.M. on 2019 at which time they will be
publicly opened and read aloud. No oral, telegraphic, telephonic, or fax proposals or
modifications will be accepted.

General Work Description: This project consists of installation of Linoleum Sheet flooring in
the Central Library located in the County Courthouse building (located at 168 N. Edwards St,
Independence, California).

An optionat job walk is scheduled for 2019, at _at the Central
Library located at 168 N. Edwards St,Independence, California.

All project work is more particularly described in the plans and special provisions. All of the work
shall be in accordance with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws, codes, and regulations.

Central Library Flooring Project
Notice Inviting Bids

Page2



NOTICE
INVITING BIDS

FOR

CENTRAL LBRARY FLOORING PROJECT
Independence, CA

Central Library Flooring Project
Notice Inviting Bids

Page I



Technical questions related to project work, site conditions, or other related inquiries should be
directed to Jamie Sidhu of the Public Works Department at csidhu@inyocounty.us (phone: 760-
878-0204). Bids shall conform to and be responsive to the Contract Documents. Bids are

required for the entire work described in the Contract Documents.

Each Bid must be submitted on the Bid Proposal Forms furnished as a part of the Bid Package.
Each Bid must be accompanied by a Proposal Guarantee in the amount and form described in the
Bid Package, in an amount not less than t\o/o of the amount of the bid, made payable to the order
of the County of Inyo. The check or bond shall be given as security that the bidder will enter into
the Contract with the County and furnish the required Faithful Performance Bond, Labor and
Materials Payment Bond, Certificates andlor original endorsements of insurance, or other
required documents. The check or bond may be retained by the County for sixty (60) days or
until the Contract is fully executed by the successful bidder and the County, whichever first
occurs.

The successful bidder shall be required to furnish a Faithful Performance Bond and a Labor and
Materials Payment Bond on the forms provided in the Bid Package and in the amount of 100%
of the Contract amount.

The successful bidder must be licensed as required by law, and consistent with the Contract
Documents, at the time the contract is awarded, which license shall be a current California Class
B - General Building Contractor license or a combination of all specialty classifications that will
be required for complete performance of all of the work in accordance with the Contract
Documents, and if applicable, a joint venture license as defined in the Business and Professions
Codeo Section 7029. Failure of the bidder to obtain proper and adequate licensing for an award
of a contract shall constitute failure to execute the contract and shall result in the forfeiture of the
security of the bidder.

In addition to the requirements set forth in this Notice Inviting Bids, all bids shall be subject to
the requirements set forth in the Special Provisions, Standard Specifications of the Inyo County
Public Works Department, dated October, 2015, Contract Documents and other applicable law.

The Contract is subject to the State Contract nondiscrimination and compliance requirements
pursuant to Government Code, Section 12990, and other applicable law.

The Contract is also subject to and incorporates by reference the provisions of Public Contract
Code, Section 22300, pursuant to which, the Contractor is permitted to substitute securities for
earned retention or have them placed in escrow at the Contractor's expense, as also set forth in
Section 1 I 50. 1 5 of the Standard Specifications.

Pursuant to Section 1725.5 of the Labor Code, the bidder is required to certiff that they, and all
subcontractors listed on the submitted Bid Form documents, are registered with the California
Department of Industrial Relations.

Pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, the general prevailing wage rates in Inyo County
have been determined by the Director of the State Department of Industrial Relations. These
wage rates appear in the Department of Transportation publication entitled "General Prevailing
Wage Rates," in effect at the time the project is advertised. Future effective wage rates, which

central Librav Flil?Tio:t..,

Page 3



have been predetermined and are on file with the State Department of Indushial Relations, are

referenced, but not printed, in said publication. Such rates of wages are on file with the State

Department of Indushial Relations and the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo and

are available to any interested party upon request.

Inyo County reserves the right at any stage of these proceedings to reject any or all Bids or to
waive any immaterial defect in any Bid if it is deemed to be in the best interest of the County.

The definition and meanings of the words used in this Notice Inviting Bids are the same as set

forth in Section 1070, ooAbbreviations, Symbols, and Definitionsr" of the Standard

Specifications of the Inyo County Public Works Department, dated October, 2015.

Each bidder must supply all the information required by the Contract Documents, Special

Provisions and Standard Specifications.

County of Inyo
Department of Public Works

Michael Errante,
Acting Director

Dated:--/ I ,2019

Central Library Flooring Project
Notice Inviting Bids

Page 4



BID PROPOSALFORMS
FOR

CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT
Independence, CA

ENCLOSURES:
Bid Proposal Form
Bid Bond
Cashier's or Certified Check Form
Designation of Subcontractors
Certification Regarding Equal Employment Opportunity
Labor Code Section 3700 Contractor's Labor Code Certification
Labor Code Section 1725.5 Contractor and Subcontractor Registration
Public Contract Code Secti on 7 106 (Non-Collusion Affidavit)
Public Contract Code Section 10162 Questionnaire
Public Contract Code Statement (Sect\on 10232)
Inyo County Ordinance No. 1156 (Contracting Preference)
Small Business Enterprise Commitment (Construction Contracts)
Small Business Enterprise Final Report of Utilization of Small Business Enterprise



BID PROPOSAL FORM

TO COUNTY OF INYO
Attn.: Inyo County Clerk of Board of Supervisors
224 North Edwards Street, P.O. Box N
Independence, Califomia 93 526
(Herein called the "County")

FROM:

(Herein called "Bidder")

FOR: CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT
(Herein called "Project")

In submitting this Bid, Bidder understands and agrees that:

1. BID DEADLINE. Bids must be received no later than 3:30 P.M. on 2019 by the
Inyo County Assistant Board Clerk, 224 North Edwards Street (mailing address: P.O. Box N),
Independence, CA 93526, at which time they will be publicly opened and read aloud. No oral,
telegraphic, telephonic or fax proposals or modifications will be accepted.

z.BlD AMOUNT TOTAL. The total amount of this Bid for provision of the services and
materials for completion of the Project in accordance with the Contract Documents is set forth
herein as: $

PROJECT BID AMOUNT:

LUMP SUM FOR PROJECT (IN NUMBERS): $

BrD TOTAL (rN WORDS)

Please see Special Provisions Section for details on what this lump sum must include.
No provision in this section is intended or shall be construed to alter the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract Documents for payment of any amounts in the event the Project
contract is awarded to Bidder pursuant to this Bid.

3. INCLUSION OFALL COSTS. This Bid includes all costs for all labor, materials, tools,
taxes, insurance, transportation, and other related supplies and services to perform all services

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page I



and provide all materials as required by, and in accordance with, the Contract Documents for the
Project.

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The Contract Documents shall constitute the Contract
between the parties, which will come into full force and effect upon acceptance, approval, and
execution by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors. The Contract Documents are
complementary and are incorporated herein by reference and made apart hereof with like force
and effect as if all of said documents were set forth in full herein. The Contract Documents
include all documents defined as "Contract Documents" in the Standard Specifications of the
Inyo County Public Works Department, dated October, 2015.

5. ACCEPTANCE. County reseryes the right to reject any and all Bids, or part of any Bid, to
postpone the scheduled Bid deadline date(s), to make an award in its own best interest, and to
waive any irregularities or technicalities that do not significantly afflect or alter the substance of
an otherwise responsible Bid and that would not affect a Bidder's ability to perform the work
adequately as specified. However, this Bid shall remain open and shall not be withdrawn for a
period of sixty (60) calendar days after the date designated in the Notice Inviting Bids for
publicly opening this Bid. If Bidder receives written notice of the award of the Project Contract
to Bidder on or before the sixtieth day, Bidder shall execute the Contract and deliver to County
the executed Contract and all of the bonds, certificates andlor endorsements of insurance
coverage, and other required documents no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date on
which Bidder receives such notice.

This solicitation in no way obligates County to award a Bid Contract described herein, nor will
County assume any liability for the costs incurred in the preparation and transmittal of Bids in
response to this solicitation. County reserves the right to not accept any Bid, to reject any or all
Bids, to reject any part of any Bid proposal, to negotiate and modiff any Bid, and to waive any
defects or irregularities in any Bid at County's sole discretion. Furthernore, County shall have
the sole discretion to award a Bid Contract as it may deem appropriate to best serve the interests
of County. In this regard, County may consider demonstrated quality of work, responsiveness,
comparable experience, professional qualifications, references, and proposed fees. Awards will
not be based on cost alone. County does not guarantee a minimum or maximum dollar value for
any Contract(s) resulting from this solicitation.

If the Contract Documents require or permit this Bid to include two or more Alternates, County
reserves the right to award the Contract for that Alternate which County, in its sole discretion,
determines at the time of award to be in County's best interest.

6. TIME OF'COMPLETION. The Bidder further specifically agrees to complete all the work
no later than the Time for Completion specified in the Contract Special Provisions.

7. ADDENDA. The Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda and has provided for
all Addenda changes in this Bid.

(Fill in Addendum numbers and dates Addenda have been received

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page2



If none have been received, enter "NONE".)

WARNING: IF ANADDENDUM ORADDENDAHAVE BEEN ISSUED BY THE
COUNTY AND NOT NOTED ABOVE AS BEING RECEIVED BY THE BIDDER, THIS
PROPOSAL MAY BE REJECTED.

8. BIDDER'S BUSINESS INFORMATION. Bidder provides the following information
conceming its business:

Bidder's Name:

Address:

Zip Code
(The above address will be used to send notices or requests for additional information.)

Telephone: ( )

Federal Identification No. :

Contractor's License No State:

Classification: Expiration Date

Type ofBusiness (check one):

Individual ( ), Partnership ( ), Joint Venture ( )

Corporation ( ), Other (Specify): ()

Owners, Officers, Partners, or Other Authorized Representatives:

IMPORTANT NOTICE: If bidder or other interested person is a corporation, state legal name

of corporation above and list below, names of the president, secretary, treasurer, and chief
executive offrcer/manager thereof; if a partnership, joint venture, or other business entity, state

true name of firm above and list below, names of all partners, joint venturers, or for other
entities, parties having authority to act on behalf of the entity, such as offrcers, owners, directors;
if bidder or other interested person is an individual, state first, middle, and last names in full
above and write rrN/Arr below.

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 3



9. PROPOSAL GUARANTEE. As security for the Bid, this Bid includes one of the following
proposal guarantee instruments (the "Proposal Guarantee"), in the amount required by this
section, as checked:

(a) _ Bid Bond from a corporate surety admitted to issue such bonds in the State of
California; or

(b) _ Cashier's Check or Certified Check, made payable to the County of Inyo, attached
to the form entitled Cashier's or Certified Check; or

(c) _ Cash, in legal tender of the United States ofAmerica, enclosed in a separate
envelope marked ooCash Proposal Guarantee."

The Proposal Guarantee is in the amount of Ten Percent (10%) of the total amount of the Bid. If
the Contract Documents require or permit this Bid to include two or more Alternates, the amount
of the Proposal Guarantee must not be less than Ten Percent (10%) of the amount of the bid total
submitted for the alternate having the highest total bid amount. Only one form of Proposal
Guarantee may be submitted with each Bid.

Bidder hereby agrees that County shall be entitled to payment by forfeiture of the Proposal
Guarantee if County awards the Project Contract to Bidder, but Bidder fails or refuses to execute
the Contract andlor furnish all of the bonds, certificates and/or endorsements of insurance
coverage, and other required documents no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date on
which Bidder receives notice of the award from County.

10. BID PROTEST. In the event a dispute arises concerning the bid process prior to the award of
the contract, the party wishing resolution of the dispute shall submit an appeal request in writing to
the County Director of Purchasing. Bidder may appeal the recommended award or denial of award,
provided the following stipulations are met:

Only a bidder who has actually submitted a Bid Proposal is eligible to submit an appeal
request/bid protest against another bidder. Subcontractors are not eligible to submit bid
protests. A bidder may not rely on the bid protest submitted by another bidder, but must
timely pursue its own protest.

Appeal must be in writing. The appeal must contain a complete statement of the basis for the
protest and all supporting documentation. Materials submitted after the Bid Protest Deadline
will not be considered. The protest must refer to the specific portion or portions of the
Contract Documents upon which the protest is based. The protest must include the name,
address and telephone number of the person representing the protesting bidder if different
from the protesting bidder.

A copy of the protest and all supporting documents must also be transmitted by fax or by e-
mail, by or before the Bid Protest Deadline, to the protested bidder and any other bidder who
has a reasonable prospect of receiving an award depending upon the outcome of the protest.

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 4

2.

J



4 Must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days of the date of the recommended award or
denial of award letters.

5. An appeal of a denial of award can only be brought on the following grounds

a. Failure to follow the selection procedures and adhere to requirements specified in the Bid
Package or any addenda or amendments.

b. There has been a violation of conflict of interest as provided by California Government
Code Section 87100 et seq.

c. A violation of State or Federal law.

6. Appeals will not be accepted for any other reasons than those stated above. All appeals must
be sent to:

Clint Quilter, Director
County of Inyo
Purchasing Department
224N. Edwards St.

Independence, CA 93526

County's Purchasing Director shall make a decision concerning the appeal, and notify the Proposer
making the appeal, within a reasonable timeframe prior to the tentatively scheduled date for awarding
the contract. The decision of County's Purchasing Director shall be deemed final.

11. ADDITIONAL REQUIRED DOCUMENTS. Bidder agrees that, in addition to the
Proposal Guarantee, Bidder is required to submit, as a part of this Bid, the following forms
properly completed, and signed as required, all of which accompany this Bid Proposal Form and

are incorporated herein by this reference:

(1) Designation of Subcontractors (Public Contract Code section 4100 et seq.)
(2) Certification Regarding Equal Employment Opportunity (Govemment Code section 12900

et seq., sections 11135-11139.5)
(3) Contractor's Labor Code Certification (Labor Code section 3700)
(4) Contractor and Subcontractor Dept. of Industrial Relations (DIR) Registration (Labor Code

section 1725.5)
(5) Non-CollusionAfifidavit (Public Contract Code Section 7106)
(6) Public Contract Code Section 10162 Questionnaire
(7) Public Contract Code Statement (Section10232)
(8) Small Business Enterprise Commitment (Construction Contracts)
(9) Small Business Enterprise Final Report of Utilization of Small Business Enterprise

12. DEFINITIONS. The definition and meaning of the words used in this Bid Proposal Form
are the same as set forth in Section 1070n "Abbreviations, Symbols and Definitionsr" of the
Standard Specifications of the Inyo County Public Works Department, dated October, 2015.

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 5



THE LINDERSIGNED HEREBY DECLARES, UNDER PENALTY OF PERruRY
ACCORDING TO THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, THAT THE
STATEMENTS, DESIGNATIONS, CERTIFICAIIONS, AND REPRESENTATIONS MADE IN
THIS BID PROPOSAL, INCLUDINGALLATTACHMENTS, ARE TRUE AND CORRECT
AND HE OR SHE IS THE INDIVIDUAL, MANAGING PARTNER, CORPORATE OFFICER,
OR OTHER REPRESENTMIVE, DULYAUTHORIZED BY LAW TO MAKE THIS BID ON
BEHALF OF BIDDER, AND BY SIGNING BELOW MAKES THIS BID ON BEHALF OF
BIDDERACCORDING TO ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH OR
INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE HEREIN.

(S ignature of Authorized Person) (Date)

(PrintedName) (Printed Title)

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 6



INYO COUNTY PUBLIC WORIG DEPARTMENT

CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT

BID BOND
(BID PROPOSAL GUARANTEE)

Q.{ot required if a certified or cashier's check or a cash deposit accompanies the bid as a proposal
guarantee)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That we,

as Principal, and
(I.{ame of Bidder)

(Name of Corporate Surety)

as Corporate Surety admitted to issue such bonds in the State of California, are held and firmly
bound unto the County of Inyo, State of California, in the sum of _

Dollars ) for the payment
whereof we hereby bind ourselves, our successors, heirs, executors, and administrators, jointly
and severally, firmly by these presents.

The condition of the foregoing obligation is such that whereas the above bounded Principal is

about to submit to the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo a bid for the construction of
the CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT, in compliance with the Contract therefor:

Now, if the bid of the Principal shall be accepted and the Contract awarded to the Principal by
said Board of Supervisors, and if the Principal shall fail or neglect to enter into the Contract
therefor in accordance with the terms of the Principal's bid and the terms set forth in the Bid
Package, or to furnish the required Faithful Performance and Labor and Materials Payment
Bonds, Certificates of insurance, and other required documents, to the satisfaction of the Board
of Supervisors of said County no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the Principal has

received notice from the County that the Contract has been awarded to the Principal, then the
sum guaranteed by this Bond is forfeited to the County of Inyo.

It is expressly agreed and understood that any effors, clerical, mathematical, or otherwise, in the
bid shall not be or constitute a defense to a forfeiture of this Bond.

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

PageT



WITNESS our hands and seals this

(sEAL)

(sEAL)

(Title of Authorized Person)

day of 20 A.D

Principal

By:

(Address for Notices to be sent)

Surety

By:
(Title of Authorized Person)

(Address for Notices to be sent)

NOTE:

THE SIGNATURES OF THE PRINCIPAL (BIDDER) AND THE SURETY MUST EACH
BE ACKNOWLEDGED BEF'ORE ANOTARY PUBLIC (OR OTHER OFFICER
AUTHORIZED UNDER CALIF'ORNIA LA\Y) AND THE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND. The Bid Bond must be executed on this form by a
corporate surety admitted to issue such bonds in the State of California. No substitutions willbe
accepted. If an attorney-in-fact signs for the surety, an acknowledged statement from the surety
appointing and empowering the attorney-in-fact to execute such bonds in such amounts on behalf
of the surety, must accompany the Bid Bond.

ADDRESS OF COUNTY FOR NOTICES TO BE SENT:

County of Inyo (Attn.: Public Works Director)
224 North Edwards Street, P.0. Box N
Independence, Califo rnia 93526

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 8



t

CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT

CASHIER'S OR CERTIF'IED CHECK
(BID PROPOSAL GUARANTEE)

(Not required if Bid Bond accompanies the bid as a proposal guarantee)

A cashier's or certified check in the amount required as a proposal guarantee for the Bid and
made payable to the County of Inyo is attached below:

ATTACH CHECKHERE

Bidder (print name):

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 9

l

lt



CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT

DESIGNATION OF' SUBCONTRACTORS

In compliance with the provisions of the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act
(Section 4100 et. seq. of the Public Contract Code of the State of California), the undersigned
bidder has set forth below the fuIl name, and the location of the place of business of each
Subcontractor who will perform work or labor or render service to the Prime Contractor in or
about the construction of the work or improvement, or a Subcontractor licensed by the State of
California who, under subcontract to the Prime Contractor, specifically fabricates and installs a
portion of the work or improvement according to detailed drawings contained in the Plans and
Specifications to which the attached bid is responsive, and the portion of the work which will be
done by each Subcontractor for each subcontract in excess ofone-halfofone percent ofthe
Prime Contractor's total bid, or $10,000.00, whichever is greater.

The Bidder understands that if he fails to specify a Subcontractor for any portion of the work to
be performed under the Contract in excess of one-half of one percent of his bid, or $10,000.00,
whichever is greater, he shall be deemed to have agreed to perform such portion himself, and that
he shall not be permitted to sublet or subcontractthatportion of the work except in cases of
public emergency or necessity, and then only after a finding, produced to writing as a public
record of the Awarding Authority, setting forth the facts constituting the emergency or necessity.
If no Subcontractors are to be employed on the project, enter the word "none".

Signature of Authorized Person) (Title)

(Date)

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page l0

ITEM
NO.

DESCRIPTION
OFWORK

o/o OF
TOTAL

CONTRACT

SUBCONTRACTOR'S
LICENSE TYPE, NUMBER,

EXPIRATIONDATE

NAME,ADDRESS,
PHONE NUMBER

(Printed Name)



CERTIFICATION REGARDING EQUAL EMPLO YMENT OPPORTUNITY
(Government Code Section 12900 et seq., Sections 11135-11139.7)

CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT

During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor and its subcontractors shall not
unlawfully deny the Contract's benefits to any person, nor shall any person be unlawfully
subjected to discrimination under the contract and its performance on the basis of religion, color,
ethnic group identification, sex, age, or disability. In addition, the Contractor and its
subcontractors shall not discriminate unlawfully against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry physical disability,
mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. The Contractor shall insure that
the evaluation and treatment of employees and applicants for employment are free from such
discrimination.

The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code, Section 12900 et seq.), the regulations promulgated thereunder
(California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285.0 et seq.), and the Provisions of
Article 9.5, Chapter L, Part L, Division 3n Title 2 of the Government Code (Government
Code, Sections 11135-11139.7).

Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to
labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement.

The Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in
all subcontracts to perform work under the contract.

(Name and Title of Signer)

Signature Date

Company Name

Business Address

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page ll



CONTRACTOR'S LABOR CODE CERTIFICATION
(Labor Code Section 3700 et seq.)

CENTRAL LIBRARY F'LOORING PROJECT

I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 and following of the Labor Code which requires
every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-
insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions
before commencing the perfoffnance of the work of this contract.

(Name and Title of Signer)

Signature Date

Company Name

Business Address

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 12



CONTRACTOR AND SUBCONTRACTOR REGISTRATION
with

CADepartment of Industrial Relations (DIR)
(cA LABOR CODE SECTTON 1725.s)

Bidder hereby certifies that they, and all subcontractors listed on the submitted Bid Form
documents, are registered with the CA Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to
requirements of CA Labor Code Secti on 1725.5 and will comply with all requirements as noted
in the aforementioned CA Labor Code Section.

Signed Name Date

Printed Name

CA DIR Registration No.

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 13



NON.COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT
(Public Contract Code Section 7106)

(Code of Civil Procedure Section 2015.5)

CENTRAL LIBRARY F'LOORING PROJECT

The undersigned declares:

I am the of
the party making the foregoing bid. The bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any
undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation. The bid is
genuine and not collusive or sham. The bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited
any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid. The bidder has not directly or indirectly colluded,
conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or to refrain
from bidding. The bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement,

communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder,
or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder. All
statements contained in the bid are true. The bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his
or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or
data relative thereto, to any corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, bid
depository, or to any member or agent thereof, to effectuate a collusive or sham bid, and has not
paid, and will not pay, any person or entity for such pwpose. Any person executing this
declaration on behalf of a bidder that is a corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability
company, limited liability partnership, or any other entity, hereby represents that he or she has

full power to execute, and does execute, this declaration on behalf of the bidder.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is
true and correct and that this declaration is executed on

at
(Date) (city) (State)

(Name and Title of Signer)

Signature Date

Company Name

Cenhal Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 14

Business Address



puBl,rc CONTRACT CODE SECTTON 10162 QUESTTONNATRE

CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT

In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10162, the Bidder shall complete, under
penalty of perjury, the following questionnaire:

Has the Bidder, any officer of the Bidder, or any employee of the Bidder who has a proprietary
interest in the Bidder, ever been disqualified, removed, or otherwise prevented from bidding on,
or completing a federal, state, or local government project because of a violation of law or a
safety regulation:

Yes No

If the answer is yes, explain the circumstances in the following space.

By bidder's signature on the Bid Proposal Form, Bidder certifies, under penalty of perjury under
the laws of the State of California, that the foregoing statements in accordance with Public
Contract Code Section 10162 are true and correct.

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 15



puBl,rc CONTRACT CODE STATEMENT (SECTTON 10232)

CENTRAL LIBRARY F'LOORING PROJECT

In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10232, the Contractor hereby states under
penalty of perjury, that no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a
federal court has been issued against the Contractor within the immediately preceding two year
period because of the Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a federal court which orders
the Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board.

By Bidder's signature on the Bid Proposal Form, Bidder certifies, under penalty of perjury under
the laws of the State of California, that the foregoing statements in accordance with Public
Contract Code Section 10232 are true and correct.

(Name and Title of Signer)

Signature Date

Company Name

Business Address

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 16



LOCAL BUSINESS PREF'ERENCES
INYO COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. 1"156

CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT

oRDTNANCE ilo. ,i156 ..

AN ORI'II{ANCEOF IlE sOARD OF SUPERI/IgORs OF THE COTJNTY OF INYO, STATE OF
CAUFOR.ITIA, ADD]NG CHAPTER 6.06 TO rHE ftIYO COUNTY COOE id bilOv'di- -

coilIRAclNc pREFEREIGES FoR LocAL AtrD gmall q,lsiness-ig- -- -

Thr Board ot SupsMsors ot the Courw of lnyo odains as Sllows:

SECTIONl, PURPOSEANDAUTHORTTY

p-urporc of trie ordlnanoe is to conbibute to the €conomb and social w?ll-belnq of all
the cilizens.of the.cou-nty bI provlding a conlracling prcfs€me tor tocat ano srmtt u-r.ir,""e."r.
As a. marter padicipant, and pursuant ls puHic contact code g 2002, tne Counv ,.v ,*iiJ 

"pumhasing prcfcrence lo cerbin anuttee to vindioate he govefrmentrat p,rrpose * 
"n'c*rigilgCounty and r€gional economlc dev€lopment.

.SECTION 2. ADDMON OF CHAPTER O.06 TO INYO COUNTY COOE.

Chapter 6.06 F added lo the lnyo Coung Code to read ag bllows:

Ghrpter 6.06

COI{TRACTINC PREFERENCES

Src'tlom;
6.08,0t0
6r,6I120
6.06.030
8.00.040
6.06.050
8.06.060

Flndingo.
Dstlnltlom.
Osnsral Prcvlslons.
Local Buslnesr rnd Snall Brclnsee prsfennce.
Small Buclnefo Subconbrotlng proft rcnco.
Llnlt On Cortr*tlng Preference.

6.0e.0rc Flndlngs

Businessao locatbd in lnyo county contribute to he oconomic and eocjal wdl-being of sll
the citizens of the cornty, suoh busin*ses provde coovenlent servbes within ne C*.iv i"o
pronlde emplornrnt br county dtkene Furfior, lhe payEil paid by and.lncinle oalnro 6irocar
ursmesses_lend_.to be larycty wsnded wllhin the county, urhlch enhances thc bGiness
erwtlonnEnt in the county md fic well-bbing of its duzens, lt, b ln the pubtb inbrest to
enooufage € vibhnt buglne* qvq.utrne$ in tre-Gounty. .ptovldlng rnfuest purcflashg
prefgsnc€s for county businessegtrrfirers lho goar of buiHn! a nearny 6nomi in tE c;rty.'Furlh€r, provkting co.nlracting prder€nces for all small bus-lncssco ti attored ov smtJ r,li",
gxpfld$ ftg gpes of cortracte fur whlch prehrerrcec ?nay b gh/Fn, ard beneffG fi"a-is,iin
buslneiseq also fufihsring ths g@r ol bufldlng end malnnning a icreuiy locar econJmy. 

-. -'"

G,06.020 D:finlllons.

A A Srnall Busin!3g i8 a bu.slne€5 which is cefiffed by lhe shte of cqliftnria or fre snpll
Busine$s Administralion as a smdl businoss.

B. ALocalBurlnescbabusin€sswhlcft:
1. Has.it hoadquarbrB, disblbuton poinr or rocally-ovrned frEnchlsE locatod in or

having a slreot address wtthin fre c.qtpty fgr al teasr eix nionths tmmediatdv fioi ro flre
lssuance of the Equed for compelllive bids by tre County; ard

?- Hords any rcquked bush.ss ilcense by ajurrsdiction {ocared in rnvo countv: and
. 3. Empto!'6 at teajt one n!!!_* of ino partrirne emptoyeos'tnoii iirrmiii,residence is located wlthln lnyo county, or if thc business tias no enptoyeei, srran ue a nlst ffipsrcent own6d by one or more pergons whose primary residence is dcaied wltfiln tnyo county. '

1

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 17



4. Meets the conditions of one hrough lhree of th's subsect'pn, but wihln Mono or
lnyo and_Mono Countice, lf rlo lnyo County local bugin€Bs submits a birl trat ls wfrrin dght
perc€nt ofthe lou/esl bid subrnitted.

C. A Responslvc Bld ie a bid which r€sponds to he rcquircrnenls of the Bqu€st br blth
and ls submltted by a responsible bklder.

6.06.030 Glenenl Prcvblons. 
.

A Th€ pBterencss provided iri Urb cnaptor are lntended to ext€nd to the.limlt ol the
jutisdbtion of lnyo County under Calilornia lafl. Such pmforcncea do nol apply wtrere prohibited
by Federal or State lalr. Such preturences do not apdy wherc tundlng agendes prohibil suc*t
prebrences as a condltlon of proddhg funding for the antlclpailod pflect. Where thie Chapbr
provldes preferences br multiple classes ol enlities, and on€ or more of frose dases of entilles
a€ disallowed contrac{lng preference by Federal or state law or by the funding agency, those
dlsallowed entltles will not be provid€d preferences, but the remelning classes of endtiEs shall
raceive preferonccs.

B. Requests for bids or pruposals lssued by lhe Counly shal specify the appllcable
rbntracting preferences available ptrsuent to this Chapbr.

€.08.040 Locrl Buclness and Small Builnees Prsferenco.

Except as exchded by- Sedbn 6.(10.030(A), for all contr*ts ararded by lnyo County, lf
ihe lowest responElve bld l$ submitted by a local businessor a smsll buslness, hat buslness shatl
b6 ewarded the clntracl lf th€ lortest responsivo bH ls nol eubmitted by a local bushess or a
small btishes.s, the lowesl re6pon6iva bid submlfled by a IOOAil bushess. ttlat is wihin €ight
paroent of he lof,,sgt rcsponslve bld or by a small buslnG3s thet l8 wlthin frve porcont of h6
loffB$t r€sponsive bid shall be consichtsd frt low tid and lbat buglncsa shai be mvarded the.
contract To be ellgible, a local businoEs ar a small budn€ss shatr prwlde certification with its bid
that lt i6 such buslnoes as herein dofined.

6.06.050 SmrllButlirrsSubconlnctlngPrefercnoa

For publlc works and road construdiofi confract$ awanled by lnyo County, wherp no
entity qualising under hls Chept$ br a contracthg prcf€renoe suhnlb a.r,esponsive bid that b
the lou,esl or wlthln flve peroent of the lowesl rbspordve bld, he'€ shal bs a plBlet€nce given b
bids ln wNch at least ten percent of ths rpnetary valuc of he wod< lo be pofformed b
sobclnfedEd to a small businoss or bueinesses. f eudt tdd ls he lowest responsirc bid, lhat
oontEctor shall be auErd€d the contracil. lf euch bid is not the low?st r€Eponslye bld, any s.rch
bld that is wlthin five percent of the lou,est tesponsive bld shall be ooneldered the low trid, and
lhat contsaclor shal be awarded the contract

6.06.060 Limil On Contractlng Prefercnces.

Conkactng prefuencos underlhis Cftapter shall not exceed 910,fiF.00 br any one
soliciEtion and sward detenninston,

sEcnoN 3. SEVERABILITY

lf any seclion, subscclion, sentence, clause or phrase of ttis odinance is for any reason
held to be uncon8tltulional or invallJ, such decision shall not afioct he valldlty of the ronralnlng
porlbns of this ordinance, The Board of SupervlsorE hereby declares that it rrould have passed
this ordinancE and overy s€ction, subsection, sentence, dause or phrase not declared irualid or
unconstitutional, withoul regerd to whether any porlion of this oldinanoe urould be subseguenfly
d6clered unconstitutional or invalid.

2

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 18



SEGTION4. EFFECTTVEDATE

ThiB odinence Bhall hke eftuct and be in tutr force and efiect hirty (30) davs after its
adoplhn. Befure the expinton of fifieen (15) days ftom th€ adoptbo trereof, 

-Uris 
Ordtriance stralt

bglubliBhed as rcquired by Gotrernment code soction 2s124. The cierk of the Board io hereby
instructed and orderEd to so publish thb ordinance togeffier wlth frre names of flre Board
memhers voling hr and against the same.

PASSED Al'lD ADOPTED ttris :5rh day of__get_, 20i0, by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

ATTEST: Kevin Carunctrio
Clerk of he Board

el0rdinanca/ConbacIngPref{imB uriness

(r."t"rrd- A*-A)
Ridrad Gervantes, ChairporEon
lnyo County Bo6rd of Supervtsors

SupervLsors Arcularlus, Cash, Brown, Fortney end Cervantee
-0-
-0-
-0-

lnulD

3

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page 19



SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE COMMITMENT
(CONSTRUCTTON CONTRACTS)

NOTE: PLEASE REFER TO INSTRUCTIONS ON THE REVERSE SIDEAIEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM

Department: Invo Countv Public Works Department LOCATION: Indenendence. CA

PROJECTDESCRIPTION: CENTRALLIBRARYFLOORING

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT: $

BIDOPENINGDATE: .2019

BID ITEM NO ITEM OF WORKAND DESCRIPTION
OR SERVICES TO BE

SUBCONTRACTED OR MATERIALS
TO BE PROVIDED

LICENSE INFO./CERT.
No. ofLOCALAND
SMALLBUSINESS
ENTERPRISEAND

EXPIRATION
DATE

NAMEAND CONTACT
INFORMATION FOR LOCAL

AND SMALLBUSINESS
ENTERPRISE

(Must be certified on the date bids
are ooenedl

DOLLARAMOUNT
LOCALAND SMALL

BUSINESS
ENTERPRISE

For Inyo County to Complete:

Project Number:

Financing Type:

zP-18-073

Contract Award Date:

Checked by:

Print Name Signature Date

Total Claimed
Participation

$

%

Signature ofBidder

Date (Area Code) Tel. No.

Person to Contact (Please Type or Print)

Small Business Enterprise (Rev 5/10)

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page20



rNSrRUCrroNs- Small Business Enterprise Commitment (coNSrRUcrIoN coNTRAcrs)
(0s/10)

ALL BIDDERS:

PLEASE NOTE: It is the bidderos responsibility to verify that the Small Business Enterprise (SBE)
subcontractors are certified by the proper certifying authorities, and submit evidence of that
certification with the bid. If a SBE prime contractor is not certified on the date of the bid openingo
the SBE prime contractor will not qualify for the contracting preference. If the SBE subcontractor
or subcontractors are not certified on the date of bid opening, that portion of that firmos
participation will not count toward the minimum ten percent of the monetary value of the work
needed to qualify for the contracting preference.

The form requires specific information regarding the construction contract: Total Contract Amount, Bid
Opening Date, and Bidder's Name.

Indicate the appropriate bid item number (or numbers); Item of Work and description or services to be
subcontracted or materials to be provided by the SBE; the SBE's business license information/expiration
date, certification number and its expiration date; the SBE's contact information, including company and
contact name, address, and telephone number; and the dollar amount expected to be paid to the SBE.

IMPOKIANT: Identiff all SBE firms participating in the project regardless of tier, including the prime
contractor, if an SBE. Names of the First Tier SBE Subcontractors and their respective item(s) of work
listed should be consistent, where applicable, with the names and items of work in the "List of
Subcontractors" submitted with your bid. Provide copies of the SBEs' quotes, and if applicable, a copy
ofjoint venture agreements pursuant to the Subcontractors Listing Law and the Special Provisions.

There is a column for the total SBE dollar amount. Enter the Total Claimed SBE Participation dollars and
percentage amount of items of work submitted with your bid pursuant to the special provisions. (If 100%
of item is not to be performed or furnished by the SBE, describe exact portion of time to be performed or
furnished by the SBE.)

This form must be submitted with the bid if the bidder is attempting to qualifu for the SBE conhacting
preference. If the bidder is not attempting to qualiff for the SBE contracting preference the form does not
need to be submitted.

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page2l



FINAL REPORT - UTILIZATION OF SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISES
(sBE), FTRST-TIER SUBCONTRAGTORS

To be completed by the contractor and submitted to the Resident Engineer upon project completion

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page22

CONTRACT COMPLETION DATE

ESTIMATED CONTRACT AMOLINT

DATE OF
FINAL

PAYMENT

(i) Original
Commitment

$

2 I CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE INEORMATTON IS COMPLETE AND CORRECT

REPRESENTATIVES S IGNATURE BUSINESS
NUMBER

4) To rHE BEST oF MY KNowLEDGE, THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS COMPLETE AND CORRECT
DATE

DATE
WORK

COMPLETE
CONTRACT PAYMENTS

SBE

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

BUSINESS PHONE
NUMBER

NON.SBE

$

$

s

$

$

$

$

$

BUSINESS ADDRESS

RESIDENT ENGINEER'S SIGNATURE

SBE CERT.
NUMBER

TOTAL

DESCRIPTION OF WORK PERFORMED

PROJECT: Central Library Flooring Project

PRIMECONTRACTOR

SUBCONTRACTORNAME,
BUSINESS ADDRESS, AND

PHONE
BID

ITEMNO.



INSTRUGTIONS - FINAL REPORT - UTILIZATION OF SMALL BUSINESS
ENTERPRTSES (SBE), FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTORS

The form requires specific information regarding the construction project, including the prime
contractor name and address, contract completion date, and estimated contract amount. The
objective of the form is to describe who did what by bid item numbers and description, asking
for specific dollar values of item work completed broken down by subcontractors who
performed the work, SBE and non-SBE work forces. SBE prime contractors are required to
show the date of work performed by their own forces along with the corresponding dollar value
of work.

Indicate appropriate bid item number or numbers, a description of work performed or materials
provided, and subcontractor name and address. For those firms who are SBE, enter the SBE
certification number. The SBE shall provide their certification number to the contractor and notify
the contractor in writing with the date of decertification if their status changes during the course of
the project.

The form has two columns for the dollar value to be entered for the item work performed by the
subcontractor. The non-SBE column is used to enter the dollar value of work performed by firms
who are not certified SBEs. Enter the dollar value of work performed by firms who are SBEs in the
SBE column.

If the prime contractor or a subcontractor performing work as a SBE on the project becomes
decertified and still performs work after their decertification date, enter the total value performed
by the contractor/subcontractor under the appropriate SBE identification column.

If the prime contractor or a subcontractor performing work as a non-SBE on the project becomes
certified as a SBE, enter the dollar value of all work performed after certification as a SBE under
the appropriate SBE identification column.

Enter the total of each column on the form.

Central Library Flooring Project
Bid Proposal Forms

Page23



CONTRACT
AND

BOND FORMS
FOR

CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT
Independence, CA

ENCLOSURES:

Contract
Faithful Performance Bond
Labor and Material Payment Bond

Central Library Flooring Project
Contract and Bonds



IPAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

Central Library Flooring Project
Contract and Bonds



CONTRACT
BYAND BETWEEN

THE COUNTY OF INYO
and

, CONTRACTOR

for the

PROJECT

THIS CONTRACT is awarded by the COUNTY OF INYO to CONTRACTOR on and
made and entered into effective, 20______, by and between the
COTINTY OF INYO, a political subdivision of the State of California, (hereinafter referred to as

"COLINTY"), and (hereinafter referred to as

"CONTRACTOR"), for the construction or removal of
PROJECT (hereinafter refer.red to as "PROJECT"), which parties agree, for and in
consideration of the mutual promises, as follows:

1. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. CONTRACTOR shall furnish, at his/her own
expense, all labor, materials, methods, processes, implements, tools, machinery equipment,
transportation, permits, services, utilities, and all other items, and related functions and otherwise
shall perform all work necessary or appurtenant to construct the Project in accordance with the
Special Provisions listed on Exhibit (( )) within the Time for Completion set forth, as well as

in all other in the Contract Documents, for:

Title: PROJECT

2. TIME OF COMPLETION. Project work shall begin within calendar days after
receipt of the Notice to Proceed (NTP) (or on the start of work date identified in the NTP) and
shall continue until all requested services are completed. Said services shall be completed no
later than the Time of Completion as noted in the Project's Special Provisions. Procedures for
any extension of time shall be complied with as noted in the Project's Special Provisions.

3. PAYMENT/CONSIDERATION. For the performance of all such work, COUNTY
shall pay to CONTRACTOR for said work the total amount of:

dollars ($
adjusted by such increases or decreases as authorized in accordance with the Contract
Documents, and payable at such times and upon such conditions as otherwise set forth in the
Contract Documents.

4. ALL PROVISIONS SET FORTH HEREIN. CONTRACTOR and COUNTY agree
that this Contract shall include and consist of:

a. Al1 of the provisions set forth expressly herein;
b. The Bid Proposal Fom, the Faithful Performance Bond, and the Labor

and Materials Payment Bond, all of which are incorporated herein and made apart hereof by this
reference; and

Project
Construction Contract and Attachments - No. I47

Page I of12
07262017



c. All of the other Contract Documents, as described in Section 5-1.02,
"Definitions," of the Standard Specifications of the Inyo County Public Works Department,
dated October, 2015, all of which are incorporated herein and made apart of this Contract by this
reference, including without limitation, the Bid Package, the Standard Specifications of the Inyo
County Public Works Department, dated October,2015, and the Special Provisions concerning
this Project including the Appendices, the Plans, any and all amendments or changes to any of
the above-listed documents, including, without limitation, contract change orders, and any and
all documents incorporated by reference into any of the above-listed documents.

5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. Contractor represents that he/she is qualified and
licensed to perform the work to be done as required in this Contract. County relies upon the
representations of Contractor regarding professional and/or trade training, licensing, and ability
to perform the services as a material inducement to enter into this Contract. Acceptance of work
by the County does not operate to release Contractor from any responsibility to perform work to
professional andlor trade standards. Contractor shall provide properly skilled professional and
technical personnel to perform all services under this Contract. Contractor shall perform all
services required by this Contract in a manner and according to the standards observed by a
competent practitioner of the profession. All work products of whatsoever nature delivered to
the County shall be prepared in a manner conforming to the standards of quality normally
observed by a person practicing in Contractor's profession and/or trade.

6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Nothing contained herein or any document
executed in connection herewith, shall be construed to create an employer-employee, partnership
or joint venture relationship between County and Contractor, nor to allow County to exercise
discretion or control over the manner in which Contractor performs the work or services that are
the subject matter of this Contract; provided, however, the work or services to be provided by
Contractor shall be provided in a manner consistent with reaching the County's objectives in
entering this Contract.

Contractor is an independent contractor, not an employee of County or any of its
subsidiaries or affiliates. Contractor will not represent him/herself to be nor hold her/himself out
as an employee of County. Contractor acknowledges that s/he shall not have the right or
entitlement in or to any of the pension, retirement or other benefit programs now or hereafter
available to County's employees. The consideration set forth in Paragraph 3 shall be the sole
consideration due Contractor for the services rendered hereunder. It is understood that County
will not withhold any amounts for payment of taxes from the Contractor's compensation
hereunder. Any and all sums due under any applicable state, federal or municipal law or union
or professional andlor trade guild regulations shall be Contractor's sole responsibility. Contractor
shall indemni$ and hold County harmless from any and all damages, claims and expenses
arising out of or resulting from any claims assefied by atry third party, including but not limited
to a taxing authority, as a result of or in connection with payments due it from Contractor's
compensation.

7. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING. The parties recognize that a
substantial inducement to County for entering into this Contract is the professional reputation,
experience and competence of Contractor. Assignments of any and/or all rights, duties or
obligations of the Contractor under this Contract will be permitted only with the express consent

Project
Construction Contract and Attachments - No. 147

Page 2 of 12
07262017



of the County. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the work to be performed under
this Contract without the written authorization of the County. If County consents to such
subcontract, Contractor shall be fully responsible to County for all acts or omissions of the
subcontractor. Nothing in this Contract shall create any contractual relationship between County
and subcontractot, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the County to pay any monies
due to any such subcontractor, unless otherwise required by law.

8. CLAIMS RB,SOLUTION. Pursuant to Section 9204 of the Public Contract Code, any
and all claims submitted by Contractor to County will follow the provisions as set forth in the
Project's Special Provisions.

9. POLITICAL REFORM ACT. Contractor is not a designated employee within the

meaning of the Political Reform Act because Contractor:

a. Will conduct research and arrive at conclusions with respect to his/her rendition of
information, advice, recommendation or counsel independent of the control and direction of the
County or of any County official, other than normal Contract monitoring; and

b. Possesses no authority with respect to any County decision beyond rendition of
information, advice, recommendation or counsel [FPPC Reg. 18700(aX2)].

10. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS.
Performance Standards: Contractor shall use the standard of care in its profession

and/or trade to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, codes, ordinances and
regulations that relate to the work or services to be provided pursuant to this Contract.

a. Safety Trainine:
i. Contractor shall provide such safety and other training as needed to assure

work will be performed in a safe and healthful manner "in a language" that is
understandable to employees receiving the training. The training shall in all respects be
in compliance with CAL OSHA; and

ii. Contractor working with employees shall maintain a written Injury and Illness
Prevention (IIP) Program2 a copy of which must be maintained at each worksite or at a
central worksite identified for the employees, if the Contractor has non-fixed worksites;
and

iii. Contractor using subcontractors with the approval of the County to perform
the work which is the subject of this Contract shall require each subcontractor working
with employees to comply with the requirements of this section.
b. Child" Family and Spousal Support reporting Obligations:

i. Contractor shall comply with the state and federal child, family and spousal
support reporting requirements and with all lawfully served wage and earnings
assignment orders or notices of assignment relating to child, family and spousal support
obligations.
c. Nondiscrimination:

i. Contractor shall not discriminate in employment practices or in the delivery
of services on the basis of membership in a protected class which includes any class
recognized by law and not limited to race, color, religion, sex (gender), sexual
orientation, marital status, national origin (Including language use restrictions), ancestry,
disability (mental and physical, including HIV and Aids), medical Conditions
(cancer/genetic characteristics), age (40 and above) and request for family care leave.

Project
Construction Contract and Attachments - No. 147

Page3 of 12
07262017



ii. Contractor represents that it is in compliance with federal and state laws
prohibiting discrimination in employment and agrees to stay in compliance with the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. sections l2l0l, et. seq.), Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 5101, et. seq.), Title VII (42
U.S.C. 2000, et. seq.), the California Fair Employment Housing Act (Califomia
Government Code sections 12900, et. seq.) and regulations and guidelines issued
pursuant thereto.

11. LICENSES. Contractor represents and warrants to County that it has all licenses,
permits, qualifications, insurance and approvals of whatsoever nature which are legally required
of Contractor to practice its trade and/or profession. Contractor represents and warrants to
County that Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times
during the term of this Contract, any licenses, permits, insurance and approvals which are legally
required of Contractor to practice its and/or profession.

12. PREVAILING WAGE. Pursuant to Section 1720 et seq. of the Labor Code,
Contractor agrees to comply with the Department of Industrial Relations regulations, to which
this Contract is subject, the prevailing wage per diem rates in Inyo County have been determined
by the Director of the State Department of Industrial Relations. These wage rates appear in the
Departrnent publication entitled "General Prevailing Wage Rates," in effect at the time the
project is advertised. Future effective wage rates, which have been predetermined and are on file
with the State Department of Industrial Relations are referenced but not printed in said
publication. Such rates of wages are also on file with the State Department of Industrial
Relations and the offices of the Public Works Department of the County of Inyo and are
available to any interested party upon request. Contractor agrees to submit certified payroll to
County and comply with the Departrnent of Industrial Relations regulations in submitting the
certified payroll.

13. CONTROLLING LAW VENUE. This Contract is made in the County of Inyo, State
of California. The parties specifically agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the Superior Court of
California for the County of Inyo.

14. WRITTEN NOTIFICATION. Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or
communication that either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in
writing and either served personally or sent prepaid, first class mail. Any such notice, demand,
et cetera, shall be addressed to the other party at the address set forth herein below. Either party
may change its address by notiSing the other party of the change of address. Notice shall be
deemed communicated within 48 hours from the time of mailing if mailed as provided in this
section.

If to County: County of Inyo
Public Works Department
Attn: Ashley Helms
168 N. Edwards
PO Drawer Q
Independence, CA 93526

Project
Construction Contract and Attachments - No. 147

Page 4 of 12
07262017



If to Contractor

15. AMENDMENTS. This Contract may be modified or amended only by a written
document executed by both Contractor and County and approved as to form by Inyo County
Counsel.

16. WAIVER. No failure on the part of either party to exercise any right or remedy
hereunder shall operate as a waiver of any other right or remedy that party may have hereunder.

17. TERMINATION. This Contract may be terminated for the reasons stated below:
a. Immediately for cause, if either party fails to perform its responsibilities

under this Contract in a timely and professional manner and to the satisfaction of the
other party or violates any of the terms or provisions of this Contract. If termination
for cause is given by either party to the other and it is later determined that the other
party was not in default or default was excusable, then the notice of termination shall
be deemed to have been given without cause pursuant to paragraph 6(b" of this
section; or

b. By either party without cause upon fifteen (15) days' written notice of
termination. Upon termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for
services performed up to the effective date of termination; or

c. By County upon oral notice from the Board of Supervisors based on funding
ending or being materially decreased during the term of this Contract.

18.
Contract.

TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. Time is of the essence for every provision in this

19. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Contract is held to be invalid, void or
unenforceable, the remainder of the provision and/or provisions shall remain in full force and
effect and shall not be affected, impaired or invalidated.

20. CONTRACT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS. It is
understood and agreed by the parties that this Contract is subject to the review and approval by
the Inyo County Board of Supervisors upon Notice and Public Hearing. In the event that the
Board of Supervisors declines to enter into or approve said Contract, it is hereby agreed to that
there is, in fact, no binding agreement, either written or oral, between the parties herein.

21. ATTACHMENTS. All attachments referred to are incorporated herein and made a

part of this Contract.

22. EXECUTION. This Contract may be executed in several counterparts, each of which
shall constitute one and the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties. In
approving this Contract, it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such
counterpart.

Project
Construction Contract and Attachments - No. 147

Page 5 of 12
07262017



ByBy:

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Contract, including the Contract Documents and
all other documents which are incorporated herein by reference, constitutes the complete and
exclusive agreement between the County and Contractor. All prior written and oral
communications, including correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and representations, are
superseded in total by this Contract.

---o0o---

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR have each caused this Contract to be

executed on its behalf by its duly authorized representative, effective as of the day and year first
above written.

COUNTY CONTRACTOR

COUNTY OF INYO

Name: Name:

Title Title:

Dated: Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

CountyAuditor

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

Project
Construction Contrapt and Attachments - No. 147

Page 6 of 12

County Risk Manager

07262017



ATTACHMENT 1

PROJECT

FAITHF'UL PERFORMANCE BOND
(t00% oF CONTRACT AMOUNT)

KNOWALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That

(Name of Contractor)
and

as Principal, hereinaftet " Contractor,"

(Name of Corporate Surety)

as Corporate Surety, hereinafter called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the County of Inyo
as Obligee, hereinafter called County, in the amount of

dollars ($ ), for the
payment whereof Contractor and Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assignees, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, Contractor has, by written Contract, dated 20-,
entered into an Contract with the County for the Construction of the

PROJECT (hereinafter referred to as "Project"), to be constructed in
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract for the Project, which contract
is by reference incorporated herein and is hereinafter referred to as the "Contract."

NOV/, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that, if Contractor
shall promptly and faithfully perform said Contract, then this obligation shall be null and void;
otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect.

The Surety hereby waives notice of any alteration or extension of time made by the County.

Whenever Contractor shall be, and is declared by County to be, in default under the Contract, the
County having performed Owner's obligations thereunder, the Surety may promptly remedy the
default, or shall promptly either:

1. Complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions; or,

2. Obtain a Bid or Bids for completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and
conditions, and upon determination by Surety of the lowest responsible Bidder, or if
the County elects, upon determination by the County and the Surety jointly of the
lowest responsible Bidder, arrange for a Contract between such Bidder and County,
and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default or a
succession of defaults under the Contract or contracts of completion arranged under
this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the balance of the
Contract price; but not exceeding, including other costs and damages for which the
Surety may be liable hereunder, the amount set forth in the first paragraph hereof. The

Project
Construction Contract and Attachments - No. 147

PageT of12
o7262017



term "balance of the Contract price", as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total
amount payable by County to Contractor under the Contract and any amendments
thereto, less the amount properly paid by County to Contractor.

Any suit under this Bond must be instituted before the expiration of two (2) years from the date
on which final payment under the Contract falls due, or the date on which any wananty or
guarantee period expires, whichever is later.

No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other
than the County named herein.

---o0o---

Project
Construction Contract and Attachments - No. 147

Page 8 of 12
07262017



Signed and sealed this _ day of 20

(Name of Corporate Surefy)

By
(Signature)

(SEAL)

(Title of Authorized Person)

(Address for Notices to be Sent)

(Name of Contractor)

By:
(Signature)

(sEAL)

(Title of Authorized Person)

(Address for Notices to be Sent)

NOTE: THE SIGNATURES OF THE CONTRACTOR AND THE SURETY MUST
EACH BE ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC (OR OTIII,R OFFICER
AUTHORIZED UNDER CALIFORNIA LAIY) AND THE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND.
The Faithful Performance Bond must be executed by a corporate surety on this form. No
substitutions will be accepted. If an attorney-in-fact signs for the surety, an acknowledged
statement from the surety appointing and empowering the attorney-in-fact to execute such bonds
in such amounts on behalf of the surety must accompany the Faithful Performance Bond.

ADDRESS OF COT]NTY FOR NOTICES TO BE SENT:
County of Inyo
224 North Edwards Street, P.O. Box N
Independence, Californ ia 93 526

Project
Construction Contract and Attachments - No. 147

Page 9 of 12
o7262017



ATTACHMENT 2

PROJECT

LABORAND MATERIALS PAYMENT BOND
(100% oF CONTRACT AMOUNT)

KNOWALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that
(Name of Contractor)

as Principal, hereinafter "CONTRACTOR,"

and
(Name of Corporate Surety)

as Corporate Surety, hereinafter called SURETY are held and firmly bound unto the County of
Inyo as Obligee, hereinafter called COUNTY, for the use and benefit of claimants as hereinafter

defined in the amount of

dollars ) for the payment whereof Contractor and Surety bind themselves, their
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assignees, jointly and severally, firmly by these
presents.

WHEREAS, Contractor has by written contract dated 20 _,
entered into an Contract with the County for the construction of the
PROJECT (hereinafter referred to as "PROJECT"), to be constructed in accordance with the
terms and conditions set forth in the contract for the PROJECI which contract is by reference
incorporated herein, and is hereinafter referred to as the "CONTRACT."

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that, if Contractor
shall promptly make payment to all claimants as hereinafter defined, for all labor and materials
used or reasonably required for use in the performance of the Contract, then this obligation shall
be void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect, subject, however, to the following
conditions:

1. A claimant is defined as one having a direct contract with the Contractor, or with a
Subcontractor of the Contractor, for labor, materials, or both, used or reasonably required
for use in the performance of the Contract. Labor and materials is construed to include,
but not limited to, that part of water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone
service or rental of equipment directly applicable to the Contract.

2. The above named Contractor and Surety hereby jointly agree with the County that every
claimant as herein defined, who has not been paid in full before the expiration of a period
of ninety (90) calendar days after the date on which the last of such claimant's work or

Pro.ject
Construction Contract and Attachments - No. 147

Page 10 of 12
07262017



labor was done or performed, or materials were furnished by such claimant, may sue on
this Bond for the benefit of such claimant, prosecute the suit to final judgment for such
sum or sums as may be justly due claimant, and have execution thereon. The County shall
not be liable for the payment of any costs or expenses of any such suit.

3. No suit or action shall be commenced hereunder by any claimant:

a) Unless claimant, other than one having a direct contract with the Contractor, shall have
given written notice to any two of the following: the Contractor, the County, or the
Surety above named, within ninety (90) calendar days after such claimant did or
performed the last of the work or labor, or furnished the last of the material for which
said claim is made, stating with substantial accuracy the amount claimed and the
name of the parfy to whom the materials were furnished, or for whom the work or
labor was done or performed. Such notice shall be served by mailing the same by
registered mail or certified mail, postage prepaid, in any envelope addressed to the
Contractor, County, or Surety, at the address below, or at any place where an office is
regularly maintained for the transaction of their business. Such notice may also be
served in the state in which the aforesaid project is located, save that such service
need not be made by a public offrcer.

b) After the expiration of one (1) year following the date on which County accepted the
work done under the Contract. However, if any limitation embodied in this Bond is
prohibited by uny law controlling the construction hereof, such limitation shall be
deemed to be amended so as to be equal to the minimum period of limitation
permitted by such law.

c) Other than in a State Court of competent jurisdiction in and for the County or other
political subdivision of the state in which the Project, or any part thereof, is situated,
and not elsewhere.

4. The amount of this Bond shall be reduced by and to the extent of any payment or
payments made in good faith hereunder, inclusive of the payment by Surety of mechanics'
liens which may be filed or recorded against said Project, whether or not claim for the
amount of such lien be presented under and against this Bond.

---o0o---

Project
Construction Contract and Attachments - No. 147

Page 1 I of 12
07262017



Signed and sealed this _ day of 20

(Name of Contractor)

By
(Signature)

(SEAL)

(Title of Authorized Person)

(Address for Notices to be Sent)

(Name of Corporate Surety)

By:
(Signature)

(sEAL)

(Title of Authorized Person)

(Address for Notices to be Sent)

NOTE:
THE SIGNATURES OF THE CONTRACTORAND THE SURE,TY MUST BE
ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE A NOTARY PUBLIC (OR OTHER OFF'ICER
AUTHORIZED UNDER CALIFORNIA LA\Y).
The Labor and Materials Payment Bond must be executed by a corporate surety on this form. No
substitutions will be accepted. If an attorney-in-fact signs for the surety, an acknowledged
statement from the surety appointing and empowering the attorney-in-fact to execute such bonds
in such amounts on behalf of the surety, must accompany the Labor and Materials Payment
Bond.

ADDRESS OF COUNTY FOR NOTICES TO BE SENT TO:
County of Inyo
224N. Edwards, P.O. Box N
Independence, Califo rniz 93526

Project
Construction Contract and Attachments - No. 147

Page 12 of 12
07262017



SPECIAL PROYISIONS

FOR

CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJBCT
Independenee, CA

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions



IPAGE TNTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions



COUNTY OF INYO
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

SPECIFICATIONS APPROVAL

CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT
Independence, CA

These Special Provisions have been prepared by the Inyo County Public Works Department
under the direction of the undersigned and are approved for the work contemplated herein.

Acting Director of Public Works

7/t I

Approval Date

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions



IPAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions



SPECIAL PROVISIONS
CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJECT

TABLE OF'CONTENTS

I. INTRODUCTION / GENERAL..... I

I

I

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

III. CONTRACT AWARD AND EXECUTION _ SECTION 3...............

3-1.04 CONTRACT AWARD

3-1.05 CONTRACT BONDS

3-1.06 CONTRACT LICENSE...............

3-1.07 INSURANCE POLICIES ...........

3-1.08 SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION ....

3-1.1 8 CONTRACT EXECUTION ..........

IV. LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO THE PUBLIC - SECTION 7....

7-I.O2K WAGES

7-1.05 INDEMNIFICATION ...........5

7-t.06 INSURANCE...............

7-I.06A GENERAL

7-I.O6C WORKERS COMPENSATION

7 -I.O6D LIABILITY INSURANCE............

7-T.06I SELF-INSURANCE....

V. PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS _ SECTION 8.....

.... I

.2

.2

.2

J

4

.4

.4

.2

5

6

6

7

8

8

9

9

8.1.05 TIME

8-1.10 LTQUTDATEDDAMAGES

VI. CLAIMS RESOLUTION........

vIL ROOFING SPECIFICATIONS............... ...........11

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions



IPAGE INTENTTONALLY LEFT BLANK]

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions



I. INTRODUCTION / GENERAL:

The Central Library Flooring Project (Project), a public works project of Inyo County, is to be

constructed and completed in accordance with these Special Provisions, the Project Plans, and,
insofar as they are referenced herein, the Standard Specifications of the Inyo County Public
Works Department dated October, 2015 (Standard Specifications). The Special Provisions, the
Project Plans, and the sections of the Standard Specifications referenced herein, constitute a
portion of the ooContract Documents" (as that term is defined in section l-1.07 of the Standard

Specifications) governing the project and shall therefore be binding upon and observed by the
person/entity with whom the County of Inyo enters into contract for construction of the Project.

Copies of the Project Plans and the Standard Specifications may be obtained from the Inyo
County Public Works Department in Independence, California.

Unless indicated otherwise, all references in this document to sections are to those in the Inyo
County Standard Specifications October 2015 or to other sections in these Special Provisions. In
case of any irreconcilable conflict between the requirements of the Inyo County Standard

Specifications October 2015 referenced herein or the Caltrans Standard Specifications and these
Special Provisions, these Special Provisions shall prevail and be observed.

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

This project consists of installation of Linoleum Sheet flooring in three rooms of the Central
Library located in the County Courthouse building (located at 168 N. Edwards St, Independence,
California). The project will be completed in three phases, to allow book shelves and furniture to
be moved between the rooms. Fumiture moving and flooring removal is not in the scope of this
project and will be completed by County forces or under a separate contract.

An optional job walk is scheduled for 2019, at _at the Central Library
located at 168 N. Edwards St, Independence, California.

III. CONTRACT AWARD AND EXECUTION. SECTION 3:

3.I..04 CONTRACT AWARI)

Section 3-1.04 of the Standard Specifications shall be amended as follows

Whenever possible, the award to the lowest bidder, if made, will be made no later than thirty (30)
calendar days after the opening of bid proposals. However, failure of the County to make award
within thirty (30) calendar days after the opening of the bid proposals shall not relieve the
Contractor of its requirement to deliver an executed contract and bonds, and any other required
documents, within l5 days of Notification of Award, as further described in Section 3-1.18:
Contract Execution.

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

Page I



3-1.0s CONTRACT BONDS (PUB CONT CODE S$ 1022r AND 10222)

The successful bidder must furnish 2 bonds:

1. Payment bond to secure the claim payments of laborers, workers, mechanics, or
materialmen providing goods, labor, or services under the Contract. This bond must be

equal to at least 100 percent of the Contract amount.
2. Performance bond to guarantee the faithful performance of the Contract. This bond must

be equal to at least 100 percent of the Contract amount.

The bond forms are in the Bid Book.

3-1.06 CONTRACTOR LICENSE

For a federal-aid contract, the Contractor must be properly licensed as a contractor from contract
award through Contract acceptance (Pub Cont Code $ 10164).

For a non-federal-aid contract:

1. The Contractor must be properly licensed as a contractor from bid opening through
Contract acceptance (Bus & Prof Code $ 7028.15)

2. Joint venture bidders must obtain a joint venture license before contract award (Bus &
Prof Code $ 7029.1)

3-1.07 INSURANCE POLICIES

The successful bidder must submit:

1. Copy of its commercial general liability policy and its excess policy or binder until such
time as a policy is available, including the declarations page, applicable endorsements,
riders, and other modifications in effect at the time of contract execution. Standard ISO
form no. CG 0001 or similar exclusions are allowed if not inconsistent with section 7-
1.06. Allowance of additional exclusions is at the discretion of the Department.

2. Certificate of insurance showing all other required coverages. Certificates of insurance,
as evidence of required insurance for the auto liability and any other required policy,
shall set forth deductible amounts applicable to each policy and all exclusions that are

added by endorsement to each policy. The evidence of insurance shall provide that no
cancellation, lapse, or reduction of coverage will occur without 10 days prior written
notice to the Department.

3. A declaration under the penalty of perjury by a CPA certifying the accountant has applied
GAAP guidelines confirming the successful bidder has sufficient funds and resources to
cover any selfinsured retentions if the self-insured retention is over $50,000.

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

Page2



If the successful bidder uses any form of self-insurance for workers compensation in lieu of an
insurance policy, it shall submit a certificate of consent to self-insure under Labor Code $ 3700

3-1.08 SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION

Section 3-1.08 is amended as follows.

This project is subject to Inyo County Ordinance No. I156, An Ordinance of the Board of
Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, Adding Chapter 6.06 to the Inyo County
Code to Provide Contacting Preferences for Local and Small Businesses, which is included in the
bid package.

The bidder must:
1) Take necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that small business enterprises (SBEs)

have opportumty to participate in the contract.
2) Make work available to SBEs and select work parts consistent with available SBE

subcontractors and suppliers.

To qualifr for the SBE contracting preference as described in Inyo County Ordinance No. 1156
(Ordinance No. 1156), Section 6.06.040, the bidder must show that he/she is a SBE as described
in Ordinance No. 1156 Section 6.06.020.

To qualify for the SBE subcontracting preference as described in Ordinance No. I156, Section
6.06.050, the bidder must show that the subcontractor(s) proposed for work on the project is/are
a SBE(s) as described in Ordinance No. 1156 Section6.06.020.

It is the bidders' responsibility to verify that the SBE(s) is certified as a small
business enterprise at the date of bid opening.

SBE CONTRACTING PREFERENCE COMMITMENT SUBMITTAL:
If the bidder is claiming the SBE contracting preference, the bidder must submit SBE
information on the "Small Business Enterprise Commitment (Construction Contracts)," form
included in the Bid Package. If the bidder is not claiming the SBE contracting preference,
remove the form from the Bid Package before submitting your bid.

The bidder must Submit written confirmation from each SBE subcontractor stating that it is
participating in the contract. Include confirmation with the SBE Commitment form. A copy of a
SBE subcontractor's quote will serve as written confirmation that the SBE is participating in the
contract.

SUBCONTRACTOR AND SBE RECORDS:
The Contractor shall maintain records showing the name and business address of each first-tier
subcontractor. The records shall also show the name and business address of every SBE
subcontractor, SBE vendor of materials and SBE trucking company, regardless of tier. The
records shall show the date of payment and the total dollar figure paid to all of these firms. SBE

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

Page 3



prime contractors shall also show the date of work performed by their own forces along with the
corresponding dollar value of the work.

Upon completion of the contract, a summary of these records shall be prepared on o'Final Report

- Utilization of Small Business Enterprises - (SBE), First-Tier Subcontractors," certified correct
by the Contractor or his authorized representative, and submitted to the Engineer. The form shall
be fumished to the Engineer within 90 days from the date of contract acceptance.

3.1.18 CONTRACT EXECUTION

The successful bidder must sign the Contract form.

Deliver two (2) fully executed (except for the County's signature) to the Office Engineer:
1. Signed Contract form
2. Contract bonds
3. Documents identified in section 3-1.07
4. Payee Data Record
5. Small Business (SB) Participation Report form
6. For a federal-aid contract, Caltrans Bidder - DBE Information form

The Office Engineer must receive these documents before the 1Oth business day after the bidder
receives the contract.

The bidder's security may be forfeited for failure to execute the contract within the time specified
(Pub Cont Code $$ 10181, 10182, and 10183).

A copy of the Contract form is included in your bid book.

LEGAL RELATIONS AI\D RESPONSIBILITY TO THE PUBLIC _
SECTION 7:

Section 7 of the Standard Specifications are amended to read as follows:

7-t.02KQ) WAGES

The general prevailing wage rates, determined by the Department of Industrial Relations, for
Inyo County, dre available at the County of Inyo address or the Califomia DIR web site at

http:/iwww.dir.ca.gov. Changes are available at the same locations. These wage rates are not
included in the Contract Documents. All labor will be paid at not less than these minimum wage
rates.

7-1.02K(3) Certified Payroll Records (Labor Code $1776)

Contractor must keep accurate payroll records, and submit a copy of your certified payroll
records weekly, including those of subcontractors to the following:

1. Inyo County Department of Public Works
Central LibraryTlooring Project

Page 4

IV



2. Division of I abor Standards Enforcement of the Department of Industrial Relations
3. Division of Apprenticeship Standards of the Department of Industrial Relations

Include in the certified payroll:

1. Each employee's:
1.1. Full name
1.2. Address
1.3. Social security number
I .4. Work classification
1.5. Straight time and overtime hours worked each day and week
1.6. Actual wages paid for each day to each:

1.6.1. Joumeyman
1.6.2. Apprentice
1.6.3. Worker
1.6.4. Other employee you employ for the work

l.7.Pay rute
1.8. Itemized deductions made
1.9. Check number issued

2. Apprentices and the apprentice-to-journeyman ratio
3. A Statement of Compliance signed under penalty of perjury that declares:

a) The information contained in the payroll record is true, correct, and complete
b) The employer has complied with the requirements of sections 1771,1811, and 1815 for

any work performed by his or her employees on the public works project
c) The wage rates paid are at least those required by the Contract

7-1.05 INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the County of Inyo and its officers,
officials, employees, and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses
including attomey fees and litigation costs, arising out of the performance of the work described
herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any
subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts
any of them may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole negligence, or
willful misconduct of the County.

7.1.06A GENERAL INSURANCE

ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS: Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a
current A.M. Best rating of no less than A: VII if admitted in the State of California. If
Contractors Pollution Liability, Asbestos Pollution and/or Errors & Omissions coverages
are not available from an admitted insurer, the coverage may be written by a non-
admitted insurance company. A non-admitted company should have an A.M. Best rating
of A:X or higher. Exception may be made for the California State Compensation
Insurance Fund if not rated.

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

Page 5

1



2 VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE: Contractor shall furnishthe Entity with original
certificates and amendatory endorsements, or copies of the applicable insurance
language, effecting coverage required by this contract. All certificates and endorsements

are to be received and approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the
Contractor's obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require
complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
required by these specifications, at any time. Obtain a copy of the policy declarations
and endorsement page to facilitate verification of coverages and spot any undesirable
policy limitations or exclusions.

SUBCONTRACTORS: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors
maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall
ensure that Entity is an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors. For
CGL coverage subcontractors shall provide coverage with a format least as broad as CG
20 38 04 13.

SPECIAL RISKS or CIRCUMSTANCES: Entity reserves the right to modiff these

requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer,
coverage, or other special circumstances.

CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY NOT LIMITED BY INSURANCE: Nothing contained
in the insurance requirements is to be construed as limiting the liability of the Contractor
or the Contractor's sureties.

7-1.06C WORKERS' COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY INSURANCE

See Contractor's Labor Code Certification, Bid Certifications Page2.

Provide Employer's Liability Insurance in amounts not less than:

1. $1,000,000 for each accident for bodily injury by accident
2. $1,000,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease
3. $1,000,000 for each employee for bodily injury by disease

Waive all rights of subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, employees and

volunteers for losses arising from work performed by you.

7.1.06D LIABILITY INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01

covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations,
property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than

$1,0001000 per occurence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

Page 6

J

4

5



aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location (ISO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or
the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering any
auto (Code 1), or if Contractor has no owned autos, hired (Code 8) and non-owned (Code
9) autos, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property
damage.

3. Contractors Pollution Liability and/or Asbestos Pollution Liability and/or Errors &
Omissions applicable to the work being performed, with a limit no less than $1,000,000
per claim or occwrence and $2,000,000 aggregate per policy period of one year.

4. If the contractor maintains broader coverage andlor higher limits than the minimums
shown above, the Entity requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or
higher limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of
the specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to the Entity.

7-I.O6I SELF.INSURANCE

Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Entity. At the option of the
Entity, the Contractor shall provide coverage to reduce or eliminate such self-insured retentions
as respects the Entity, its offrcers, officials, employees, and volunteers; or the Contractor shall
provide evidence satisfactory to the Entity guaranteeing payment of losses and related
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses. The policy language shall provide, or
be endorsed to provide,that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Entity.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The General Liability, Automobile Liability, Contractors Pollution Liability, andlor
Asbestos Pollution policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following
provisions:
1. The Entity, its officers, officialso employees, and volunteers are to be covered as

additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of work or operations
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts or equipment
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can
be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as

broad as ISO Form CG 20 10, CG 1l 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or
CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if later revisions used).

2. For any claims related to this project, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall
be primary insurance coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects
the Entity, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the Entity, its officers, officials, employees, agents, or
volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute with
it.

3. Each insurance policy required above shall provide that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to the Entity.

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

PageT

A.



B.

C

The Automobile Liability policy shall be endorsed to include Transportation Pollution
Liability insurance, covering materials to be transported by Contractor pursuant to the
contract. This coverage may also be provided on the Contractors Pollution Liability
policy.
If General Liability, Contractors Pollution Liability and/or Asbestos Pollution Liability
and/or Errors & Omissions coverages are written on a claims-made form:
1. The retroactive date must be shown, and must be before the date of the contract or

the beginning of contract work.
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at

least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made

policy form with a retroactive date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor
must purchase an extended period coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after
completion of contract work.

4. A copy of the claims reporting requirements must be submitted to the Entity for
review.

5. If the services involve lead-based paint or asbestos identification / remediation, the
Contractors Pollution Liability shall not contain lead-based paint or asbestos

exclusions. If the services involve mold identification / remediation, the Contractors
Pollution Liability shall not contain a mold exclusion and the definition of
"Pollution" shall include microbial matter including mold.

V. PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS _ SECTION 8

Amended to read as follows:

8-1.05 TIME

The Contractor shall complete all designated portions of the work required to be provided
pursuant to the contract no later than Fortv Five (4il Calen from and including the
Starting Date, plus such additional days, if any, which are expressly granted as extensions of
time by Contract Change Orders signed and issued by the County. Such total number of days

shall be referred to herein as the ooTime for Completion."

Failure of the Contractor to perform any covenant or condition contained in the Contract
Documents within the time period specified shall constitute material breach of this Contract
entitling the County to terminate the Contract unless the Contractor applies for, and receives, an

extension of time in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 8-1078 SS, "Time
Adjustments."

8-1.10 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

In accordance with Government Code Section 53069.85, the Contractor shall pay to the County
of Inyo, liquidated damages in the amounts of:

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

Page 8



$300.00 per day for each and every calendar day delay in finishing work in excess of the Time
for Completion specified.

The County shall be entitled to deduct the amounts of liquidated damages from any payment
otherwise due to the Contractor.

VI. CLAIMS RESOLUTION

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 9204

(a) The Legislature finds and declares that it is in the best interests ofthe state and its citizens to ensure that all
construction business performed on a public works project in the state that is complete and not in dispute is paid in
full and in a timely manner.

(b) Notwithstanding any other law, including, but not limited to, Article 7.1 (commencing with Section 10240) of
Chapter 1 of Part 2, Chapter I 0 (commencing with Section 19 100) of Part 2, and Arlicle I .5 (commencing with
Section 20104) of Chapter I of Part 3, this section shall apply to any claim by a contractor in connection with a
public works project.

(c) For purposes ofthis section:

(1) "Claim" means a separate demand by a contractor sent by registered mail or certified mail with return receipt
requested, for one or more of the following:

(A) A time extension, including, without limitation, for relief from damages or penalties for delay assessed by a
public entity under a contract for a public works project.

(B) Payment by the public entity of money or damages arising from work done by, or on behalf of, the contractor
pursuant to the contract for a public works project and payment for which is not otherwise expressly provided or to
which the claimant is not otherwise entitled.

(C) Payment of an amount that is disputed by the public entity.

(2) "Contractor" means any type of contractor within the meaning of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000) of
Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code who has entered into a direct contract with a public entity for a
public works project.

(3) (A) "Public enttty" means, without limitation, except as provided in subparagraph (B), a state agency,
department, office, division, bureau, board, or commission, the California State Universrty, the University of
California, a city, including a charter city, county, including a charter county, city and county, including a charter
city and county, district, special district, public authority, political subdivision, public corporation, or nonprofit
transit corporation wholly owned by a public agency and formed to carry out the purposes of the public agency.

(B) "Public entity" shall not include the following:

(i) The Department of Water Resources as to any project under the jurisdiction of that department.

(ii) The Department of Transportation as to any project under the jurisdiction of that department.

(iii) The Department of Parks and Recreation as to any project under the jurisdiction of that department.

(iv) The Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation with respect to any project under its jurisdiction pursuant to
Chapter 1l (commencing with Section 7000) of Title 7 of Part 3 of the Penal Code.

(v) The Military Department as to any project under the jurisdiction of that department.

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

Page 9



(vi) The Department of General Services as to all other projects.

(vii) The High-Speed Rail Authority.

(4) "Public works project" means the erection, construction, alteration, repair, or improvement of any public
structure, building, road, or other public improvement of any kind.

(5) "subcontractor" means any type of contractor within the meaning of Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 7000)
of Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code who either is in direct contract with a contractor or is a lower
tier subcontractor.

(d) (l) (A) Upon receipt of a claim pursuant to this section, the public entity to which the claim applies shall conduct

a reasonable review of the claim and, within a period not to exceed 45 days, shall provide the claimant a written
statement identi$ing what portion of the claim is disputed and what portion is undisputed. Upon receipt of a claim,
a public entity and a contractor may, by mutual agreement, extend the time period provided in this subdivision.

(B) The claimant shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim.

(C) If the public entity needs approval from its goveming body to provide the claimant a written statement

identi$ing the disputed portion and the undisputed portion of the claim, and the governing body does not meet

within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to extension of time following receipt of a claim sent by registered

mail or certified mail, retum receipt requested, the public entity shall have up to three days following the next duly
publicly noticed meeting of the goveming body after the 45-day period, or extension, expires to provide the claimant
a written statement identifring the disputed portion and the undisputed portion.

(D) Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the
public entity issues its written statement. If the public entity fails to issue a written statement, paragraph (3) shall

apply.

(2) (A) If the claimant disputes the public entity's written response, or if the public entity fails to respond to a claim
issued pursuant to this section within the time prescribed, the claimant may demand in writing an informal
conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon receipt of a demand in writing sent by
registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, the public entity shall schedule a meet and confer
conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute.

(B) Within l0 business days following the conclusion of the meet and confer conference, if the claim or any portion
of the claim remains in dispute, the public entity shall provide the claimant a written statement identi$ing the
portion of the claim that remains in dispute and the portion that is undisputed. Any payment due on an undisputed
portion of the claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the public entity issues its written statement.

Any disputed portion of the claim, as identified by the contractor in writing, shall be submitted to nonbinding
mediation, with the public entity and the claimant sharing the associated costs equally. The public entity and

claimant shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business days after the disputed portion of the claim has been

identified in writing. If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a mediator and those

mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party to mediate with regard to the disputed portion of the claim. Each

party shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator in connection with the selection of the neutral
mediator. If mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the claim remaining in dispute shall be subject to applicable
procedures outside this section.

(C) For purposes of this section, mediation includes any nonbinding process, including, but not limited to, neutral
evaluation or a dispute review board, in which an independent third party or board assists the parties in dispute

resolution through negotiation or by issuance of an evaluation. Any mediation utilized shall conform to the

timeframes in this section.

(D) Unless otherwise agreed to by the public entity and the contractor in writing, the mediation conducted pursuant

to this section shall excuse any further obligation under Section 20104.4 to mediate after litigation has been

commenced.

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

Page 10



(E) This section does not preclude a public entity from requiring arbitration ofdisputes under private arbitration or
the Public Works Contract Arbitration Program, if mediation under this section does not resolve the parties' dispute.

(3) Failure by the public entity to respond to a claim from a contractor within the time periods described in this
subdivision or to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section shall result in the claim being deemed rejected
in its entirety. A claim that is denied by reason of the public entity's failure to have responded to a claim, or its
failure to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section, shall not constitute an adverse finding with regard to
the merits of the claim or the responsibility or qualifications of the claimant.

(4) Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by this section shall bear interest at 7 percent per annum.

(5) Ifa subcontractor or a lower tier subconhactor lacks legal standing to assert a claim against a public entity
because privity ofcontract does not exist, the contractor may present to the public entity a claim on behalfofa
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor. A subcontractor may request in writing, either on his or her own behalf or
on behalf of a lower tier subcontractor, that the contractor present a claim for work which was performed by the
subcontractor or by a lower tier subcontractor on behalfofthe subcontractor. The subcontractor requesting that the
claim be presented to the public entity shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim. Within 45 days
of receipt of this written request, the contractor shall notiff the subcontractor in writing as to whether the contractor
presented the claim to the public entity and, if the original contractor did not present the claim, provide the
subcontractor with a statement of the reasons for not having done so.

(e) The text of this section or a summary of it shall be set forth in the plans or specifications for any public works
project that may give rise to a claim under this section.

(f) A waiver of the rights granted by this section is void and contrary to public policy, provided, however, that (l)
upon receipt of a claim, the parties may mutually agree to waive, in writing, mediation and proceed directly to the
commencement of a civil action or binding arbitration, as applicable; and (2) a public entity may prescribe
reasonable change order, claim, and dispute resolution procedures and requirements in addition to the provisions of
this section, so long as the contractual provisions do not conflict with or otherwise impair the timeframes and
procedures set forth in this section.

(g) This section applies to contracts entered into on or after January 1,2017.

(h) Nothing in this section shall impose liability upon a public entity that makes loans or grants available through a
competitive application process, for the failure of an awardee to meet its contractual obligations.

(i) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1,2020, and as of that date is repealed, unless a later
enacted statute, that is enacted before January 1,2020, deletes or extends that date.

VII. FLOORING SPECIFICATIONS

PART 1: GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF'WORI(
This section shall include all labor, materials and appliances required to complete all of the
work shown on the Plans and/or specified herein.

I.O2 SUMMARY
A. Provide:

1. Preparation and cleaning of subfloor to receive linoleum sheet flooring;
2. Installation of linoleum sheet flooring as per manufacturer's specifications;
3. Apply top set wall base to walls, columns, casework, and other permanent fixtures

in areas where top-set base is required.
Central Library Flooring Project

Special Provisions
Page ll



B. Payment:

1. Payment for Linoleum Flooring will include all labor, materials, equipment, and

incidentals necessary to complete all of the work shown on the Plans and/or
specified herein.

1.03 BTDDER QUALIFICATIONS

The selected Bidder shall supply the following within 14 days of the bid opening date:

A. All bidders shall be contractors who have specifically performed the application of
linoleum sheet flooring. Such bidders shall have performed the installation of linoleum
floors for not less than five years under the same company name. If requested, the

successful Bidder shall submit proof of experience within 14 days of the bid opening
date.

B. A copy of the proposed five year warranty from the manufacturer along with the bid.

C. Verification of insurance in the form of a sample insurance certificate. The contract
shall carry a minimum of $1,000,000 in general liability insurance on a continuing
basis.

D. A current license status printout from the Contractor's State License Board at

http://www.cslb.ca.gov to demonstratethatthe license is in good standing.

E. The contractor shall cooperate as required in performance of the specified inspecting
and testing.

F. Failure of the bidder to submit items A through D in a timely manner may result in the

bid being rejected.

I.O4 SUBMITTALS

If requestedo successful bidder shall submit:

A. Shop drawings, seaming plan, coving details, and manufacturer's technical data,

installation and maintenance instructions for flooring and accessories.

B. Samples: two (2) samples of the proposed linoleum sheet flooring. Samples shall be

two inches by four inches in size, minimum.

C. Safety Data Sheets (SDS) available for flooring products, adhesives, weld rod,
patching/leveling compounds, floor finishes (polishes) and cleaning agents.

1.05 WARRANTY AND CERTIFICATION

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

Page 12



The flooring manufacturer shall issue a S-year limited manufacturer's warranty, agreeing
to repair or replace flooring that fails within the warranty period.

1.06 QUALITY ASSURANCE

Single-Source Responsibility: provide types of flooring and accessories supplied by one
manufacturer, including leveling and patching compounds, and adhesives.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.OI SUMMARY

A11 flooring material and accessories shall be manufactured by the same manufacturer providing
the warranty. Manufactures considered will be:

1. Armstrong Flooring Inc.
2500 Columbia Av,
Lancaster, PA 17604
(888)276-7876

If another manufacturer is to be used in a bid, contractor must submit product specifications 5

business days before bid opening for approval as an equal.

2.02 LINOLEUM SHEET FLOORING MATERIALS

A. Provide Linoleum Sheet Flooring:

1. Description: The product shall consist of a polyurethane-coated homogeneous
mixture of linoleum cement (linseed oil, natural tree resins, drying oil catalysts),
wood flour, limestone, color pigments mixed and calendered onto a jute fabric
backing. Colors and paffem detail shall be dispersed throughout the thickness of
the wear layer.

2. Linoleum sheet shall conform to the requirements of ASTM F 2034, Type I,
"Standard Specification for Sheet Linoleum Floor Covering Without Backing"

3. Color: Armstrong Flooring LS40l Yuca Tan or a substitute approved by the
County as equal. The request must be submitted at least 5 business days before
bid opening for approval as equal.

4. Thickness: 0.100 in. (2.5 mm)

5. Fire Performance Characteristics: Provide resilient linoleum sheet flooring with the
following fire performance characteristics as determined by testing material in
accordance with ASTM test methods indicated below by a certified testing
laboratory or other testing agency acceptable to authorities having jurisdiction:

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

Page 13



1) ASTM E 648 Critical Radiant Flux of 0.45 watts per sq. cm. or greater,

Class I

2) ASTM E 662 (Smoke Generation) Maximum Specific Optical Density of
450 or less

3) CANruLC-SI02.2 - Flame Spread Rating and Smoke Developed -
Results as tested.

B. Linoleum Weld Rod:

1. Provide solid color linoleum weld rod as produced by the flooring manufacturer
and intended for heat welding of seams. Color shall be compatible with field
color of flooring or as selected by County to contrast with field color of flooring.

C. Seam Adhesive:

1. Provide Seam Adhesive as recommended by the flooring manufacturer.

2.03 ADHESIVES

Provide Adhesives as recommended by the flooring manufacturer.

2.04 ACCESSORIES

A. Provide transition/reducing strips tapered to meet abutting materials

B. Provide resilient edge strips wherever applicable, of equal gauge to the flooring,
homogeneous vinyl or linoleum composition, tapered or bullnose edge, with color to
match the flooring, or as selected by the County from standard colors available.

2.07 SUBSTITUTIONS

Materials substitutions must be submitted to the County a minimum of five (5) working
days prior to the bid opening for review to be approved as an "or equal". All substitute
material requests shall include all testing agency certifications and independent third party
laboratory testing certifying that all physical properties are equal to or greater than the
product specified and certified by an officer of the material manufacturer.

PART3 PREPARATION&APPLICATION

3.01 MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

A. Compliance: Comply with manufacturer's product data, including technical bulletins,
product catalog, installation instructions, and product carton instructions for installation and

maintenance procedures as needed.

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions



3.02 EXAMINATION

A. Site Verification of Conditions: Veriff substrate conditions are acceptable for product
installation in accordance with manufacturer's instructions (i.e. moisture tests, bond test,
pH test, etc.).

B. Visually inspect flooring materials, adhesives and accessories prior to installation.
Flooring material with visual defects shall not be installed and shall not be considered as

a legitimate claim.
C. Examine subfloors prior to installation to determine that surfaces are smooth and free

from cracks, holes, ridges, and other defects that might prevent adhesive bond or impair
durability or appearance of the flooring material.

D. Inspect subfloors prior to installation to determine that surfaces are free from curing,
sealing, parting and hardening compounds; residual adhesives; adhesive removers; and
other foreign materials that might prevent adhesive bond. Visually inspect for evidence
of moisture, alkaline salts, carbonation, dusting, mold, or mildew.

E. Report conditions contrary to contract requirements that would prevent a proper
installation. Do not proceed with the installation until unsatisfactory conditions have been
corrected.

F. Failure to call attention to defects or imperfections will be construed as acceptance and
approval of the subfloor. Installation indicates acceptance of substrates with regard to
conditions existing at the time of installation.

3.03 PREPARATION

A. Subfloor Preparation: Smooth concrete surfaces, removing rough areas, projections,
ridges, and bumps, and filling low spots, control or construction joints, and other defects
with Cement-Based Patch, Underlayment and Embossing Leveler / Underlayment
Additive as recommended by the flooring manufacturer. Refer to manufacturer's
installation manual and ASTM F 710 Standard Practice for Preparing Concrete Floors to
Receive Resilient Flooring for additional information on subfloor preparation.

B. Subfloor Cleaning: The surface shall be free of dust, solvents, varnish, paint, wax, oil,
grease, sealers, release agents, curing compounds, residual adhesive, adhesive removers
and other foreign materials that might affect the adhesion of resilient flooring to the
concrete or cause a discoloration of the flooring from below. Remove residual adhesives
as recommended by the flooring manufacturer. Remove curing and hardening compounds
not compatible with the adhesives used, as indicated by a bond test or by the compound
manufacturer's recommendations for flooring. Avoid organic solvents. Spray paints,
permanent markers and other indelible ink markers must not be used to write on the back
of the flooring material or used to mark the concrete slab as they could bleed through,
telegraphing up to the surface and permanently staining the flooring material. If these
contaminants are present on the substrate they must be mechanically removed prior to the
installation of the flooring material. Refer to manufacturer's installation manual and
ASTM F 710 Standard Practice for Preparing Concrete Floors to Receive Resilient
Flooring for additional information on subfloor preparation.

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

Page 15



C. Concrete pH Testing: Perform pH tests on concrete floors if requested by the County.
All test results shall be documented and retained.

3.04 INSTALLATION OF FLOORING

A. Install flooring in strict accordance with the latest edition of manufacturer's-manual.
Failure to comply may result in voiding the manufacturer's warranty listed in Section
1.05.

B. Adhere flooring to the subfloor without cracks, voids, raising and puckering at the
seams. Refer to specific rolling instructions of the flooring manufacturer.

C. Lay flooring to provide a minimum number of seams. Avoid cross seams, filler pieces,

and strips. Match edges for color shading and pattern at the seams in compliance with
the manufacturer's recommendations.

D. Install flooring with adhesives, tools, and procedures in strict accordance with the
manufacturer's written instructions. Observe the recommended adhesive trowel
notching, open times, and working times.

E. Either:

a. Prepare heat-welded seams with special routing tool supplied for this purpose and

heat weld with linoleum welding rod in seams.

Or

b. Prepare sealed seams with special seam adhesive supplied for this pu{pose.

Use methods and sequence of work in conformance with written instructions of the
flooring manufacturer. Finish all seams flush and free from voids, recesses, and raised

areas.

3.05 INSTALLATION OF ACCESSORIES

A. Place resilient edge strips tightly butted to flooring, and secure with adhesive

recommended by the edge strip manufacturer. Install edge strips at edges of flooring
that would otherwise be exposed.

3.06 CLEANING

Perform initial cleaning according to the latest edition of manufacturer's manual

COMPENSATION

1.OI PAYMENT

The contract lump sum price paid for the flooring project shall include full compensation
for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and incidentals, and for doing all the
work involved in the flooring project as shown on the plans, and as specified in the
specifications and the special provisions, and as directed by the Engineer, including the
removal and disposal of the resulting material.

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

Page 16



I.O2 ADJUSTMENT OF'LUMP SUM

When the roofing project is paid for on a lump sum basis, any adjustment in
compensation due to an increase or decrease in the quantrty of work to be performed
which is ordered by the Engineer will be made on the basis of the cost of the increased or
decreased work and will be paid for according to Section 9-1.06, "Changed Quantity
Payment Adjustmentsr" of the 2015 Caltrans Standard Specifications for increased
work and estimated on the same basis in the case of decreased work.

END OF'SECTION

Central Library Flooring Project
Special Provisions

Page l7



PLANS
FOR

CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOORING PROJBCT
Independence, California

Central Library Flooring Project
Plahs



Drowing Prepored by:

INYO COUNTY PUBIJC 
.rORKS

168 N. Edwards, P.O. Drower Q
lndependence, CA 93526

(760) 878-0201

INYO COUNTY CENTRAL LIBRARY
FLOORING PROJECT

INDEPENDENCE. CA
Drorn $6 Dotc:

.,s DEC.2018

Chcclrcd By:

AnH

hc:
DEC. 2o1E

INDEX OF SHEETS

1. TITLE AND LOCATION MAP

2. CENTRAL LIBRARY FLOOR PLANS

GENERAL NOTES

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER OF DISCREPANCIES
BETWEEN THE INFORMATION SHOWN ON THESE DRAWINGS AND THE CONDITIONS
EXISTING IN THE FIELD. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPARE ALL DRAWINGS AND
VERIFY THE FIGURES BEFORE LAYING OUT THE WORK AND WLL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
ANY ERRORS WHICH MIGHT HAVE BEEN AVOIDED THEREBY. IF THE CONTRACTOR
FAILS TO NOTIFY THE ENGINEER IN A TIMELY MANNER OF ANY APPARENT ERROR OR
OMISSION ON THE PLANS OR SPECIFICATIONS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR CORRECTING WORK INCORRECTLY DONE AT THE CONTRACTOR'S
OWN EXPENSE.

PAYMENT FOR WORK SHOWN ON THESE PLANS EITHER SPECIFIED OR INFERRED, BUT
NOT IN THE BID PROPOSAL SHALL BE CONSIDERED AS INCLUDED IN OTHER ITEMS OF
WORK.

3. ALL CONSTRUCTION AND MATERIALS SHALL CONFORM TO THESE PLANS AND
SPECIFICATIONS, THE OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION
STANDARDS, THE 2015 TNTERNATTONAL BUtLD|NG CODE (tBC), THE 2013 CALTFORNTA
BUTLDTNG CODE (CBC), THE 2013 UNTFORM BUTLDTNG CODE (UBC), THE UNTFORM F|RE
coDE (uFc), AND OTHER GOVERNTNG REGULATTONS.

4. ALL CONSTRUCTION WILL BE SUBJECT TO FINAL APPROVAL BY THE INYO COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT.

5. INSPECTION DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REQUIRED TO ENSURE
CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS AND METHODS ARE IN ACCORDANCE WTH THE INYO
COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND THESE PLANS .

THE PROJECT SHALL BE BUILT PER PLAN. ALL FIELD CHANGES MUST BE
PRE-APPROVED BY THE INYO COUNTY ENGINEER.

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE GENERALLY ACCEPTED CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES,
THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE SOLELY AND COMPLETELY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE
CONDITIONS AT THE JOB SITE, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS AND PROPERTY
DURING PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK. THIS REQUIREMENT WILL APPLY
CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS. THE DUTIES
OF THE PROJECT CIVIL ENGINEER DO NOT INCLUDE REVIEW OF THE ADEQUACY OF
THE CONTRACTOR'S SAFETY IN, ON OR NEAR THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.

B. PROJECT LOCATION: INYO COUNTY CENTRAL LIBRARY - 168 N. EDWARDS ST, INDEPENDENCE, CA

COUNTY OF //VYO
DEPARTAIE/VT OF PUBLIC WORKS

PLAI.IS FOR THE

CENIML UBMRY FLOORING PROIECT

AT

II.IYO COUNTY CENIML UBRARY IN INDEPENDENCE, CA

PRoJECT. N0. ZP 18-075

LOCATION MAP
t00roD

-r-l
dttl!

,|

2

PROJECT
LOCATION

MICHAEL ERRANTE, ACTING DIRECTOR
INYO COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS

DATE

.@-w-r
MB

6

7

"-l IttI

o
t

o
o,,

t

+

PR(UECI SITE:
BUIIDINC

'IDOA

COUNTY 96tilf

ilrtpfl
EAN

c 48241
Exp. 6/30/2020

tc IV

* *

Dstc: I Drcring Nomc 
I SHEEr 1 OF 2

DECETBER 2oiE l****-1



Drowing Prepored bY:

INYO COUNIY PTIBIIC TORI(S
168 N. Edwords, P.O. Drower Q

lndependence, CA 93526
(760) 878-O2O1

INYO COUNTY CENTRAL LIBRARY
PROJECT

INDEPENDENCE, CA

Drtrn $6 Dotc:

.E DEC. 2016

Chcckrd 8f Dctc:

AR{ 08C.2016
| *to Nomc: 

I SHEEI z oF 2
lqBffii[Erd

Dotc:

DECA|EER 2O1A

21 .60'
r+ 18.52 +

21.80'

ROOM 1

403.736 SQFT

ROOM 2

47O.AA SQFT 21 .80'

21.80'
ROOM 3

9s4.7A4 SQFT

42.88'

?-J ,ltz
MICHAEL ACTING DIRECTOR

c +8241
Exp. 6/30/2020

INYO COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS
DATE



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

XConsent !Departmental lCorrespondenceAction

n Scneduled Time for n Closeo Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

]o
n Puolic Hearing

! lnformational

FROM: Sheriff s Department

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: February 12,2019

SUBJECT: Off-HighwayVehicleGrantApplication

D EPARTMENTAL RECOMME N DATION :
Request Board approve a resolution entitled "A Resolution of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,
Authorizing the Submittal of the State of California, Department of Parks and Recreation, Off-Highway Vehicle Grant Application."

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:
The Department of Parks and Recreation is offering the Off-Highway Vehicle (OHV) grant program, to provide for well-managed
OHV recreation by providing financial assistance to eligible agencies that develop, maintain, operate, expand, support, or contribute
to well managed, high quality, OHV recreation areas, roads, and trails; and to responsibly maintain the wildlife, soils, and habitat of
Project Areas in a manner that will sustain long-term OHV recreation in accordance with the legislative provisions and intent of the
Act commencing at PRC section 5090.01.

If awarded, these monies would be used to provide maintenance on equipment that was purchased with prior OHV funds, additional
safety gear for OHV Patrol Deputies, assist with costs associated with overtime for OHV Patrol Deputies, supplement and provide
training to strengthen the Sheriff Depafiment's Enforcement Detail for private and government owned property that is already in use,
and enforce where it is not zoned and planned for.

This will be the I lft year that the Inyo County Sheriff s Department applies for the OHV competitive grant. Both South-County and
North-County are equipped with necessary OHV Enforcement equipment, and training has been provided yearly for Pafrol Deputies.

This is a competitive grant, therefore we will not know what we are awarded until the Intent to Award is posted on the State Parks
OHV Division website June, 2019; the preliminary application is due to the State by March 5ft, 2018. The OHV grant requires a
twenty-five percent Q5%) in-kind match. Any item that is eligible as a Project Cost is also eligible as a match. The Sheriffs
Department anticipates applying for $100,000. However, historically law enforcement applications state-wide rarely are awarded
more than 50 percent ofthe total requested, and are often reduced significantly more than 50 percent ofthe total requested amount.

ALTERNATIVES:
Your Board could choose not to approve the Resolution, but this alternative is not recommended. The OHV monies have historically
been be a valuable resource to Inyo County.

OTHER AG ENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Bureau of Land Management (BLM), Forest Service

FINANCING:
If the grant application were approved, then a budget will be created - budget number to be determined by the Auditor's Office. The
in-kind match will met through staff salaries and equipment dedicated to the enforcement detail as well as administrative duties
associated with managing the OHV grant.



Agenda Request
Page 2

DEPARTM ENT H EAD SIGNATURE:
(Not to be signed until all approvals are

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel pior to submission to the board clerk.)

\lL4/11LApproved

AUDITOFYCONTROLLER: ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller pior to
submrssrbn to the board clerk.)

Approved 7
PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to

submission to the board clerk.)

vlr* DateApproved

APPROVALS



RESOLUTION NO. 2OI9-

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS,
COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIAO AUTHORIZING THE

SUBMITTAL OF THE STATE OF CALIF'ORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF'PARKS
AND RECREATION, OFF.HIGHWAY VEHICLE GRANT APPLICATION

WHEREAS, the people of the State of California have enacted the Off-Highway Motor
Vehicle Recreation Act of 2003, which provides funds to the State of California and its
political subdivisions for Operation and Maintenance, Restoration, Law Enforcement,
and Education and Safety for off-highway vehicle recreation; and

WHEREAS, the Off-Highway Motor Vehicle Recreation Division with the California
Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated the responsibility to administer
the program; and

WHEREAS, procedures established by the California Department of Parks and
Recreation require the Applicant's Governing Body to certify by resolution the approval
of the Application to apply for Off-Highway Motor Vehicle Grant funds; and

WHEREAS, this Project appears on, or is in conformance with this jurisdiction's
adopted general or master plan and is compatible with the land use plans of those
jurisdictions immediately surrounding the Project; and

WHEREAS this Board finds that the County's receipt of such funding would be
beneficial to the residents of Inyo County.

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Inyo County Board of Supervisors
hereby:

(a) Approves the filing of an Application(s) for an Off-Highway Vehicle Grant or
Cooperative Agreement; and

(b) Certifies that this agency understands its legal obligations to the State upon
approval of the Grant; and

(c) Certifies that this agency understands the California Public Resources Code
requirement that Acquisition and Development of Projects be maintained to
specific conservation standards; and

(d) Certifies that the Project will be well-maintained during its useful life; and
(e) Certifies that this agency will implement the Project with diligence once funds are

available and the Applicant has reviewed, understands, and agrees with the
Project Agreement; and

(f) Certifies that this agency will provide the required matching funds; and
(g) Cetifies that the public and adjacent property owners have been notified of this

Project (as applicable); and
(h) Appoints the Inyo County Sheriff as agent to conduct all negotiations, execute

and submit all documents including, but not limited to Applications, agreements,
amendments, payment requests and so on, which may be necessary for
completion of the Project.



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of
California, this 12th day of February 2019,by the following role call voie:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Chairperson,
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST: Clint Quilter
Clerk of the Board

By:
Darcy Ellis, Assistant



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

nConsent IDepartmental lCorrespondenceAction

n Scheduled Time for n Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

8t
n Public Hearing

n lnformational

FRoM: Clint G. Quilter, Clerk of the Board, County Administrator
BY: Darcy Ellis, Assistant Clerk of the Board

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: February 12,2019

SUBJECT: Approval of Board of Supervisors meeting minutes

DEPARTMENTAL RECOMMENDATION: Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of
Supervisors meetings of December 4,2018, December 11,2018, December 18,2018, January 8, 2019, and January
15,2019.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION: The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved
the minutes as requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County's webpage,
Urunry. invocountY,us.

ALTERNATIVES: NIA

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: NIA

FINANCING: NIA

DEPARTMENT H EAD SIG NATURE: c
-<J

COUNTY COUNSEL:

N/A

AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be
reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submission to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date_
AUDITOR/CONTROLLER:

N/A

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed and approved by the auditor-controller prior to

submrssrbn to the board clerk.)

Approved: Date

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR:

N/A

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the director of personnel services prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

Approved:_Date_

APPROVALS

(Not to be signed until all approvals are rece )-1 - 11



-\---\\ AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COUNTY OF INYO

n Consent ! Departmental lCorrespondence Action

n Scheduleo Time for f] Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

JJ
X Puotic Hearing

n lnformational

FROM: Nathan D. Reade, Agricultural Commissioner

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: February 12,2019

SUBJECT: Consideration of Commercial Cannabis Business License

DE PARTME NTAL RE C OMMENDATION:

Request your Board A) conduct a public hearing on the consideration of a county commercial cannabis license for the
microbusiness classification in Zone 5C, and B) conditionally approve the application that exceeded the 80% minimum
threshold as set forth in Inyo County code section 5.40.090(H) and authorize issuance of the license contingent on the
applicant paying the fees established, and applicants obtaining all needed permits and licenses required by the county
and the state of California including payment of all required fees and taxes.

CAO RECOMMENDATION:

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

On June 18, 2018, the window for acceptance of commercial cannabis license applications closed. County staff has been
working together and with the applicants since that time to ensure the applications are complete and assess the final
proposals. Of the 35 applications received,30 moved forward to the final round of scoring. Applications were scored
based on a point system that considered the following criteria:

a. Adequacy of the security plan;

b. Adequacy of the operating plan;

c. Appropriateness of site location;

d. Proposed measures to mitigate potential negative impacts to the community;

e. Environmental considerations includingwatersources;

f. Residencyconsiderations;

g. Community benefit plan;

h. Any prior or existing operation of a commercial cannabis business subject to this chapter;

The application included today represents the only viable proposal to be received for the Zone 5C microbusiness licenses
type, and the final license for your board to consider from the initial application window. One microbusiness license was
available in zone 5C, and two applications were received. The proposal that is not a pafi of your board's deliberations
today had multiple deficiencies that resulted in the application being incomplete and impossible to score. This
incomplete proposal was rejected pursuant to Inyo County code section 5.40.090(D)(3). The following table outlines the
remaining proposal's scoring:



Agenda Request
Page 2

Note that the maximum score for application fypes that include a cultivation component is 1,580 and all others is 1,370.

Inyo County Code Section 5.40.090(H) requires that a cannabis application receive a minimum score of 80% in
order for a license to be issued.

ALTERNATIWS:

Your board could choose to adjust scoring to change the outcome of the staff scoring or decide to deny all
applications.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT:

FINANCING:

If this license is issued, license fee revenue of $8,850 annually is projected. Additional sales tax revenue may
also be generated.

DEPARTM ENT H EAD S IG N ATU RE :
, l -ll-/q(Not to be signed until all approvals are

Chief F 1,290 1.65%LLC
ScoreApplicant

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION
reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to submission to the board clerk.)

TED ITEMS (Must be

l6?Date-slsftApproved

APPROVALS



Zone 5C Map



License Versionr

! lnirlolApplicction El Revised Applicction
Buslness Nomer

Chief Farms, LLC (Microbusiness)
Dole Receivedr

121312018

CotvtmrncrAt CANNABTS BusrNEss Prnmlr AppucerroN ScoRING SHEET

Section I - License Type ond Stqtus

l--l Complete |-l lncomplete

Notes:

Section 2 - Contqct lnformqtion

f Complbre. l-llncomplete

Notesr

Section 3 - Locqtion lnformqlion

lll Complete T lncomplete

Notes:

Sections4-9Scoring

*The weight of eqch section will be determined by Boord of Supervisors in open session, independent qnd without

155 210 190 144 315 276 1290

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

'!. {.j i 1.,i1: :,-rr 1 li.j., ii:t,l Ii':: ;r. j.,l't II li't Iii!.,ii. lr r-t,]:,.:

.ltr.i.J,l r"i t ."l..j,rl:.i,:!,.,r ir.t.l:

;.r1,,:',!.,t,t,, I.iii:t0,, .r.i.,,.r:

knowledge of ihe scoring criteriq ossigned to eqch opplicotion.



The following seclions will be scored on merit ond when opplicoble, relotive lo olher oppliconts for the some license type(s)
in lhe some zones. Eoch question will hove o point volue ronge listed, with higher scores ossigned to beller responses.

Seclion 4 - Security Plqn Point Vqlue Poinls Assigned

'I . Surveillonce system odequocy (Sheriff) 0-30 29

2. Alorm system odequocy (Sheriff) 0-30 25

3. Cosh security (Sheriff) 0-30 20

4. Perimeter/security fencing odequocy (Sheriff) 0-30 25

5. Security personnel use ond troining (Sheriff) 0-30 28

6. Additionol security meosures (Sheriff) 0-30 28

TOTAL 155

Section 5 -Operotions Plqn Point Volue Points Assigned

l. Adequocy of improvements ond permit stotus 0-30 25
2. Trock ond Troce complionce syslem odequocy 0-30 30

3. Hozordous moteriols (EH ond Ag) 0-30 30

4, Sloroge sofety ond security (EH ond Ag) 0-30 30

5. Woste disposol plon odequocy (EH ond Ag) 0-30 30
6. Adequocy of weights & meosures equipment ond proctices 0-30 10

7. Adequocy of equipment to proposed octivity 0-30 25

8. Community mitigotion meosures 0-60 30
Pro Formo lncluded? TOTAL 210

Section 6 - Cultivotion Plqn Point Volue Poinls Assigned

l. Surrounding lond use compotibility 0-60 60
2, Pesl monogemenl plon odequocy 0-30 25
3. Fertilizer plon odequocy 0-30 30

4. Adequocy of processing equipment ond focilities 0-30 25
5. Overoll plon odequocy 0-60 50

TOTAL 190



Seclion 7 - Communily lmpocl Mitigolion Meqsures Point Vqlue Points Assigned

l. Existence of ogreemenls wilh communily entities (Fire, EMS, Lqw Enforcement, etc.) 0-'r80 144

TOTAL 144

Section I - Environmental Considerqlions Point Volue Points Assigned

l. Wqler source sustoinobility (EH) 0-60 45
2. Wostewoler runoff monogement odequocy (EH) 0-60 45

3. Outdoor lighting plon

o. Adequocy to provide security 0-30 25
b. Mitigotion of dork skies concerns 0-30 25

4, Odor control ond ventilqtion systems 0-60 55

5. Dust control plon odequocy 0-60 60

6. Noise mitigotion plon odequocy 0-60 60

TOTAL 315

Section 9 - Community Benefil Plon Point Volue Points Assigned

l. Strength of community benefit plon o-260 156

2. Locol hiring plon/strotegies 0-60 60
3. Woge comporison 0-60 60

TOTAL 276



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COLINTY OF INYO

n Consent I Deparlmental flCorrespondence Action

X Scheduled Time for I l:00a.m. ! Closed Session

For Clerk's Use Only:
AGENDA NUMBER

Ab

X Puutlc Hearing

I Informational

FROM: Inyo County Planning Commissron

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: February 12,2019

SUBJECTz ZoneReclassification (ZR) #2}l9-I0lJellison

D EPARTM ENTAL RE C O MMENDATI ON :
Request the Board of Supervisors:

A) Conduct a public hearing on the following actions for an 0.35-acre site located at 2476 &
2478Dixon Lane, in the community of Bishop (APN 010-081-40):

. a proposed ordinance titled "An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors of the County of
Inyo, State of California, approving Zone Reclassification No. 2018-l0/Jellision and
amending the Zoning Map of the County of Inyo by rezoning a 0.35-acre parcel located at
2476 &2478Dixon Lane (APN 010-081-40) in the unincorporated community of Bishop
from Multiple Residential (R-2) to single residence or mobilehome combined (RMH)."

B) Certify that the Provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Have Been Met
and Making Certain Findings with Respect to and Approving Zone Reclassification No. 2018-
1O/Jellision.

C) Waive the first reading of the above referenced Ordinance approving Zone Reclassification
No. 2018-10/Jellision and schedule the enactment for ll:00a.m., Tuesday, February 12,2019
in the Board of Supervisors Room, at the County Administrative Center, in Independence.

SUMMARY DISCUSSION:

The applicant, Robert Jellison, is proposing to change the Zoning Designation on a property located at
2476 & 2478 Dixon Lane, Bishop, CA with Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 010-081-40. Currently, this
parcel is zoned Multiple Residential with a 14,200 square foot minimum and has the General Plan
designation of Residential Medium Density (RM). The applicant is requesting the Zoning Designation of
Single Residence or Mobilehome Combined, with a 7,200 square foot minimum (RMH-7200). The
existing General Plan designation is consistent with the proposed Zoning designation and will not change.
The proposed zoning is consistent with the current use on the parcel (a single family residence). The
applicant has applied for a Hosted Short-Term rental at this property, which is allowed in the RMH
zoning, but not in the R2 zoning.

The property has an existing, 1,380-square-foot single family residence and a 900-square-foot accessory
dwelling unit (Attachment A - Vicinity Map). While the property is zoned for multiple residential use, only
a single residence exists on the property. The applicant has already applied for a Hosted Short-Term Rental
Permit. That application has been reviewed under the County's zoning code and no issues have arisen that
would result in the denial of the request, except for the property being zoned R2.

It appears that in the early 1990s the Planning Department created a situation that resulted in this parcel
being spot zoned (Attachment B map of the existing zoning)(Attachment C map of proposed zoning). This



Agenda Request
Page 2

was due to the County's prior accessory dwelling unit regulations that did not allow for accessory dwelling
units in the RMH zone. In the early 1990s the Planning Department actively looked for parcels with more
than one unit in the single family home zones and encouraged the owners to rezone to multiple residence
zones. Later, changes in California law made it illegal for local jurisdictions to have regulations that did not
allow for accessory dwelling units on their single family zoning designations. Changing this property's
zoning back to RMH causes a more consistent zoning pattem in the area, eliminating the "spot zone" of R2
that extends into RMH zone and makes the zoning more consistent with the current use.

Environmental Review

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the proposal is covered by the General
Rule 15061(bX3) that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant
effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity
in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA. The
parcel is currently fully disturbed by the existing residential uses, with no additional development
proposed and therefore the project is exempt.

The Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on January 23,2019, took public comment, and voted to
recommend that the Board cerlify that the project is exempt from CEQA and approve Zone
Reclassification No. 2018-10/Jellison with a vote of 4-0.

ALTERNATIWS:
o Do NOT approve the requested actions.
o Return to staff with direction

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT:
None

FINANCING:
The applicant provided fees to cover the costs ofthese actions.

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE:
Qttot to be signed until all approvals are received)

I

CO
COUNTY AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION

AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by county counsel prior to
submission to the bosrd clerk.)

AUDITOR/CONT
ROLLER:

ACCOUNTING/FINANCE AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and
approved by the auditor-controller prior to submission to the board clerk.)

PERSONNEL
DIRECTOR:

PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed and approved by the
director of personnel services prior to submission to the board clerk.)

APPROVALS

Date b 7



Agenda Request
Page 3

Attachments:
1) Proposed Ordinance
2) ExistingZoning
3) Proposed Zoning
4) January 23,2019 Planning Commission Staff Reporl.



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF
INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING ZONE RE,CLASSIFICATION NO.
2018-10\JELLISON AND AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE COUNTY OF'
INYO BY REZONING A 0.35 ACRE PARCEL LOCATED AT 2476 AND 2478
DIXON LANE(APN 010-081-40) rN THE UNTNCORPORATED COMMUNITY OF
BISHOP FROM MULTIPLE RESIDENTIAL (R-2) TO SINGLE RESIDENCE OR
MOBTLEHOME COMBTNED (RMH).

The Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo ordains as follows:

SECTION I: AUTHORITY
This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the police power of the Board and Sections

18.81.310 and 18.81.350 of the Inyo County Code, which establishtheprocedure forthe
Board of Supervisors to enact changes to the Zoning Ordinance of the County, set forth in
Title I 8 of said code. The Board of Supervisors is authorized to adopt zoning ordinances
by Government Code Section 65850 et seq.

SECTION II: FINDINGS
Upon consideration of the material submitted, the recommendation of the Inyo

County Planning Commission, and statements made at the public hearing held on this
matter, this Board finds as follows:

(1) In accordance with Inyo County Code Section 18.81.320, Robert Jellison
applied to the Inyo County Planning Department to have the zoning map of
the County of Inyo amended from Multiple Residential (R-2) to Single
Residence or Mobilehome Combined (RMH) on a property in the
unincorporated community of Bishop (APN 010-081-40), as described in
Section III of this Ordinance.

(2) On January 23,2018 the Inyo County Planning Commission conducted a
public hearing on Zone Reclassification No. 201 8- 10\Jellison, following
which the Commission made various findings and recommended that the
Board amend Title 18, to rezone the property described in Section III of this
Ordinance Multiple Residential (R-2) to Single Residence or Mobilehome
Combined (RMH).

(3) The findings of the Planning Commission are supported by the law and facts
and are adopted by this Board.

(a) The proposed action will act to further the orderly growth and development of
the County by rezoning property to Single Residence or Mobilehome
Combined (RMH), as it best matches the cument and proposed future uses on
the property.

Page I



SECTION III: ZONING MAP OF THE COUNTY OF INYO AMENDED
The Zoning Map of the County of Inyo as adopted by Section 18.81.390 of the

Inyo County Code is hereby amended so that the zoning on the 0.35-acre site at 2476 and
2478Dixonl.ane (APN 010-081-40) in the unincorporated community of Bishop is
changed from Multiple Residential (R-2) to Single Residence or Mobilehome Combined
(RMH).

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days

after its adoption. Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption hereof, this
Ordinance shall be published as required by Government Code Section 25124. The Clerk
of the Board is hereby instructed and ordered to so publish this Ordinance together with
the names of the Board members voting for and against same.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS L2th DAY OF F',EBRUARY,2019.

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Dan Totheroh, Chairperson
Inyo County Board ofSupervisors

ATTEST:
Clint Quilter
Clerk of the Board

Darcy Ellis, Assistant

Page 2



Attachment B

Zone Reclassification 201,8- 0 I0 /lellison
Existin Zonin

Jellison Property Apn 01 0-081-40
2476 & 2478 Dixon Lane
Bishop Ca, 93514
Proposed RMH-7,200

os-40

2-14,
1

o

o

o
MF.t-7

RM

RMH-7,200
os-40

os-40

3
o

o o o o

o
o
c
o

o

o o
o

c o o o a o o o
o o o o o o o o

o o o
o o

'o;ooo o o o
o
o

o
o
c

oR3!1 o

o o o oo
o
?

o
a
c

o o o o
o o

GaoPoN"c o o BR.I

o

o
o

R

N

Miles
0 0.03 0.06 0.12 0.18 0.24



Attachment C

Zone Reclassification 20LB-0 L0 /Iellison
Proposed Zonin

I

o
RM

I

200

Jellison Property Apn 01 0-081-40
2476 & 2478 Dixon Lane
Bishop Ca, 93514
Current Zoning: R2-14000

--2
a
tsr

!
v

__<
I

R /lt t-

I

os-40

:

r|r-

os-40

(- IE

rBl
)

RMH-7,200

f,
o
c
a
c
.)

os-40

el

o

c
!r
o
J
o
o

o

-o o t

on"c+sp

o 3o o
o co oa o o ooooo c oo ocooc ooo o

o
^o

"R3s10;000' o ooc ool oo oc

oERIe,aDgON'J

c On
CO

N

Miles
0 0.03 0.06 0.12 0.18 0.24



Planning Department
168 North Edwards Street
Post Office Drawer L
Independence, Californi a 93526

Phone: (760) 878-0263
FAX: (760) 872-27t2

E-Mail: inyoplanning
@ inyocounty.us

AGENDA ITEM NO.:

PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT:

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

10 (Action Item - Public Hearing)

January 23,2018

Zone Reclassification (ZR) 20 I 8-O8/Jellison

The applicant, Robert Jellison, is proposing to change the Zoning Designation on a
property, located at 2476 and 2478 Dixon Lane Bishop Ca,93514 with Assessor Parcel
Number (APN) 010-081-40 and zoned Multiple Residential with a 14,000 square foot
minimum and has the General Plan designation of Residential Medium (RM). The
applicant is requesting the Zoning Designation of Single Residence or Mobilehome
Combined, with a 7,200 square foot minimum (RMH-7200). The existing General Plan
designation is consistent with the proposed Zoning designation and will not change. The
proposed zoning is consistent with the current use on the parcel (a single family residence
and an accessory dwelling unit). The applicant has applied for a Hosted Short-Term
rental at this property, which is allowed in the RMH zoning, but not in the R2 zoning.

PROJECT INFORMATION

Supervisory District: I

Project Applicant: Robert Jellison

Property Owner: Robert Jellison and Irene S Yamashita

Site Addressz 2476 Dixon Lane and 2478DixonLane

Community: Bishop, California

A.P.N.: 010-081-40

General Plan: Residential Medium (RM)

Zoning: Multiple Residential with a 14,000 square foot minimum

Size of Parcel: Approximately 0.35-acres



Surrounding Land Use:

Staff Recommended Action: Make certain Findings with respect to and
recommend the Board of Supervisors approve ZR
2018-08 Jellison, subject to the Conditions of
Approval as recommended in this staff report and
certify it is exempt from CEQA.

Alternatives: l.) Deny the ZR.

2.) Approve the ZR with additional or modified
Conditions of Approval.

3.) Continue the public hearing to a future date, and
provide specific direction to staff regarding what
additional information and analysis is needed.

Project Planner:

STAF'F ANALYSIS

Background and Overview

Ryan Standridge, Assistant Planner

The applicant has applied for a ZP.,to change the zoning of the property from R2-14,000
to RMH-7,200 with the intent of operating a Hosted Short-Term Rental on the property.
Hosted Short-Term Rentals are not allowed in the R2 zone but permitted in the RMH
zone.

The property has an existing, 1,380-square-foot single family residence and a 9OO-square-
foot accessory dwelling unit (Attachment A - Vicinity Map). While the property is zoned
for multiple residential use, only the single residence exists on the property. The
applicant has already applied for a Hosted Short-Term Rental. That application has been
reviewed and no issues have arisen that would result in the denial of the request, except
for the property being zoned R2.

2

Location: Use: Gen. Plan Designation Zoning
Site Residential Residential Medium- Density

(RM)
Multiple Residential - 14,000
square foot minimum -

North Agriculture Natural Resource

NR)
Open Space -40 Acre
Minimum

East Residential Residential Medium- Density
(RM)

Single Residence or
Mobilehome Combined -
7,200 square foot minimum
(RMH-7.200)

South Residential Residential Medium- Density
(RM)

Single Residence or
Mobilehome Combined -
7,200 square foot minimum
(RMH-7,200) )

West Residential Residential Medium- Density
(RM)

Single Residence or
Mobilehome Combined -
7,200 square foot minimum
(RMH-7,200)

Zone Reclassification 20 I 8- lO/Jellison



It appears that the Planning Department created a situation that resulted in this parcel
being spot zoned (Attachment B map of the existing zoning)(Attachment C map of
proposed zoning). This was due to the prior accessory dwelling unit requirements that did
not allow for accessory dwelling units in the RMH zone. In the early 1990s the Planning
Department actively looked for parcels with more than one unit in the single family home
zones and encouraged the owners to rezone to multiple residence zones. Latel changes in
California law made it illegal for local jurisdictions to have regulations that did not allow
for accessory dwelling units on their single family zoning designations. Changing this
property's zoning back to RMH causes a more consistent zoning pattern in the area,
eliminating the "spot zone" of R2 that extends into RMH zone and makes the zoning
more consistent with the current use.

The location of the existing residence and accessory dwelling unit on the lot, make the
potential development of a second single family residence difficult at best (Attachment
D, existing structures). This current configuration of buildings effectively prohibits the
full potential of the R2 zoning; therefore, this zone reclassification does not result in
losses to single family home development opportunity.

General Plan Consistency

The project is consistent with the General Plan designation of RM (Policy LU-2.2) since
the project parcel and the surrounding area have this designation. RM also corresponds to
the RMH 7,200 zoning that is being requested by the applicant. The density of the RM
General Plan Designation (4.6-7.5-units/acre) is consistent with existing and allowed
development under the RMH zoning.

Zoninq Ordinance Consistency

Changing the subject parcel zoning from R2 to RMH, allows the parcel to be consistent
with the surrounding area. There is one other multiple residential zoned parcel (R3) in the
general area located at the end of the block. This parcel is also spot zoned; however, the
current use coresponds to the R3 zone. This proposed zone change brings the parcel into
consistency with its neighboring parcels. Since the property has only been developed
with a single-family residence and an accessory dwelling unit (1,200-square-feet or less),
the R2 zone is inconsistent with the existing development of the property, as well.
Moreover, because of the current residential development and its placement on the lot,
the full development potential of the lot under the R2 zoning is unlikely, and this zone
reclassification will not cause losses to development potential.

Utilities and Public Services

Utility and public services are provided to the existing single-family residence, and
existing accessory dwelling unit. With no potential for further development, no need to
increase or change service provision is anticipated.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Pursuant to the Califomia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the proposal is covered
by the General Rule 15061(bX3) that CEQA applies only to projects which have the
potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with

JZone Reclassification 201 8-l 0/Jellison



certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant
effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA. The proposed zoning
change reduces potential future development, and the parcel is currently fully developed
by the existing residential use, and therefore the project is exempt.

NOTIFICATIONS

ZR 201 8- I 0/Jellison was noticed in the Inyo Register and sent to the property owners of
properties within 300-feet of the project, ten days prior to the Planning Commission
Hearing. No comments have been received to date.

RECOMMENDATION

Planning Department staff recommends the approval of Zone Reclassification No. 201 8-
lO/Jellison, with the following Findings and Condition of Approval:

FINDINGS

l. The proposed Zone Reclassification is exempt under CEQA Guidelines
I 506 I (bX3), General Rule.

[Evidence: The proposal is covered by the General Rule ]5061@(3) that CEQA
applies only to projects which have the potentialfor causing a significant ffict
on the environment. Where it can be seenwith certainty that there is no possibility
that the activity in question may have a significant ffict on the environment, the
activity is not subject to CEQA. The proposed zoning change reduces potential
future development, and the parcel is curcentlyfully developed by the existing
residential use, and therefore the pro.iect is exempt.l

2. The proposedZone Reclassification is consistent with the Inyo County General
Plan Land Use designation of Residential Medium Density (RMH).

[Evidence: The project is consistent with the General Plan designation of RM.
The surrounding areas zoned RMH have the RM General Plan Designation and
the density of the kM Genersl Plan Designation is consistent with existing and
allowed development under the KMH zoning.l

3. The proposedZone Reclassification is consistent with Title l8 (Zoning
Ordinance) of the Inyo County Code.

[Evidence: Changing of the zoningfrom R2 to RMH brings the project parcel's
zoning into consistency with adjacent zoning and cunent development on the
parcel. Since the property has only been developed to have a single family
residence, the change in zoning is not inconsistent with the existing development
of the property.J

4. The proposed Zone Reclassification is not likely to cause substantial impacts to
public health, safety or welfare.

[Evidence: The property is currently developed as a single family residence. The
R2 zoning would allow for a second residence to be developed on the property as
well as an accessory dwelling unit. These potential expansions of use are
currently allowedfor and anticipated by the General Plan and Zoning Code. The

4Zone Reclassification 20 I 8-10/Jellison



proposed zoning minimally restricts any potentialfuture development to a State
allowed accessory dwelling unit, Therefore potentialfuture impacts, which have
already been anticipated and allowedfor, are reduced.J

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

The applicant, landowner, and/or operator shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless Inyo County agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or
proceeding against the County or its agents, officerso or employees to attack, set
aside, void or annul an approval ofthe county, its advisory agencies, its appeals
board, or legislative body concerning Zone Reclassification No.2018-10/Jellison.
The County reserves the right to prepare its own defense.

Attachments

A. Vicinity Map
B. Existing Zoning
C. ProposedZoning
D. Site Plan
E. Existing Structures
F. Aerial overhead

5Zone Reclassification 2018-10/Jellison


	part 1
	part 2
	part 3

